
 

 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA PAPERS FOR 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING 
 

Date: Friday, 20 January 2017 
 

Time:  9.30 a.m. 
 

Place:  Committee Rooms 2 & 3, Trafford Town Hall, 
Talbot Road, Stretford M32 0TH 

 
 

A G E N D A   PART I Pages  
 

1.  ATTENDANCES   
 
To note attendances, including officers, and any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2.  MINUTES   
 
To receive and if so determined, to approve as a correct record the Minutes 
of the meeting held 21 October, 2016. 
 

 
 
 

1 - 8 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Members to give notice of any interest and the nature of that interest relating 
to any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 
 

 

4.  ARMED FORCES NETWORK   
 
To receive a presentation of the Chair of the Armed Forces Network (AFN). 
 

 
 

9 - 14 

5.  TRAFFORD PLAN UPDATE (LOCALITY PLAN)   
 
To receive a presentation of the Chief Operating Officer, Trafford Clinical 
Commissioning Group. 
 

 
 

Verbal 
Report 

6.  PUBLIC HEALTH WORKING GROUP   
 
To receive a report of the Interim Director of Public Health. 
 
 

 
 

15 - 18 

Public Document Pack



Health and Wellbeing Board - Friday, 20 January 2017 
   

 

 

7.  HEALTH AND WELLBEING PRIORITIES   
 
To receive a report of the Interim Director of Public Health. 
 

 
 

19 - 20 

8.  PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT   
 
To receive a report of the Senior Medicines Optimisation Pharmacist, Greater 
Manchester Shared Services. 
 

 
 
 

21 - 198 

9.  INFECTION CONTROL / MINUTES FROM THE HEALTH PROTECTION 
FORUM   
 
To receive a report of the Interim Director of Public Health. 
 

 
 
 

199 - 202 

10.  PHYSICAL ACTIVITY VISION   
 
To receive a verbal update from the Chair of the Sports and Physical Activity 
Partnership. 
 

 
 

Verbal 
Report 

11.  KEY SUCCESSES, CHALLENGES AND RISKS FOR THE LUNCHTIME 
SESSIONS AND TP BOARD   
 
The Chairman will lead a discussion on the key successes, challenges and 
risks for the lunchtime sessions and Trafford Partnership Board. 
 

 

12.  URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)   
 
Any other item or items which by reason of special circumstances (to be 
specified) the Chairman of the meeting is of the opinion should be considered 
at this meeting as a matter of urgency. 
 

 

 
THERESA GRANT 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership of the Committee 
 
Councillor K. Carter, J. Colbert, M. Colledge (Vice-Chairman), C. Daly, A. Day, H. 
Darlington, G. Heaton, Councillor M. Hyman, G. Lawrence, M. McCourt, M. Jarvis, C. 
Meakin, S. Nicholls, E. Roaf, Councillor A. Williams (Chairman) and A. Worthington. 
 
Further Information 
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact: 
 
Chris Gaffey, Democratic and Scrutiny Officer  
Tel: 0161 912 2019 
Email: chris.gaffey@trafford.gov.uk  
 
This agenda was issued on Thursday 12 January, 2017 by the Legal and Democratic 
Services Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford  
M32 0TH. 



Health and Wellbeing Board - Friday, 20 January 2017 
   

 

 

 
Any person wishing to photograph, film or audio-record a public meeting is requested to 
inform Democratic Services in order that necessary arrangements can be made for the 
meeting. 
 
Please contact the Democratic Services Officer 48 hours in advance of the meeting if 
you intend to do this or have any queries. 



This page is intentionally left blank



1

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

21 OCTOBER 2016

PRESENT 

Matthew Colledge  (in the Chair) Chair, NHS Trafford CCG
Jill Colbert Interim Director Children Families and 

Wellbeing
Gina Lawrence Chief Operating Officer Trafford CCG
Victoria Bellamy Chief Inspector GMP
Councillor K Carter Deputy Shadow Exec Member Adult Social 

Services & CFW
Councillor M Hyman Executive Member for Children’s Services
Bob Postlethwaite Chairman Chair of Trafford Safeguarding 

Children Board
Eleanor Roaf Interim Director of Public Health
Ann Day Chairman HealthWatch Trafford
Paul Savill Superintendent GMP
Carlos Meakin Borough Commander GMFRS
Helen Darlington Director Fitbods, Third Sector Representative

In attendance

Karen Ahmed Director of all age commissioning
Matt Graham Director of Strategy UHSM
Kerry Purnell Head of Partnerships and Communities
Paul Helsby Programme Assurance Lead
Billy Myers GMFRS
Mark Jarvis Trafford CCG
Joanne Bryan Commissioning Officer
Louise Wright Sports Relationship Manager

Also in attendance

Sarah Grant Senior Partnerships and Communities Officer
Alexander Murray Democratic and Scrutiny Officer

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor A. Williams, Silas Nichols 
and Richard Spearing.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Health and Wellbeing Board 
21 October 2016

2

13. MINUTES 

In response to item 3 of the minutes; 

“Stuart Webster of Bluesci had resigned from his position as the Third Sector 
Representative on the Health and Wellbeing Board, and the process of appointing 
a new member was underway.”

The Chairman welcomed Helen Darlington from Fitbods who had been appointed 
as the Third Sector Representative following a robust application and interview 
process.

RESOLVED: 
1) That the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 July 2016, be 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.
2) It be noted that Helen Darlington was appointed as the third 

sector representative.

14. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

15. TRAFFORD PLAN UPDATE - LOCALITY PLAN 

The Interim Corporate Director, Children, Families and Wellbeing gave a 
presentation to the Board updating them on the progress of the Trafford 
Transformation Plan. The presentation covered a brief reminder of the main points 
of Trafford’s locality plan including the vision for how services would be delivered 
in Trafford and how the financial gap could be closed. For Trafford this was to be 
achieved by all organisations working closely together to meet shared outcomes. 

The transformation bid covered how health and social care would look in five 
years and how this was to be achieved. A number of key challenges were 
highlighted to the board including the remodelling of primary care, the ageing 
population within Trafford and the cost of care homes. 

The Chief operating officer for Trafford CCG told Board members that the Trafford 
Care Coordination Centre (TCCC) would play a central role in the transformation 
plan. The TCCC was designed to bring together data from all interactions with 
participating organisations to coordinate the delivery of services for all Trafford 
residents. The utilisation of this data would be pivotal to streamline processes and 
reduce duplication within the health and social care economy.

The transformation fund consisted of £450 million over 5 years for the whole of 
greater Manchester. A large amount of the monies available would go to the acute 
trusts with the remaining funds being divided according to the bids made by each 
area. As such, all bids required as much evidence as possible in order to show 
that the investment would provide the best outcomes. The bid also had to include 

Page 2



Health and Wellbeing Board 
21 October 2016

3

ways to measure the proposed outcomes and milestones to be achieved so that 
funding could be provided in stages over the five year period.

The board were informed that a dress rehearsal of the application process was 
going to be conducted in December 2016. The presentation which had been given 
at the meeting was to be circulated with the minutes.

RESOLVED:

1) That the presentation given by the Interim Corporate Director, Children, 
Families and Wellbeing be circulated to board members with the minutes of 
the meeting.

2) That the update be noted.

16. PUBLIC HEALTH WORKING GROUP 

The interim director of Public Health updated the Board on the progress made at 
the first meeting of the Public Health Working Group. The meeting was focused on 
deciding the purpose of the group. The group decided to look at five areas for 
healthy life expectancy; smoking, alcohol abuse, mental health, screening and 
physical activity. These areas were chosen because if they can be tackled it would 
be a great step towards reducing health inequalities within Trafford. 

The group considered what the role of public health was to be going forward. The 
interim director of Public Health went through the three key tenants of the new 
wave of public health. The three tenants were; to invest in the activities that give 
health value to the individual, to make healthier choices easier to make and to 
make unhealthy choices more difficult to make. It was hoped that by 2021 Trafford 
would be the best out of its statistical neighbours and that inequalities between 
boroughs would be minimised. 

RESOLVED: 
1) That the update be noted.

17. PERFORMANCE REPORTS - PUBLIC HEALTH PRIORITIES 

The interim director of Public Health presented a report on the Public Health 
priorities for 2016/17. The report gave a brief overview of each of the workstreams 
that Public Health would be working on during the year. These were; Health 
Protection, Health and social care quality and Population Health Improvement. 
The report also detailed the underpinning work including the creation of the 
updated Joint Strategic Needs Assessment which would feed into all of the 
workstreams. Board members were given the opportunity to ask any questions but 
no further information was required.

RESOLVED:
1) That the report be noted.

Page 3



Health and Wellbeing Board 
21 October 2016

4

(a) Vision to Reduce Physical Inactivity 

The Sports Relationship Manager delivered a presentation to the Board on 
reducing physical inactivity. The presentation described the need for health 
services to move away from a sport focus to a healthy living focus in order to 
maximise the quality of life measured in years (QALY) of Trafford residents. A 
Healthy Living approach would involve promoting activities such as taking the 
stairs rather than the lift and people going for a walk during their lunch break.

In order for this to be achieved pledges for partner organisations were proposed. 
The presentation included examples of partner pledges and what they may entail. 
The Board agreed to active partner pledges in principle and discussed the 
possible shape the pledges should take. The Head of Partnerships and 
Communities stressed that accountability had to be a key part of the pledges.

RESOLVED:
1) That the Sports Relationship Manager be thanked for her 

presentation.
2) That Active Partner Pledges be agreed in principle.

(b) Smoking 

The Local Public Affairs and Campaigning Officer for Cancer Research UK gave a 
presentation to the Board on the continuing battle against tobacco and tobacco 
related cancer. The presentation asserted that smoking is still a major health 
problem within the UK. In Manchester smoking was still the number one cause of 
cancer and the rates of smoking were higher than the national average. Within 
Trafford the average number of smokers overall was 16.4% (below the national 
average) however, vast inequalities between parts of the borough were hidden by 
that figure as there were some areas where up to 40% of the population smoked.

The Local Public Affairs and Campaigning Officer informed the board that the level 
of smoking only reduced when there were interventions. The presentation covered 
the financial benefits to the health economy of a person quitting smoking with 
every £1 spent on prevention returning £10 in savings. The presentation also 
listed the ways in which organisations could reduce smoking levels and that doing 
this would have a high impact on reducing health inequalities in healthy life 
expectancy.

Board members asked what was being done in Trafford around primary 
prevention. The Interim Director of Public Health informed the board that Trafford 
were taking an all age approach and that the strategy would be brought to a later 
meeting. Public Health were also conducting a CLeaR audit and would bring the 
results to the Board once completed.

RESOLVED:
1) That the Local Public Affairs and Campaigning Officer for Cancer 

Research UK be thanked for her presentation.
2) That the smoking strategy for Trafford be brought to a future 

meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board.

Page 4



Health and Wellbeing Board 
21 October 2016

5

3) That the results of the Trafford CLeaR Smoking Audit be brought 
to the HWBB once completed.

18. LOCAL TRANSFORMATION PLAN FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S 
MENTAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

The Commissioning Officer presented the refreshed Local Transformation Plan 
(LTP) for Children and Young People’s Mental Health Services. The key element 
of the LTP was focused upon transforming the Healthy Young Minds (CAMHS) 
service to a stepped care model. The stepped model would ensure that mental 
health support was effective across the whole system instead of being focused on 
specialist support. 

Implementation of this approach would require training and consultation support 
for early help professionals. Investment had been made into a number of services 
during 2016/17 to reduce waiting times, increase preventative support and 
introduce a community eating disorders service. The board were informed that 
continued investment from Trafford CCG would fund further work on these 
priorities and would also aid the implementation of GM initiatives to improve out of 
hours and crisis care.

The Board agreed the LTP with one board member pointing out that Trafford’s 
Transformation Plan for Children’s services had been recognised as one of the 
best in the Country. It was also raised that whilst Trafford was doing well nationally 
there was still a drive to improve services up to the standards of other Countries in 
relation to Children’s Mental Health services.

RESOLVED: 
1) That the Commissioning Officer be thanked for her presentation.
2) That the Transformation plan be agreed.

19. SINGLE HOSPITAL REVIEW 

The Chief Operating Officer for Trafford CCG updated the board on the progress 
of the Single Hospital Review project being led by Sir Johnathan Michael. The 
review looked at the delivery of services within Manchester by three Acute Trusts. 
Two of the three trusts were Central Manchester Foundation Trust (CMFT) and 
University Hospital of South Manchester Foundation Trust (UHSM). The project 
looked at ending the culture of competition between the affected trusts and 
creating a new culture of collaboration. 

The project would involve the sharing of services, staff and expertise between the 
trusts in order to create new, more efficient, pathways for patients. In addition the 
project would ensure that residents from all areas covered by the trusts received 
the same high standards of care. The first stage of the project would involve 
CMFT and UHSM forming a single service. The second stage whereby North 
Manchester General Hospital would join the service would follow shortly after.

The Chairman of HealthWatch Trafford informed the board that there was a lot of 
concern about this project amongst Trafford residents and what it would mean for 
services in the area. The Chief Operating Officer for Trafford CCG responded 

Page 5



Health and Wellbeing Board 
21 October 2016

6

saying that the project now had a full communication and engagement plan in 
place for Trafford and that this would allay the concerns of Trafford residents.

RESOLVED: 
1) That the update be noted.

20. PUBLIC SERVICES REFORM UPDATE 

The Head of Partnerships & Communities presented a report updating the Board 
on the progress of the Trafford Public Service Reform (PSR) programme. The 
report covered the PSR governance, Trafford’s alignment of Health and Social 
Care Transformation with PSR, work stream updates and the next steps of the 
programme. The Workstream update covered the new operating models, 
feedback from the One Trafford Response exercise and Place Based integration. 

The appendices of the report showed how the various programmes of work would 
intertwine and support each other going forward. The Head of Partnerships & 
Communities stated that the PSR programme had excellent levels of buy in at a 
strategic level and that one of the biggest challenges going forward was to transfer 
this to frontline staff along with the integration of IT systems.

RESOLVED:
1) That the report be noted.

21. NEW HEALTH DEAL FOR TRAFFORD 

The Chief Operating Officer for Trafford CCG updated the Board on the recent 
progress of The New Health Deal for Trafford. The Board were reminded that the 
New Health Deal for Trafford had gone out to consultation 4 years prior when the 
accident and emergency department (A&E) at Trafford General Hospital was 
closed. The New Health Deal for Trafford had now entered its final phase whereby 
the Urgent Care Centre (UCC) which had been established at Trafford following 
the closure of A&E moved to a GP and Nurse led model from a consultant led 
model.

The Board were informed that due to issues in other parts of the Greater 
Manchester Health landscape the plans to change this service had occurred 
earlier than expected. This meant that the proposed changes had not come to the 
Board for information before they were implemented. As of the meeting the new 
service had been running for two weeks and was doing well.

RESOLVED:
1) That the update be noted.

Page 6



Health and Wellbeing Board 
21 October 2016

7

22. KEY SUCCESSES, CHALLENGES AND RISKS FOR THE LUNCHTIME 
SESSIONS AND TRAFFORD PARTNERSHIP BOARD 

The Chief Operating Officer for Trafford CCG stated that there was a huge amount 
of work being carried out in Trafford. A major challenge for the Board was to 
ensure that it was positioned in the correct way in order to maximise its 
effectiveness in facilitating the continued integration and collaboration of the 
various aspects of the ongoing work. 

The meeting commenced at 09:30 a.m. and finished at 11:55 a.m.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Presentation to Trafford Health & Well-being Board 

Chair, 

Thank you for this opportunity to report to the Board on behalf of Military Veterans in the 
Trafford area. 
I am Dr Robin Jackson, a retired NHS GP, but still active as an Army GP in the Reserves. 

In 2010, as Commanding Officer of 207 (Manchester) Field Hospital I took TA medical 
staff, from our HQ in Kings Rd. Stretford, a few minutes drive from here, to Afghanistan to 
take over the British Military Hospital in Camp Bastion. 

Commanding what was, and remained, the best trauma hospital in the world, ever, was the 
most challenging thing I have ever done, but for the many Servicemen whose “life-
changing” injuries we treated, the challenge will be to cope with normal life every day. 
I am determined to do whatever I can to make their challenge easier, hence my role as 
Chairman of the NHS Armed Forces Network (North West). 

The AFN is one of nine NHS England bodies across England. We are supported by Bury 
CCG, in our role to oversee the provision of Healthcare to the Armed Forces Community in 
the North West, for Regulars, Reservists, Veterans and their families. 

The nation recognises the debt that we owe to our Armed Forces in a document called the 
Armed Forces Covenant which lays down responsibilities for schools, Local Authorities, 
the NHS and employers to ensure that the Armed Forces including Veterans are not put at 
a disadvantage because of their military service. 

We are fortunate in the North West in having excellent sources of Health Care for our 
Veterans. Dr Fergus Jepson at the Specialist Mobility Rehabilitation Centre in Preston is 
an international expert in the care of amputees, and he looks after approximately eighty 
Veterans who have lost limbs, and Pennine Care Foundation NHS Trust was the first in the 
country to set up a Mental Health service for Veterans. 

The Armed Forces Network meets quarterly with CCGs, military charities and the Regular 
Forces including the Personnel Recovery Unit which helps Wounded Injured of Sick 
soldiers in the transition to civilian life. 

We are a resource that CCGs and Health & Well-being Boards can call on for help with 
your JSNA. 

The Forces in Mind Trust has produced a Report4 :  “Call to Mind, a Framework for Action”. 

They reviewed every JSNA in the country to discover how Health & Well-being Boards 
assessed the Health needs of Veterans.They found that fewer than half mentioned them at 
all, and that of those that did, 82% simply included nothing more than the word “veteran”.  

Boards can have difficulty collecting data on Veterans for the following reasons: 

1. Veteran status is not routinely recorded in Primary & Secondary healthcare statistics, 
and rarely features in social care statistics. 

2. Veterans are dispersed across the country, and while there is some intelligence and 
data about their residence, this is not uniform or robust or sufficiently detailed at CCG or 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Local Authority level. 
3. Veterans themselves may be reluctant to identify themselves as Veterans even when 

offered the opportunity. 
4. Veterans are a heterogeneous group, and assumptions about health need will not apply 

equally to all those classified as a Veteran. 

The JSNA is a “Needs Assessment” which is why the Report believes that Veterans as a 
cohort should be identified as such: 

1.Targeted and Intelligent use of data and information: Veterans and their family  
members need to be routinely identified and included in health and social care data  
collection as part of a targeted and intelligent approach to assessment of their mental and 
related health needs. 
2. Appropriate and evidence based services: responding to the needs of Veterans and 
their families requires services that are sensitive to their identity and culture and provide 
evidence-based interventions as part of an appropriate care pathway. 
3. Assessing and responding to the mental and related health needs of Veterans and their 
families should be done with their active involvement and participation. 

The Press would have you believe that we Veterans are all “mad, bad or sad”. Those of us 
who have witnessed the carnage of combat are forever marked and changed by that 
experience, but most of us adjust to normal life thereafter, however, the small number who 
struggle really do need special help. 

Analysis by the Royal British Legion survey of 2014 and the Government’s Annual Survey 
of Veterans 2015 looked at health effects on the “working age population, aged 16-64” with 
a subset of “early Service leavers aged 16-34”, and the elderly Veterans. 
Those aged 16-34 are significantly more likely to report hearing loss than non-Veterans of 
the same age (7.9% and 3.0% respectively). Veterans of all ages in the North West are 
significantly more likely than non-Veterans to report musculoskeletal problems (arms or 
hands: 30% v 18%, legs or feet: 42% v 29%, back or neck: 37% v 26%). 
There is also a significant increase in alcohol abuse in young “early Service leavers”. 

The vast majority of Veterans make a satisfactory adjustment to civilian life, however, as 
noted previously, the small number who do not, can have complex health needs that may 
also affect their families.  

How can H&WBBs help? 

We think there are possibly 560,000 veterans in the North West, of which two thirds will be 
aged 65 or over, and half will be aged over 75. An “average” GP Practice will have 384 
Veterans as patients. These figures are only rough estimates. Nationally, we believe there 
are 3million Veterans, the same number as those who have diabetes . 
I need your help firstly, to identify the true number of Veterans in order that your JSNA can 
be more accurate, and target Health resources, and secondly to increase the knowledge 
and awareness of all those who deal with the Health and Social Care needs of Veterans of 
how those needs present and can be addressed. 

Health Education England has recently produced an excellent e learning programme3  that 
provides training. to increase this knowledge. 

I have written to all CCGs and LMCs in the North West ( see Appendix A) asking GP 

Page 10



Practices to record the status of Veterans with the relevant computer codes. These codes 
can then searched and provide the numbers for your JSNA. 

In conclusion: 

I am not pleading a case for special treatment for Veterans, but the evidence shows that 
they can have particular health needs related to their previous military service. The better 
we are able to identify Veterans, the more accurately we are able to target Health and 
Social Care resources. 

RG Jackson 

RG Jackson TD VR 
Chairman 
NHS Armed Forces Network NW 

Resources 

1. This is the latest annual Government survey of the Health of Veterans: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/annual-population-survey-uk-armed-forces-
veterans-residing-in-great-britain-2015 

2. This is the 2014 Royal British Legion survey: 
https://www.britishlegion.org.uk/media/2275/2014householdsurveyreport.pdf 

3. This is the Health Education England e Learning package:  
http://www.e-lfh.org.uk/programmes/armedforces 

4. This is the Forces in Mind Report  Executive summary on JSNAs: 
http://www.fim-trust.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/20150623-Call-to-MInd-Executive-
Summary-23rd-June-20151.pdf 

Appendix 1.:  Letter to CCGs and LMCs 

Page 11

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/annual-population-survey-uk-armed-forces-veterans-residing-in-great-britain-2015
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/annual-population-survey-uk-armed-forces-veterans-residing-in-great-britain-2015
https://www.britishlegion.org.uk/media/2275/2014householdsurveyreport.pdf
http://www.e-lfh.org.uk/programmes/armedforces
http://www.e-lfh.org.uk/programmes/armedforces
http://www.fim-trust.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/20150623-Call-to-MInd-Executive-Summary-23rd-June-20151.pdf
http://www.fim-trust.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/20150623-Call-to-MInd-Executive-Summary-23rd-June-20151.pdf


!  
Issued electronically to : 

all Northwest LMCs 
Lancashire CCGs 
Greater Manchester CCGs Cheshire and Merseyside CCGs  

Dear Colleague  

HEALTH CARE FOR THE ARMED FORCES VETERANS: FINDING THE FORGOTTEN  

I write as Chairman of the NHS Armed Forces Network (North West), one of ten regional 
bodies advising the NHS and others on delivering Health Care to the Armed Forces and 
Veterans.  

Ex-Servicemen and women may have special needs due to physical or mental injuries and 
illness sustained in the line of duty. The Armed Forces Covenant acknowledges the Gov-
ernment’s recognition of this, and requires the NHS and others to give Service personnel 
and Veterans priority, where their health has been affected by military duties. We believe 
there are approximately 526,000 Veterans in the NW, but we need accurate data.  

As we approach Remembrance Sunday, and pay our respects to those who gave their 
lives for our nation, I need your help in Finding the Forgotten. I want to find 10,000 addi-
tional Veterans by Christmas.  

As a (retired) GP, I am wary of asking Practices to take on yet another task, but I feel this 
can be achieved by normal history taking and new patient registration. I would be grateful 
if GP Practice staff could complete the section on the GMS1 form for new patients, “to be 
completed if you are returning from the Armed Forces” when relevant. Everyone doing so, 
and all who are identified as a Veteran through, for instance, history taking in a consulta-
tion, should have the appropriate Read code for Veterans entered in their records (an av-
erage Practice of 8000 patients has around 384 Veterans).  

Chief Officer: Stuart North Chair: Dr. Kiran Patel NHS Bury Clinical Commissioning 
Group  

 
Our vision is to continually improve Bury’s Health and Wellbeing by listening to you 
and working together across boundaries  

The Read Codes for Military Veterans are as outlined below:  

Page 12



System 1 TPP clinical systems: use XaX3N (code for Military Veteran) 
EMIS Web, Vision, Microtest clinical systems: use 13Ji (code for Military Veteran)  

This enables Health & Wellbeing Boards to collect anonymised figures on the number of 
Veterans, for their Joint Strategic Needs Assessments so that Health resources can be fo-
cused accordingly.  

When Veterans are referred to hospital for treatment of illness or injury related to their mili-
tary service, their status as Veterans should be noted in order that the Military Covenant 
can give them priority where appropriate.  

NHS Health Education England’s free e-learning pack for all Healthcare professionals, 
clinical and administrative (http://www.e-lfh.org.uk/programmes/armedforces ) tells you all 
you need to know about health care for the Armed Forces Community.  

A Press Release will be issued on 7 Nov 16, asking Veterans to make their status known; 
and in support of this, I am asking that you forward this letter to GP Practices within your 
locality as soon as possible so that they are aware of the campaign.  

Yours sincerely,  

RG Jackson  

Dr Robin Jackson TD VR 
Chairman, NHS Armed Forces Network North West NHS Bury Clinical Commissioning 
Group  
21 Silver Street 
Bury 
Lancashire 
BL9 0EN  

Tel: 0161 762 3100 
Email: robin.jackson3@nhs.net 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Public Health Priorities Group 
Update on key areas 

December 2016 
 

In order to improve Trafford’s healthy life expectancy, and reduce the inequality gap, 
five key areas for action were identified.  Progress against these is listed below. 
 
Reducing the impact of poor mental health 
We are in the process of developing a section of the JSNA about Mental Health in 
Trafford. Developed using the life course approach the section will include 
information about the causes, prevalence and impacts of poor mental health on our 
population. The section will include local initiatives that aim to improve mental 
wellbeing and provide a set of evidence based recommendation for local partners.  
 
A Transformation Bid has been submitted which focusses on improving the poor 
physical health outcomes of our citizens with Serious Mental Illness.  Trafford 
performs particularly poorly on this measure, with our residents with a SMI 3 times 
more likely to die prematurely than the general population. The proposed new 
system which incorporates specialist physical health nurses and health trainers, will 
support citizens with a SMI to improve their physical health and mitigate the 
iatrogenic effects of medications. The nurses working alongside primary care and the 
TCC will engage of those citizens who may find it more difficult to manage and 
improve their health due to their diagnosis.  
 
Improving the Early Diagnosis of Cancer and Increase Cancer Screening 
Rates.  
Public Health are working in partnership with the CCG and others to develop a local 
Cancer Action Plan. Public Health are leading the Prevention and Early Diagnosis 
work stream. The Plan will be agreed by the CCG in January.  
 
Actions currently being implemented include: 

 the development  of a Primary Care Cancer Champions Network. This 
programme aims to improve cancer promotion capacity in primary care by 
upskilling staff to improve systems and processes in the practice which aim to 
improve patient outcomes. The cancer champion is a non-clinical member of staff 
who works with their practice leadership team to identify an area which needs 
improvement and then leads on this, examples include, health promotion displays 
in practices, coding or invite systems.  

 a programme has also begun with Councillors to engage communities in cancer 
prevention and early diagnosis.  

 continuing the focus on improving cervical screening uptake in primary care.  

 Practice improvement scheme whereby CRUK, Beating Bowel Cancer and Bowel 
Cancer Screening Programme offer targeted support to practices to improve 
screening rates.  

 
Reducing physical inactivity 
Under the umbrella of the Physical Activity Vision for Trafford, we have been both 
developing pledges with partner organisations regarding increasing activity, and also 
undertaking a number of specific pieces of work aimed at reducing physical 
inactivity, particularly in higher risk populations. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Examples include: 

 Working with the CCG to improve the support and advice given by GPs in 
relation to the health benefits of physical activity.  GPs will be able to refer 
inactive patients to the Active Living Managers within Trafford Leisure.  They 
will then be offered a lifestyle assessment, and encouraged and supported to 
increase their physical activity levels  through engaging with a range of 
services (both within and outside Trafford Leisure’s direct provision) or 
through making lifestyle changes such as walking or cycling, or taking up 
more active hobbies. We are starting with the identification of people with 
diabetes or pre-diabetes, or frailty, in order to test the referral system and 
capacity to respond. 

 There is a greater likelihood of older people being inactive, and the 
consequences of this can be devastating. We are engaging with Greater 
Sport to identify the funding opportunities aimed at this population, and we 
are also improving the range and number of classes aimed at reducing the 
risk of falls in older people. We have expanded the Healthy Hearts and Hips 
offer, and have an ongoing training programme for Postural Stability 
Instructors.  This is enabling us to offer more classes at the NICE 
recommended standard.  We have also increased the rehabilitation services 
for people following a fall or other significant event (such as a heart attack or 
respiratory problems).  We are putting together a comprehensive falls 
prevention proposal into Trafford’s Transformation fund bid, and increasing 
physical activity plays a large part in this. 

 Working with employers to promote physical activity levels among the 
workforce, including through the promotion of active travel.  This will include 
engagement with TfGM on transport improvements, in order to encourage 
people to walk, cycle or use public transport 

 Working on improving physical literacy in early years, through engagement 
with health visitors and others in promoting and encouraging active play in 
young children 

 The four Trafford neighbourhood partnerships are currently reviewing their 
local priorities.  Sale has identified physical activity as a priority area, and we 
held a very well attended and successful event looking at the opportunities 
for increasing physical activity in the area.  A number of organisational and 
individual pledges were received, and we are now following these up to see 
what support (if any) might be needed to deliver these. 

 
 

Tobacco Control 
Smoking remains the largest contributor to premature mortality in the borough.  
While our overall rates of smoking are in line with the England average, people in the 
‘routine and manual workers’ group have nearly twice the rate of our general 
population.  In this group the rates are higher than the England average for this 
population, and gap appears to be increasing.  Tobacco Control policies are being 
reviewed across Trafford, with a reinvigorated Tobacco Control Steering 
Group.   Consideration is being given to the undertaking of a peer-review known as 
CLeaR, which will assist us in understanding where our services or policies are 
currently falling short. 
 

Page 16



 The decommissioning of the Specialist Stop Smoking service has led to some 
confusion about services available, but GP Practices and pharmacies throughout 
Trafford are still providing the same services and signposting to smokers wishing to 
quit.  Support is now available through the One You service provided by BluSCI, but 
there is no longer a specialist support for the heavily addicted smoker or those with 
long term conditions who need a tailored offer. We are assessing the impact of this 
change and are developing contingency plans to address any shortfall in outcomes. 
New mechanisms are being put in place to ensure that the same quality of data 
collection that has been undertaken for the last decade will continue including 
reporting to the NHS Digital to allow comparison with other areas of the effectiveness 
of the Trafford offer. 

 
 

Eleanor Roaf / Helen Gollins / Julie Hotchkiss 
Public Health Trafford 
12.12.16 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Trafford Health and Wellbeing Board 

Delivering the Health and Wellbeing Board Priorities: a 5 year Action Plan 

In the refresh of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016- 19, it was agreed that the 

Board would focus on some of the underlying causes of our inequalities and 

relatively poor performance on healthy life expectancy.  The areas identified for 

focussed attention were tobacco control; alcohol; physical inactivity; early 

identification and screening for cancer; and reducing the negative impact of mental 

illness.  Addressing these issues will also have a positive impact on our premature 

mortality rates, where we are currently performing at 14/15 of our statistical 

neighbours. 

We have been working on each of the areas through the existing governance 

structures, such as the Sports and Physical Activity Partnership, or the Tobacco 

Steering Group. There has been some progress made in each of the topic areas, but 

it is apparent that we have not yet taken a consistent approach to programme 

management and project planning within these workstreams. 

Therefore, for each of the five priorities we propose undertaking the same process, 

and to use the Public Health Delivery Group to oversee the process and report back 

to the HWBB. 

The suggested process is as follows: 

 Gathering evidence such as NICE guidance and Public Health England 

reviews  

 Identifying any Greater Manchester plans which influence the agenda, and 

identify potential partners such as neighbouring authorities to maximise use of 

staff time and other resources 

  Gather examples of best  practice from elsewhere 

 Auditing current situation in Trafford  

o Council Policy review 

o Policies in other Health & Wellbeing partners 

o Council Commissioned services contributing to the priority 

o CCG commissioned services contributing to the priority 

o Identifying the extent to which  “levers” , such as licensing, planning 

and Trading Standards have been used 

 Produce a detailed action plan with responsibilities clearly assigned 

 Assign responsibility for project management and reporting to identified 

groups, and named individuals within these, for each priority, for example: 

o  Tobacco Steering group 

o Alcohol Harm Reduction Group – to be initiated 

o Sport and Physical Activity Group 

o Cancer Early Intervention and Prevention Sub-group of the Trafford 

Cancer Local Implementation Group  

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



o Mental Health Partnership Group  (in development) 

The baseline performance and targets on the key indicators are those currently 

adopted by the HWB. The performance will be measured both against statistical 

neighbours, and, wherever possible, through reducing internal variation within 

Trafford. 

 

Eleanor Roaf 

Interim DPH 

12.1.17 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Traff

Pha

(30TH 

ford H

armac

DRAF

Janua

Health 

eutica

T FOR

ary 201

and W

al Nee

R CON

17 to 

Wellbe

eds Ass

SULTA

31st M

eing B

sessm

ATION

March 

Board 

ment 

N 

2017)

 

 

) 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 2 of 80 
Version 1.14 (Consultation) 
 

Contents Page 

1.  Executive Summary ......................................................................................................................... 4 

1.1  Introduction ............................................................................................................................ 4 

1.2  How the assessment was undertaken .................................................................................... 4 

1.3  Consultation (to be completed post consultation) ................................................................. 5 

1.4  Conclusions ............................................................................................................................. 5 

2.  Introduction .................................................................................................................................... 7 

2.1  Background and legislation ..................................................................................................... 7 

2.2  HWB duties in respect of the PNA .......................................................................................... 8 

2.3  Purpose of a PNA .................................................................................................................... 8 

2.4  Circumstances under which the PNA is to be revised or updated.......................................... 9 

2.5  Scope of the PNA .................................................................................................................... 9 

2.6  Minimum requirements for the PNA .................................................................................... 10 

3.  How the assessment was undertaken .......................................................................................... 11 

3.1  Development of the PNA ...................................................................................................... 11 

3.2  PNA steering group ............................................................................................................... 13 

3.3  PNA neighbourhoods ............................................................................................................ 13 

3.4  Patient and public engagement ............................................................................................ 14 

3.5  Contractor engagement ........................................................................................................ 16 

3.6  Pharmaceutical services ........................................................................................................ 17 

3.7  Consultation (To be completed post consultation) .............................................................. 23 

4.  Context in Trafford ........................................................................................................................ 23 

4.1  Overview ............................................................................................................................... 23 

4.2  Population change ................................................................................................................ 24 

4.3  Deprivation............................................................................................................................ 26 

4.4  Life expectancy...................................................................................................................... 29 

4.5  Key findings from current data ............................................................................................. 29 

4.6  Population characteristics health needs ............................................................................... 30 

5.  Other key health outcomes for Trafford ....................................................................................... 40 

5.1  Health and Wellbeing Strategy Vision .................................................................................. 40 

5.2  Public Health Outcomes ........................................................................................................ 41 

6.  Provision of pharmaceutical services ............................................................................................ 46 

6.1  Necessary services ‐ current provision within the HWB’s area ............................................ 46 

6.2  Necessary services: current provision outside the HWB’s area ........................................... 57 

6.3  Other relevant services ‐ current provision .......................................................................... 57 

6.4  Future provision – necessary and other relevant services ................................................... 59 

7.  Neighbourhoods for the purpose of the PNA ............................................................................... 61 

7.1 Overview ..................................................................................................................................... 61 

7.2 Sale Neighbourhood ................................................................................................................... 62 

7.3 Old Trafford & Stretford Neighbourhood ................................................................................... 63 

7.4 South Trafford Neighbourhood .................................................................................................. 64 

7.5 Urmston & Partington Neighbourhood ...................................................................................... 65 

8.  How pharmaceutical services can help support a healthier population ...................................... 67 

Page 22



 

Page 3 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

8.1 Essential Services (ES) ................................................................................................................. 67 

8.2 Advanced Services ...................................................................................................................... 69 

8.3 Enhanced services ....................................................................................................................... 69 

8.4 NHS Trafford CCG locally commissioned services ....................................................................... 70 

8.5 Trafford Council locally commissioned services (LCS) ................................................................ 71 

9.  Necessary services ‐ gaps in provision of pharmaceutical services .............................................. 75 

10.  Improvements and better access: gaps in provision of pharmaceutical services......................... 76 

11.  Conclusions (for the purpose of Schedule 1 to the 2013 Regulations) ......................................... 77 

11.1 Current provision – necessary and other relevant services ...................................................... 77 

11.2 Necessary services – gaps in provision ..................................................................................... 77 

11.3 Future provision of necessary services ..................................................................................... 78 

11.4 Improvements and better access – gaps in provision .............................................................. 79 

11.5 Other NHS Services ................................................................................................................... 80 

11.6 How the assessment was carried out ....................................................................................... 80 

11.7 Map of provision ....................................................................................................................... 80 

 

 

All maps contained in this document are available in a separate appendix in a larger format  

   

Page 23



 

Page 4 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

1. Executive Summary 

1.1 Introduction 
From 1st April 2013, Trafford Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) assumed a statutory responsibility 

to publish and keep up‐to‐date a statement of the needs for pharmaceutical services for the 

population in its area, referred to as a ‘pharmaceutical needs assessment’ (PNA). 

The PNA aims to identify whether current pharmaceutical service provision meets the needs of the 

population. The PNA considers whether there are any gaps to service delivery. 

The PNA will be used by NHS England in its determination as to whether to approve applications to 

join the pharmaceutical list under The National Health Service (Pharmaceutical and Local 

Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013. The relevant NHS England area team (AT) will then 

review the application and decide if there is a need for a new pharmacy in the proposed location. 

When making the decision NHS England is required to refer to the local PNA.  

The PNA may also be used to inform commissioners such as clinical commissioning groups (CCG) and 

local authorities (LA), of the current provision of pharmaceutical services and where there are any 

gaps in relation to the local health priorities.  

Trafford Council has a population of 233, 288 (2015 Mid‐year estimate). This equates to a 0.4% 

increase in population from the 2014 mid‐year estimate. 

1.2  How the assessment was undertaken 

This PNA describes the needs for the population of Trafford. It considers current provision of 

pharmaceutical services across four neighbourhoods in the Trafford HWB area: 

 Sale: Ashton upon Mersey, Brooklands, Bucklow St Martins (Sale), Priory, Sale Moor and St 

Marys 

 Old Trafford & Stretford: Clifford, Davyhulme East (Old Trafford), Gorse Hill, Longford, Old 

Trafford and Stretford  

 South Trafford: Altrincham, Bowdon, Broadheath, Hale Barns, Hale Central, Timperley and 

Village. 

 Urmston & Partington: Bucklow St Martins (Partington), Davyhulme East (Urmston), 

Davyhulme West, Flixton and Urmston. 

This approach was taken because: 

 This grouping of wards into neighbourhoods reflects the localities which are already in use 

by Trafford Council. 

 The majority of available healthcare data is collected at ward level and wards are a well‐

understood definition within the general population as they are used during local 

parliamentary elections. 

Page 24



 

Page 5 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

 The division of the two wards (Bucklow St Martins and Davyhulme East) ensures that the 

different areas are included in the appropriate neighbourhood. 

The PNA includes information on: 

 Pharmacies in Trafford and the services they currently provide, including dispensing, 

providing advice on health, medicines reviews and local public health services, such as 

smoking cessation, sexual health and support for drug users. 

 Other local pharmaceutical type services, including dispensing appliance contractors (DAC). 

 The results from patient and pharmacy contractor surveys. 

 Relevant maps relating to Trafford and providers of pharmaceutical services in the HWB 

area. 

 Services in neighbouring HWB areas that may affect the need for services in Trafford. 

 Potential gaps in provision that could be met by providing more pharmacy services, or 

through opening more pharmacies, and likely future needs. 

The HWB established a steering group to lead an engagement process to inform the development of 

the PNA. The group undertook a public survey and sought information from pharmacies, Trafford 

Council, NHS Trafford CCG and NHS England. 

1.3  Consultation (to be completed post consultation) 

As part of the PNA process there is a statutory provision that requires consultation of at least 60 

days to take place to establish if the pharmaceutical providers and services supporting the 

population in the HWB area are accurately reflected in the final PNA document. Trafford Council’s 

consultation ran from “DATE” until “DATE”. The responses received were used to inform the final 

conclusions which were collated and are now published as part of this PNA. 

The majority of respondents felt the PNA reflected: 

1.4  Conclusions 

THE CONCLUSIONS REACHED ARE BASED ON THE INFORMATION CURRENTLY CONTAINED WITHIN 

THE PNA. SHOULD ANYTHING OF RELEVANCE BE  IDENTIFIED DURING THE CONSULTATION THAT 

MAKES  IT  NECESSARY  TO  REVIEW  AND  ALTER  THE  CONCLUSION  THEN  THIS WILL  TAKE  PLACE 

ONCE THE CONSULTATION RESPONSES HAVE BEEN CONSIDERED. 

Taking into account the totality of the information available, the HWB considered the location, 

number, distribution and choice of pharmacies covering each neighbourhood, including the whole of 

Trafford HWB area, providing essential and advanced services during the standard core hours meet 

the needs of the population. 

The HWB has not received any significant information to conclude otherwise or any future specified 

circumstance that would alter that conclusion. 

   

Page 25



 

Page 6 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA: 

 No current gaps in the need for provision of essential services during normal working hours 

have been identified. 

 No current gaps in the provision of essential services outside normal working hours have 

been identified. 

 No current gaps in the provision of advanced and enhanced services have been identified. 

 No gaps have been identified in essential services that if provided either now or in the future 

would secure improvements, or better access, to essential services. 

 No gaps have been identified in the need for advanced services that if provided either now 

or in the future would secure improvements, or better access, to advanced services. 

 No gaps in respect of securing improvements, or better access, to other NHS services either 

now or in specified future circumstances have been identified. 

This is based on the following: 

 Trafford  has  28  pharmacies  per  100,000  population,  which  is  higher  than  the  Greater 

Manchester and England averages. 

 Trafford has fewer prescription  items dispensed per month per pharmacy than the Greater 

Manchester and England average. 

 The majority of residents live within 1.0 miles of a pharmacy. 

 The majority of residents can access a pharmacy within 15 to 30 minutes either by walking, 

public transport or driving. 

 The  location of pharmacies within each of  the  four neighbourhoods and across  the whole 

HWB area. 

 The  number  and  distribution  of  pharmacies within  each  of  the  four  neighbourhoods  and 

across the whole HWB area. 

 The  choice of pharmacies  covering each of  the  four neighbourhoods and  the whole HWB 

area. 

 All respondents to the public survey thought the  location of a pharmacy was  important or 

very important; no respondents to the public survey had any problems accessing a pharmacy 

due to location 

 90% of respondents to the public survey had no problems accessing a pharmacy due to their 

opening hours. 

 94%  of  respondents  to  the  public  survey  had  no  difficulty  accessing  a  pharmacy  of  their 

choice. 

 Trafford  has  a  choice  of  pharmacies  open  a  range  of  times  including  early  mornings, 

evenings and the weekend. 

 Trafford pharmacies offer a range of pharmaceutical services  to meet  the requirements of 

the population. 

The face of primary care is undergoing major change with the formation of the Greater Manchester 

Health and Social Care Partnership, which aims to lead to improvements in delivery of health and 

social care services for the people of Greater Manchester as part of the devolution process. 

This transformation will lead to greater delivery of care nearer to people’s homes or at home and a 

drive to increase self‐care for Trafford’s residents. How this will impact on the need for 

Page 26



 

Page 7 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

pharmaceutical services is difficult to quantify and it will be important that the HWB are mindful of 

the requirement for people to have access to pharmaceutical services as part of this transformation. 

This may mean that this PNA will need to be replaced earlier than the planned date of April 2020. 

2. Introduction 
This document has been prepared by Trafford’s Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) in accordance 

with the NHS Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services Regulations 2013, as amended. It 

replaces the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) previously published in 2014 and intended to 

remain in place until 31st March 2017. 

In the current NHS there is a need for the local health partners, NHS England, Trafford Council, NHS 

Trafford CCG, Trafford pharmacies and other providers of health and social care, to ensure that the 

health and pharmaceutical needs of the local population are met through the appropriate 

commissioning of services. 

There is also a need to ensure that those additional services commissioned by Trafford Council or 

NHS Trafford CCG from Trafford pharmacies are promoted to Trafford’s population to improve their 

uptake. 

The current providers of pharmaceutical services in Trafford are well placed to support the HWB in 

achieving the required outcomes identified as the health priorities outlined in its strategy. 

Glossary and acronyms are provided in Appendix 1. 

2.1  Background and legislation 

The Health Act 20091 made amendments to the National Health Service (NHS) Act 2006 stating that 

each PCT must in accordance with regulations: 

 Assess needs for pharmaceutical services in its area. 

 Publish a statement of its first assessment and of any revised assessment. 

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 transferred responsibility for the developing and updating of 

PNAs to HWBs.  

The preparation and consultation on the PNA should take account of the HWB’s Joint Strategic 

Needs Assessment (JSNA) and other relevant local strategies in order to prevent duplication of work 

and multiple consultations with health groups, patients and the public. 

Each PNA, published by the HWB will have a maximum lifetime of three years. HWBs will also be 

required to publish a revised assessment when significant changes to the need for pharmaceutical 

services are identified, unless this is considered a disproportionate response. 

   

                                                            
1 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/21/part/3/crossheading/pharmaceutical‐services‐in‐england  

Page 27



 

Page 8 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

As part of developing their PNA, HWBs must undertake a consultation for a minimum of 60 days. The 

2013 Regulations list those persons and organisations that the HWB must consult. This list includes: 

 Any relevant local pharmaceutical committee (LPC) for the HWB area 

 Any local medical committee (LMC) for the HWB area 

 Any persons on the pharmaceutical lists and any dispensing GP practices in the HWB area 

 Any local HealthWatch organisation for the HWB area, and any other patient, consumer and 

community group which in the opinion of the HWB has an interest in the provision of 

pharmaceutical services in its area 

 Any NHS trust or NHS foundation trust in the HWB area 

 NHS England 

 Any neighbouring HWB 

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 also transferred responsibility for using PNAs as the basis for 

determining market entry to a pharmaceutical list from PCTs to NHS England. The PNA will be used 

by NHS England when making decisions on applications to open new pharmacies and dispensing 

appliance contractor premises; or applications from current pharmaceutical providers to change 

their existing regulatory requirements. 

Such decisions are appealable to the NHS Litigation Authority’s Family Health Services Appeal Unit 

(FHSAU), and decisions made on appeal can be challenged through the courts. 

PNAs will also inform the commissioning of enhanced services from pharmacies by NHS England, and 

the commissioning of services from pharmacies by the LA and other local commissioners, e.g. CCGs. 

2.2  HWB duties in respect of the PNA 

In summary Trafford HWB must:  

 Produce an updated PNA which complies with the regulatory requirements;  

 Publish its second PNA by 1st April 2017;  

 Publish subsequent PNAs on a three yearly basis;  

 Publish a subsequent PNA sooner when it identifies changes to the need for pharmaceutical 

services which are of a significant extent, unless to do so would be a disproportionate 

response to those changes; and  

 Produce supplementary statements in certain circumstances.  

2.3  Purpose of a PNA 

The purpose of the PNA is to assess and set out how the provision of pharmaceutical services can 

meet the health needs of the population of a HWB’s area for a period of up to three years, linking 

closely to the joint strategic needs assessment (JSNA). Whilst the JSNA focuses on the general health 

needs of the population of Trafford, the PNA looks at how those health needs can be met by 

pharmaceutical services commissioned by NHS England.  

If a person (a pharmacy or a dispensing appliance contractor) wants to provide pharmaceutical 

services, they are required to apply to NHS England to be included in the pharmaceutical list for the 

Page 28



 

Page 9 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

HWB’s area in which they wish to have premises. In general, their application must offer to meet a 

need that is set out in the HWB’s PNA, or to secure improvements or better access similarly 

identified in the PNA. There are however some exceptions to this e.g. applications offering benefits 

that were not foreseen when the PNA was published (‘unforeseen benefits applications’).  

As well as identifying if there is a need for additional premises, the PNA will also identify whether 

there is a need for an additional service or services, or whether improvements or better access to 

existing services are required. Identified needs, improvements or better access could either be 

current or could arise within the lifetime of the PNA. 

Whilst the PNA is primarily a document for NHS England to use to make commissioning decisions, it 

may also be used by LAs and CCGs. A robust PNA will ensure those who commission services from 

pharmacies and dispensing appliance contractors (DACs) are able to ensure services are targeted to 

areas of health need, and reduce the risk of overprovision in areas of less need. 

2.4  Circumstances under which the PNA is to be 

revised or updated 

It is important that the PNA reflects changes that affect the need for pharmaceutical services in 

Trafford. Where the HWB becomes aware that a change may require the PNA to be updated then a 

decision to revise the PNA will be made.  

Not all changes to pharmaceutical services will result in a change to the need for services. Where 

required, the HWB will issue supplementary statements to update the PNA as changes take place to 

the provision of services locally. 

2.5  Scope of the PNA 

A PNA is defined in the regulations as follows:  

The statement of the needs for pharmaceutical services which each HWB is required to publish by 

virtue of section 128A of the 2006 Act(1) (pharmaceutical needs assessments), whether it is the 

statement of its first assessment or of any revised assessment, is referred to in these Regulations as a 

pharmaceutical needs assessment.  

The pharmaceutical services to which each pharmaceutical needs assessment must relate are all the 

pharmaceutical services that may be provided under arrangements made by the NHS Commissioning 

Board (NHSCB) (now known as NHS England) for – 

 the provision of pharmaceutical services (including directed services) by a person on a 

pharmaceutical list  

 the provision of local pharmaceutical services under a Local Pharmaceutical services (LPS) 

scheme; or  

 the dispensing of drugs and appliances by a person on a dispensing doctors list (but not 

other NHS services that may be provided under arrangements made by the NHSCB with a 

dispensing doctor).  

Page 29



 

Page 10 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Pharmaceutical services are defined by reference to the regulations and directions governing 

pharmaceutical services provided by community pharmacies (which may be LPS providers), 

dispensing doctors and appliance contractors.  

Whether a service falls within the scope of pharmaceutical services for the purposes of the PNA 

depends on who the provider is and what is provided: 

For dispensing practices the scope of the service to be assessed in the PNA is the dispensing service. 

However, as there are no dispensing practices in Trafford, these are not considered in the document.  

For appliance contractors the scope of the service to be assessed in the PNA is the dispensing of 

appliances and the provision of appliance use review (AUR) and stoma appliance customisation 

(SAC). This means that, for the purposes of the PNA, it is concerned with whether patients have 

adequate access to dispensing services, including dispensing of appliances, AURs and SACs where 

these are undertaken by an appliance contractor but not concerned with other services appliance 

contractors may provide.  

For community pharmacy contractors the scope of the services to be assessed in the PNA is broad 

and comprehensive. It includes the essential, advanced and enhanced services elements of the 

pharmacy contract whether provided under the terms of services for pharmaceutical contractors or 

under LPS contracts.  

Other providers may deliver services that meet a particular pharmaceutical service need although 

they are not considered pharmaceutical services under the relevant regulations. It is therefore 

important that these are considered as part of the assessment. 

2.6  Minimum requirements for the PNA 

Schedule 1 of the NHS 2013 Regulations state that the PNA must include, as a minimum, a statement 

of the following: 

 Necessary services ‐ pharmaceutical services which have been assessed as required to meet 

a pharmaceutical need. This should include their current provision (within the HWB area and 

outside of the area) and any current or likely future gaps in provision.  

 Relevant services ‐ services which have secured improvements, or better access, to 

pharmaceutical services. This should include their current provision (within the HWB area 

and outside of the area) and any current or future gaps in provision.  

 Other NHS services, either provided or arranged by a LA, NHS England, a CCG, an NHS Trust 

or Foundation Trust which either impact upon the need for pharmaceutical services, or 

which would secure improvements, or better access to, pharmaceutical services within the 

area.  

 A map showing the premises where pharmaceutical services are provided.  

 An explanation of how the assessment was made. 

   

Page 30



 

Page 11 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

3. How the assessment was undertaken 

3.1  Development of the PNA 

The process of developing the PNA has taken into account the requirement to involve and consult 

people about changes to health services. The specific legislative requirements in relation to 

development of PNAs were considered. 

Stage 1 

The PNA was developed using a project management approach. A steering group was established 

which met regularly during the development of the PNA. The steering group included representation 

from the following groups: 

 Trafford Public Health team  

 Greater Manchester Shared Service 

 NHS England area team 

 Greater Manchester Local Pharmaceutical Committee (GM LPC)  

 NHS Trafford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

 Health Watch representative 

Stakeholder views were gathered through feedback in meetings, via telephone and email. 

Stage 2 

The contractor questionnaire and patient survey were approved by the steering group. The 

contractor questionnaire was undertaken during September 2016. A patient survey was also 

undertaken in October 2016 of the views of Trafford residents on the current pharmaceutical 

services provision.  

Once completed the results of both were analysed. The contractor survey results were validated 

against data already held. 

HealthWatch were involved in capturing opinions on the current provision of pharmaceutical and 

locally commissioned services in their communities. This included on how people use local 

pharmacies, why they use them, ease of access and what improvements in service provision should 

be considered. 

The LPC was asked on behalf of contractors what their views on what current services were effective 

and those services that required improvement were captured. 

   

Page 31



 

Page 12 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Stage 3 

The content of the PNA including demographics, neighbourhoods and background information was 

approved by the steering group. In looking at the health needs of the local population, Trafford’s 

JSNA, NHS Trafford CCG’s Annual Report, the HWB’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013‐16 

and other health data were considered.  

Assessing the need for pharmaceutical services is a complex process. In addition to taking account of 

all views submitted from the stakeholders outlined above, this PNA considered a number of factors, 

including: 

 The size and demography of the population across Trafford.  

 Whether there is adequate access to pharmaceutical services across Trafford.  

 Different needs of different neighbourhoods within Trafford.  

 Pharmaceutical services provided in the area of neighbouring HWBs which affect the need 

for pharmaceutical services in Trafford.  

 Other NHS services provided in or outside its area which affect the need for pharmaceutical 

services in Trafford.  

 Whether further provision of pharmaceutical services would secure improvements, or better 

access, to pharmaceutical services, or pharmaceutical services of a specified type, in the 

area.  

 Likely changes to needs in the future occurring due to changes to the size of the population, 

the demography of the population, and risks to the health or wellbeing of people in its area 

which could influence an analysis to identify gaps in the provision of pharmaceutical 

services.  

Stage 4 

As required by legislation, a consultation exercise with stakeholders was carried out for 60 days. The 

list of stakeholders consulted included the following groups: 

 GM LPC.  

 Salford & Trafford Local Medical Committee Local Medical Committee (LMC)  

 Persons on the pharmaceutical list and ESPLPS.  

 Trafford HealthWatch.  

 Other patient, consumer and community groups in the area with an interest in the provision 

of pharmaceutical services in the area. 

 Central Manchester University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. 

 NHS England. 

 Neighbouring HWBs. (Cheshire East, Manchester, Salford and Warrington) 

   

Page 32



 

Page 13 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

3.2  PNA steering group 

The steering group has been responsible for reviewing the PNA to ensure it meets the statutory 

requirements. The steering group approved all public facing documentation. Members of the 

steering group are provided at Appendix 2. 

3.3  PNA neighbourhoods 

Four neighbourhoods have been defined for the PNA by the steering group, these are:  

 Sale: Ashton upon Mersey, Brooklands, Bucklow St Martins (Sale), Priory, Sale Moor and St 

Marys 

 Old Trafford & Stretford: Clifford, Davyhulme East (Old Trafford), Gorse Hill, Longford, Old 

Trafford and Stretford  

 South Trafford: Altrincham, Bowdon, Broadheath, Hale Barns, Hale Central, Timperley and 

Village. 

 Urmston & Partington: Bucklow St Martins (Partington), Davyhulme East (Urmston), 

Davyhulme West, Flixton and Urmston. 

The PNA steering group considered how the areas in Trafford could be defined for the PNA and 

agreed to use Trafford Council’s system of neighbourhoods bringing wards together into the four 

neighbourhoods above, see Map 1. Bucklow St Martins Ward for the purposes of defining 

neighbourhoods is divided into two, the Sale area and the Partington area; as is the Davyhulme East 

Ward, Urmston and Old Trafford. 

Wards are used because the majority of available healthcare data is collected at ward level and 

wards are a well‐understood definition within the general population as they are used during local 

parliamentary elections. 

Map 1 ‐ Trafford Neighbourhoods and Wards (Trafford Innovation & Intelligence Lab) (See Appendix 
11 for full size map) 

 

Trafford JSNA discusses the characteristics and identified health needs of the whole population living 

within the HWB area.  

Page 33



 

Page 14 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

In determining the needs of the different neighbourhoods the data and information contained on 

Trafford Innovation and Intelligence Lab2 was used to reach conclusions and determine local 

population needs. 

Where it has been possible to identify the different needs of people living within these 

neighbourhoods including those sharing a protected characteristic, this has been addressed in the 

PNA as well as the needs of other patient groups; although some health information can be 

represented at a practice population level which is useful when focusing on the four different 

neighbourhoods. 

3.4  Patient and public engagement 

In order to gain the views of patients and the public on pharmaceutical services, a questionnaire was 

developed and made available on the council’s website on 26th September 2016, closing on 21st 

October 2016 prior to the statutory consultation period. The results of the survey, which identifies 

the questions asked, can be found in Appendix 3. 

There were 53  responses  to  the Trafford Public survey which was promoted  through direct email, 

twitter, etc. All but one respondent appear  to be  from  the Trafford area with one person giving a 

Manchester post code. 53 respondents represents 0.03% of Trafford’s population (aged 15 years and 

over), therefore, we can only use this survey as a general picture of public opinion. 

The lack of response to the public survey could indicates that residents in Trafford do not see access 

to pharmacies as an issue and therefore not worth taking the time to complete the survey. 

Of the 53, 71% (35) of the responders were female and the majority of respondents were between 

the age of 45 and 64. The majority of respondents classed themselves as White British, 88% (43), this 

is representative of the borough population, which is 88% White British. 

Only 14% of respondents considered themselves to have a disability.  

3.4.1 Choice of Pharmacy 

92%  of  respondents  used  a  regular  pharmacy  and  the  two most  selected  reasons  for  using  one 

pharmacy regularly was that the pharmacy was near to home or near to doctors which 55% of these 

respondents accessed by walking. 43% accessed their regular pharmacy in a car either as a driver or 

passenger.  

3.4.2 Access to Pharmaceutical Services 

No respondents had any issues accessing a pharmacy due to its location and 90% had no problems 

accessing one due to opening times. Of those that did have problems accessing a pharmacy most 

raised the closure of their local pharmacy at weekends, in particular Saturday. 

76% of respondents were aware of pharmacies offering extended hours on early mornings, late 

nights, weekends and bank holidays. Although opening times are available on NHS Choices and the 

public can search for pharmacies near their post code; consideration should be given to wider 

                                                            
2 Trafford Innovation and Intelligence Lab is available at http://www.infotrafford.org.uk/lab  

Page 34



 

Page 15 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

advertising of those pharmacies that provide extended hours. 46% of respondents had used these 

pharmacies during their extended hours. 

3.4.3 Development of Pharmacy Services 

Services that had been used and either met the respondents’ needs or some of their needs were: 

 Alcohol support services – 1.96% (1) 

 Blood pressure check – 13.73% (7) 

 Early morning opening (before 9 a.m.) – 21.57% (11) 

 Electronic prescription service – 64.00% (31) 

 Emergency hormonal contraception (morning after pill) – 8.00% (4) 

 Had a flu vaccination – 18% (9) 

 Health tests (e.g. cholesterol) – 5.88% (3) 

 Healthy weight advice – 1.96% (1) 

 Late opening (after 7 p.m.) – 31.37% (16) 

 Long term condition advice – 19.61% (10) 

 Medicines Use Review – 24.00% (12) 

 Minor ailment service – 29.41% (15) 

 Purchased antimalarial – 13.73% (7) 

 Purchased over the counter medicines – 84.31% (43) 

 Respiratory services e.g. inhaler technique – 7.84% (4) 

 Stop smoking service _ 1.96% (1) 

 Substance misuse service – 1.96% (1) 

18% of respondents would like to see pharmacy deliver additional services; greater detail is given in 

Table 1. 

Table 1 ‐ Responses to question 21 of the public survey. Are there any other services you would 
like your pharmacy to offer? 

If yes, please explain 

Yes I want my pharmacy to be able to provide a full and complete service, this might mean putting 
some services which we have to get at the doctors in the chemist because they are more friendly 
and approachable. 

If possible more of a community focus looking at early years and prevention work. 

Cold drinks on sale in summer e.g. water flavoured water and juices, smoothies. 

Weight management and culturally appropriate healthy eating advice. 

Paediatric services 

Pay and go weighing scales instead of having to pay to go to Slimming World. 

Longer opening times. 

To be able to have blood samples taken. As now there are no local services. 

Travel vaccinations/advice 

     

Page 35



 

Page 16 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

96% of respondents are either very satisfied or satisfied with the overall service provided by their 

pharmacy. 

3.5  Contractor engagement 

At the same time as the initial patient and public engagement questionnaire, an online contractor 

questionnaire was undertaken (Appendix 4). 

The contractor questionnaire provided an opportunity to validate the information provided by NHS 

England in respect of the hours and services provided. The questionnaire asked a number of 

questions outside the scope of the PNA, which will provide commissioners with valuable information 

related to governance and IT.  

The questionnaire was distributed by GM LPC to all 65 pharmacies in Trafford HWB area and ran 

from 15th September 2016 until 21st October 2016. 20 pharmacies completed the survey (31%), 

which was poor and failed to provide a complete picture of service delivery in Trafford. 

Because of the poor response data provided by commissioners has been used to provide the 

information with regard to service delivery by pharmacies. 

3.5.1 Advanced services 

See information contained in section 6.0. 

3.5.2 Enhanced and locally commissioned services 

According to data provided by commissioners the following information is available: 

Table 2 ‐ Number of pharmacies providing enhanced and locally commissioned services 

Commissioner  Service  Number of pharmacies 
commissioned 

Trafford Council  Emergency Hormonal Contraception  42 

  Chlamydia Screening  31 

  Chlamydia Treatment  5 

  Supervised Methadone/ Buprenorphine 
Consumption 

36 

  Needle Exchange  17 

  Smoking Advice  35 

  Smoking Cessation NRT  34 

  Health Checks (pilot)  5 

NHS Trafford CCG  Minor Ailment Scheme  57 

  Palliative Care Scheme  9 

  Do Not Dispense Scheme (pilot)  8 

NHS England  Inhaler Technique Service  14 

 

Full details of which pharmacies are commissioned can be found in Appendix 5.  

Appendix 5 does not contain details of those pharmacies commissioned to deliver the Do Not 

Dispense Scheme as the data was not available at the time of publication. It should be noted that the 

Page 36



 

Page 17 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Inhaler Technique Service is currently under review and details of commissioned pharmacies may 

change. 

3.5.3 Non‐NHS services 

Pharmacies that did respond to the survey have staff that speak a number of  languages other than 

English, including: Arabic, Cantonese, Hindi, Kurdish, Punjabi, Urdu and Yoruba. 

IT  facilities  available  to  staff  in  the  pharmacies  that  responded  are  variable;  however,  the 

majority  have  some  access  to  the  internet  and  have  an  email  address  that  can  be  used  for 

official communications. 

The new Quality Payment mentioned in 3.6.1 will require pharmacies to have a generic NHS mail 

account. This is currently being actioned and should be in place during 2017/18. 

3.6  Pharmaceutical services 

The services that a PNA must include are defined within both the NHS Act 2006 and the NHS 

(Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013, as amended (the 2013 

regulations). 

Pharmaceutical services may be provided by: 

 A pharmacy contractor who is included in the pharmaceutical list for the area of the HWB;  

 A pharmacy contractor who is included in the local pharmaceutical services (LPS) list for the 

area of the HWB;  

 A DAC who is included in the pharmaceutical list held for the area of the HWB; and  

 A doctor who is included in a dispensing doctor list held for the area of the HWB.  

NHS England is responsible for preparing, maintaining and publishing the pharmaceutical list. It 

should be noted, however, for Trafford HWB there is no dispensing doctor list as there are no 

dispensing doctors within the HWB’s area. 

Contractors may operate as either a sole trader, partnership or a body corporate. The Medicines Act 

1968 governs who can be a pharmacy contractor, but there is no restriction on who can operate as a 

DAC. 

3.6.1 Pharmaceutical services provided by pharmacy contractors 

Unlike for GPs, dentists and optometrists, NHS England does not hold contracts with pharmacy 

contractors. Instead they provide services under a contractual framework, details of which (their 

terms of service) are set out in schedule 4 of the 2013 regulations and also in the Pharmaceutical 

Services (Advanced and Enhanced Services) (England) Directions 2013 as amended (the 2013 

directions).  

Pharmacy contractors may provide three types of services that fall within the definition of 

pharmaceutical services. These are as follows: 

  Essential services – all pharmacies must provide these services: 

Page 37



 

Page 18 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

 Dispensing of prescriptions (both electronic and non‐electronic), including urgent 

supply of a drug or appliance without a prescription  

 Dispensing of repeatable prescriptions  

 Disposal of unwanted drugs  

 Promotion of healthy lifestyles  

 Signposting  

 Support for self‐care  

 Advanced services – pharmacies may choose whether to provide these services or not. If 

they choose to provide one or more of the advanced services they must meet certain 

requirements and must be fully compliant with the essential services and clinical governance 

requirements: 

 Medicine use review and prescription intervention services (more commonly 

referred to as the medicine use review or MUR service).  

 New medicine service.  

 Stoma appliance customisation.  

 Appliance use review (AUR).  

 Community Pharmacy Seasonal Influenza Vaccination programme (this advanced 

service has been commissioned on an annual basis since September 2015) 

 NHS Urgent Medicine Supply Advanced Service (NUMSAS). (Commissioned from 1st 

December 2016 to 31st March 2018 – rolled out to the North West January 2017.) 

 Enhanced  services  –  service  specifications  for  this  type  of  service  are  developed  by NHS 

England and then commissioned to meet specific health needs. 

 

The  following  enhanced  service  is  commissioned  by  NHS  England within  Trafford’s  HWB 

area: 

 Inhaler technique3 

Underpinning the provision of all of these services is the requirement on each pharmacy to 

participate in a system of clinical governance. This system is set out within the 2013 regulations and 

includes:  

 A patient and public involvement programme  

 A clinical audit programme  

 A risk management programme  

 A clinical effectiveness programme  

 A staffing and staff programme  

  An information governance programme  

 A premises standards programme  

Further support to improving quality in pharmacies has been provided through a new Quality 

Payments (QP) scheme, introduced for the 2017/2018 Community Pharmacy Contractual 

                                                            
3 This service is currently being reviewed and commissioned pharmacies may change. 

Page 38



 

Page 19 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Framework. In order to access the additional funding available through the QP, pharmacies need to 

achieve the following: 

1) the contractor must be offering at the pharmacy Medicines Use Reviews (MUR) or the New 

Medicine Service (NMS) or must be registered to provide the NHS Urgent Medicine Supply 

Advanced Service (NUMSAS); 

2) the NHS Choices entry for the pharmacy must be up to date; 

3) pharmacy staff at the pharmacy must be able to send and receive NHS mail; and 

4) the contractor must be able to demonstrate ongoing utilisation of the Electronic Prescription 

Service (EPS) at the pharmacy premises. 

The majority of pharmacies are required to open for 40 hours per week, and these are referred to as 

core opening hours, but many choose to open for longer and these hours are referred to as 

supplementary opening hours. 

Between April 2005 and August 2012, some contractors successfully applied to open new premises 

on the basis of being open for 100 core opening hours per week (referred to as 100 hour 

pharmacies), which means that they are required to be open for 100 hours per week, 52 weeks of 

the year (with the exception of weeks which contain a bank or public holiday, or Easter Sunday).  

These 100 hour pharmacies remain under an obligation to be open for 100 hours per week. In 

addition these pharmacies may open for longer hours. There are nine pharmacies in Trafford with 

100 hour contracts, and residents may also choose to use such pharmacies outside of the borough.  

During the next three years pharmacy contractors will be under increasing financial pressure, due to 

potential funding changes, and there is a likelihood that some contractors may close with the 

possibility that Trafford residents may lose access to the extended hours provided by some 

pharmacy contractors and this could result in a gap in provision. The HWB is mindful that it would 

wish to keep the number of hours covered currently across Trafford as a minimum and would not 

want to see a reduction in the hours of access in any area. 

Map 2 ‐ Pharmacy Contractor Type (See Appendix 11 for full size map) 

 

The proposed opening hours for each pharmacy are set out in the initial application, if the 

application is granted and the pharmacy subsequently opens these form the pharmacy’s contracted 

Page 39



 

Page 20 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

opening hours. The contractor can subsequently apply to change their core opening hours or notify a 

change in their supplementary hours.  

NHS England will assess the application against the needs of the population of the HWB area as set 

out in the PNA to determine whether to agree to the change in core hours or not. If a contractor 

wishes to change their supplementary opening hours they simply notify NHS England of the change, 

giving at least three months’ notice.  

Pharmacy opening hours in Trafford HWB’s area can be found on NHS Choices 

(http://www.nhs.uk/Service‐Search/Pharmacy/LocationSearch/10). Appendix 8 provides details as 

to the spread of opening times across each neighbourhood and by ward. 

3.6.2 Local pharmaceutical services 

Local pharmaceutical services (LPS) are a local alternative to the nationally negotiated terms of 

service. It can be used by NHS England when there is a need to commission a service from a 

pharmacy contractor to meet the particular needs of a patient group or groups, or a particular 

neighbourhood. For the purposes of the PNA the definition of pharmaceutical services includes LPS. 

3.6.3 Distance selling pharmacies 

Whilst the majority of pharmacies provide services on a face‐to‐face basis, e.g. people attend the 

pharmacy to ask for a prescription to be dispensed, or to receive health advice, there is one type of 

pharmacy that is restricted from providing services in this way. They are referred to in the 2013 

regulations as distance selling premises (previously called wholly mail order or internet pharmacies).  

Distance selling pharmacies are required to provide essential services and participate in the clinical 

governance system in the same way as other pharmacies; however they must provide these services 

remotely. Such pharmacies are required to provide services to people who request them wherever 

they may live in England.  

There are two distance selling pharmacies in Trafford, although residents may choose to use such 

pharmacies that are outside of the borough. 

3.6.4 Pharmaceutical services provided by dispensing appliance 

contracts (DAC) 

As with pharmacy contractors, NHS England does not hold contracts with DACs. Their terms of 

service are also set out in schedule 5 of the 2013 regulations and in the 2013 directions.  

DACs must provide the following services that fall within the definition of pharmaceutical services: 

 Dispensing of prescriptions (both electronic and non‐electronic), including urgent supply 

without a prescription  

 Dispensing of repeatable prescriptions  

 Home delivery service  

 Supply of appropriate supplementary items (e.g. disposable wipes and disposal bags)  

 Provision of expert clinical advice regarding the appliances  

Page 40



 

Page 21 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

 Signposting  

Advanced services – DACs may choose whether to provide these services or not. If they do choose to 

provide them then they must meet certain requirements and must be fully compliant with their 

terms of service and the clinical governance requirements: 

 Stoma appliance customisation  

 Appliance use review  

DACs are required to open at least 30 hours per week and these are referred to as core opening 

hours. They may choose to open for longer and these hours are referred to as supplementary 

opening hours. 

There are no DACs in Trafford and its population have appliances dispensed from DACs outside the 

Trafford area. Of stoma and incontinence appliances prescribed by Trafford prescribers in 2015/16, 

25% were dispensed by Trafford pharmacies with the remainder being dispensed by pharmacies and 

DACs elsewhere. 

3.6.5 Pharmaceutical services provided by doctors 

The 2013 regulations allow doctors to dispense to eligible patients in certain circumstances. As there 

are no dispensing doctors within the HWB’s area this route of provision is not included in this 

document. 

3.6.6 Locally commissioned services 

Trafford council and NHS Trafford CCG may also commission services from pharmacies and DACs. 

However, these services fall outside the definition of pharmaceutical services. In particular, the 

commissioning of a number of services that have been designated as public health services have 

been transferred to local authorities.  

These services no longer fall within the definition of enhanced services or pharmaceutical services as 

set out in legislation and therefore should not be referred to as enhanced services.  

For the purposes of this document they are referred to as locally commissioned services. These 

services are included within this assessment where they affect the need for pharmaceutical services, 

or where the further provision of these services would secure improvements or better access to 

pharmaceutical services.  

Services commissioned by Trafford Council are: 

 Sexual Health Services:  

 Emergency hormonal contraception by PGD 

 Chlamydia screening and treatment 

 Substance misuse services including:  

 Supervised methadone/buprenorphine  

 Needle exchange  

 Smoking Cessation including Advice and Nicotine Replacement Therapy (NRT) 

Page 41



 

Page 22 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

 Health Promotion 

 Health checks (pilot) 

Trafford Council has a desire to engage with pharmacies in developing Healthy Living Pharmacies as 

part of supporting the Public Health agenda. There are no firm commissioning decisions at this time. 

The following services are commissioned by NHS Trafford CCG: 

 Minor Ailments Service 

 Palliative Care Service 

 Do Not Dispense Scheme (pilot) 

 

3.6.7 Non‐commissioned added value services 

Community pharmacy contractors also provide private services that improve patient care but are not 

commissioned directly by NHS England, LA’s or CCGs. This includes home delivery service, blood 

glucose measurements and weight loss programmes.  

Pharmacists are free to choose whether or not to charge for these services, but are expected to 

follow standards of governance if they do. A large number of pharmacies provide a delivery service 

and collections of prescriptions from surgeries. As these are private services they fall outside the 

scope of the PNA. 

3.6.8 Hospital pharmacy 

Hospital pharmacies affect the need for pharmaceutical services within its area. They may reduce 

the demand for the dispensing essential service as prescriptions written in the hospital are 

dispensed by the hospital pharmacy service.  

3.6.9  Other provision of pharmaceutical services 

Pharmaceutical services are provided by other services. These can include arrangements for: 

 Prison population  

 Services provided in neighbouring HWB areas  

 Private providers  

The PNA makes no assessment of these services. 

3.6.10 Other sources of information 

Information was gathered from NHS England, NHS Trafford CCG and Trafford Council regarding: 

 Services provided to residents of the HWB’s area, whether provided from within or outside 

of the HWB’s area  

 Changes to current service provision  

 Future commissioning intentions  

 Known housing developments within the lifetime of the PNA  

Page 42



 

Page 23 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

 Any other developments which may affect the need for pharmaceutical services  

The JSNA and the joint health and wellbeing strategy provided background information on the 

health needs of the population. 

3.7  Consultation (To be completed post consultation) 

Insert comments post consultation 

4. Context in Trafford 

4.1  Overview 

In both health and economic terms, the profile of Trafford is close to that of England as a whole. 

In general terms, the demographic split between age groups is similar to that of England; the 

population is amongst the healthiest in the North West – but the North West is the least healthy 

region in the country; Trafford remains the ‘economic powerhouse’ of the region with world leading 

brands situated in the Borough, and with below regional average levels of unemployment. Crime in 

Trafford is low and has decreased significantly over the last few years. 

Overall, Trafford is a relatively affluent Borough, certainly in regional terms, but also in national 

terms. It is one of the smaller District Councils within the Greater Manchester conurbation in terms 

of population, at 233,288 people, living in an estimated 96,000 dwelling. The area has a strong local 

business base, high skill levels, a massively successful enterprise culture and above average levels of 

economic activity. 

This predominant affluence and high levels of achievement, however, hides local differences and 

inequalities. Whilst there are some very affluent areas in the Borough, some amongst the most 

affluent in the country, there are also some of the most relatively deprived areas in the country 

within the Borough. These areas are highlighted throughout the Indices of Multiple Deprivation 

(IMD), across a range of indicators, as being amongst the most deprived nationally. Since 2010, 57 

Lower Super Output Areas4 (LSOA) in Trafford have moved from a lower decile position to a higher 

one. Of the nine LSOAs that were in the 10% most deprived areas in England in 2010, only four 

remain there. 

Across the range of issues discussed in this PNA, no area in the Borough can be said to be free from 

health, lifestyle or social problems that need to be addressed. However, there are a small group of 

areas that have multiple, and persistent, issues afflicting the people and communities that live in 

them through the course of their lives, from birth to death. Whilst the identity of these areas will be 

of no surprise to people – parts of Partington, Clifford ward, Sale West estate all being in the 10% of 

LSOAs most relatively deprived in the country – the wealth of evidence contained within the Trafford 

                                                            
4 Lower Super Output Areas have an average of roughly 1,600 residents and 650 households. Measures of proximity (to 

give a reasonably compact shape) and social homogeneity (to encourage areas of similar social background) are also 
included. 

Page 43



Version 

Innovati

faced by

pregnan

and you

higher ra

Map 3 ‐ 

4.2 

Althoug
populati
2010 to 
projecte
 
Figure 1

In gener

whole. C

of Great

the unde

1.14 (Consu

ion and Intel

y these comm

ncy, higher ra

th, higher ra

ates of prem

Population 

Popula

h population
ion of Traffo
247,600 by 
ed to overtak

1 ‐ Populatio

ral terms, the

Currently, th

ter Manches

er 18 age gro

ltation) 

lligence Lab 

munities. The

ates of low b

ates of workl

mature morta

Density (Sou

ation ch

n numbers fe
ord has been 
2030. It is an
ke the numb

n changes 18

e age structu

e borough h

ter as a who

oup in Traffo

provides a so

ese issues in

birth weight b

essness, high

ality across a

urce: 2011 C

hange 

ell throughou
growing and
nticpated tha
er of female

801 to 2011 

ure of Traffo

as a slightly 

ole (17.03% c

ord is predict

obering testa

clude higher

babies, lowe

her rates of 

a range of sp

Census) (See 

 

ut the 1970s
d it is estima
at by 2020 th
es. 

census 

rd’s populat

higher perce

compared to

ted to remai

ament to the

r rates of mo

er educationa

mental healt

ecific disease

Appendix 11

 and 1980s, 
ted that it w
he number o

ion differs sl

entage of old

 15.64%). W

n stable at a

e range and d

others smoki

al attainmen

th problems 

es. 

1 for full size

over the pas
will grow by 1
f males in th

ightly from t

der people (6

hilst the pro

round 25%, t

Page

depth of ine

ng during 

nt through ch

through life

e map) 

st decade the
14% from 21
he populatio

 

that of Engla

65+) than the

oportion of p

the over 65 

 

e 24 of 80 

qualities 

hildhood 

 and 

e 
7,307 in 
n is 

and as a 

e profile 

eople in 

Page 44



Version 

populati

age grou

Figure 2

Figure 3

 

1.14 (Consu

ion will incre

up in Traffor

2 ‐ Age pyram

3 ‐ Age struct

ltation) 

ease quite m

d.  

mid mid‐201

ture by Ward

arkedly so th

5 population

d (Mid‐2014

hat by 2030,

n Trafford 

4) 

 almost 20% ‐ 1 in 5 peop

Page

ple ‐ will be 

 

e 25 of 80 

in this 

 

 

Page 45



Version 

Figure 4

4.3 

Trafford

Multiple

into one

There ar

and thes

Trafford

West of 

               
5
 Lower Su
give a reas
included. 

1.14 (Consu

4 ‐ Populatio

Depriv

d is one of th

e Deprivation

e deprivation

re four (3%) 

se can be fou

d are in the le

the Borough

                      
uper Output Ar
sonably compa

ltation) 

n projection

ation 

e least depri

n (IMD), whic

n score (Depa

Lower Super

und in the w

east deprived

h. 

                      
reas have an av
act shape) and s

n for Trafford

ived areas in

ch combines

artment for C

r Output Are

ards Bucklow

d 10% of LSO

 
erage of rough
social homogen

d (ONS 2014

n Greater Ma

s a number o

Communitie

eas5 (LSOA) in

w St Martins

OAs national

ly 1,600 reside
neity (to encour

 based subn

anchester acc

of economic, 

es and Local G

n the most d

s, Clifford and

ly and in the

nts and 650 ho
rage areas of si

ational popu

cording to th

social and h

Government

eprived 10%

d St Mary’s. 

 main can be

useholds. Meas
milar social bac

Page

ulation proje

he 2015 Inde

housing indic

t). 

% of LSOAs na

30 (22%) of 

e found in So

sures of proxim
ckground) are a

 

e 26 of 80 

ections) 

 

ex of 

cators 

ationally 

LSOAs in 

outh 

mity (to 
also 

Page 46



 

Page 27 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Map 4 ‐ IMD 2015 by LSOA (Trafford Innovation & Intelligence Lab) (See Appendix 11 for full size 
map) 

 

Table 3 ‐ Index of Multiple Deprivation score and ranking 
District name   Rank of 

proportion of 
LSOAs in most 
deprived 10% 
nationally  

Rank of 
Average 
LSOA Rank 

Rank of 
Average 
Score  

Rank of Local 
Concentration 

Rank of 
Extent  

Rank of 
Income 
Scale  

Rank of 
Employment 
Scale 

Bolton   40 64  51 44 35 35  29

Bury   87 132  122 91 108 93  83

Manchester   5 1  5 11 1 2  4

Oldham   27 51  34 28 29 44  45

Rochdale   17 25  16 19 21 46  43

Salford   16 27  22 16 22 39  35

Stockport   93 178  150 79 136 70  58

Tameside   50 34  41 53 40 54  48

Trafford   155 222  201 145 161 95  87

Wigan   66 107  85 57 68 36  18

According to Department for Education data, in January 2013, 12.5% of pupils in maintained nursery 

and state‐funded primary and secondary schools in Trafford were taking free school meals, 

compared to the North West average of 20.1% and England average of 18.3%. 

In Trafford, the percentage of households estimated to be in fuel poverty is 10.0%, lower than the 

averages for Greater Manchester (10.6%) and England (10.4%) and the 5th lowest among Greater 

Manchester councils (Public Health Outcomes Framework). 

A third of pensioners live alone in Trafford, which is significantly higher than the England average of 

31.5%.  In some wards roughly 40% live alone e.g. Priory 42.4% and Longford 40.0%. Older people 

living in isolation have a high incidence of suffering from loneliness. Social isolation and loneliness 

have a detrimental effect on health and wellbeing. Studies show that being lonely or isolated can 

impact on blood pressure, and is closely linked to depression. The impact of loneliness and social 

Page 47



 

Page 28 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

isolation on an individual’s health and wellbeing has cost implications for health and social care 

services. Investment is needed to ensure that voluntary organisations can continue to help alleviate 

loneliness and improve the quality of life of older people, reducing dependence on more costly 

services. 

Table 4 ‐ Pensioners living alone in Trafford by ward. 

Ward 
Pensioners living 
alone (%) 

**England  31.5 

*Trafford  33.3 

Altrincham  37.2 

Ashton upon Mersey  36.5 

Bowdon  22.6 

Broadheath  31.3 

Brookland  31.3 

Bucklow St Martins  37.0 

Clifford  38.6 

Davyhulme East  39.2 

Davyhulme West  28.7 

Flixton  33.6 

Gorse Hill  37.5 

Hale Barnes  26.7 

Hale Central  32.7 

Longford  40.0 

Priory  42.4 

Sale Moor  36.7 

St Mary's  31.3 

Stretford  39.8 

Timperley  26.5 

Urmston  36.9 

Village  34.8 

 

   

Page 48



 

Page 29 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

4.4  Life expectancy 

Maintaining its position and increasing male and female life expectancy at birth in Trafford 
compared to England remains one of the Trafford’s objectives. The most recent data shows that life 
expectancy at birth for females has increased from 80.3 years in 2000‐02 to 83.7 years in 2012–14, 
while life expectancy at birth for men has increased from 76.4 years in 2000‐02 to 79.9 years in 
2012–14 (Table 1). This is a gender difference of 3.8 years. 
 
Table 5 ‐ Life expectancy gap at birth in Trafford 2012‐14 (Public Health Outcomes Framework) 

Gender  Trafford 
Greater 

Manchester 
England 

Gap between 
Trafford and 
England 

Male   79.9  77.8  79.5  0.4 

Male gain from 2011‐13  0.0  0.1  0.1  0.3 

Female   83.7  81.4  83.2  0.5 

Female gain from 2011‐13  0.2  0.1  0.1  0.1 

 

For older people life expectancy at age 65 in Trafford is better than England for females (21.7 years 

compared to 21.2 years) and similar for males (19.0 years compared to 18.8 years) giving a gender 

difference of 2.4 years. Healthy life expectancy at birth for both females (64.4 years) and males (65.2 

years) is also similar to England (64.0 and 63.4 years respectively). 

Life expectancy is 7.1 years lower for men and 7.9 years lower for women in the most deprived areas 

of Trafford than in the least deprived areas. 

This growing elderly population, many with ill health, will increase the burden on healthcare 

provision in Trafford. 

4.5  Key findings from current data 

People with higher wellbeing have  lower  rates of  illness,  recover more quickly and  for  longer and 

generally  have  better  physical  and  mental  health.  ONS  measure  levels  of  individual/subjective 

wellbeing based on  four questions  included on  the  Integrated Household Survey. These questions 

are asked of all adults aged 16 and over living in residential households. 

A key measure of individual wellbeing is what people think of their state of health. 83% of Trafford’s 

population state their health  is good or very good6, with only 4% stating they have bad health and 

1% very bad health. 17% are living with a limiting long term illness or disability, this is similar to the 

England average of 17.6%. 

There are wide variations across Trafford by ward with 90% having very good or good general health 

in Hale Central to 76% in Bucklow St Martins. For very bad to bad general health it is 2% and 9% 

respectively. 

                                                            
6 2011 data, www.localhealth.org.uk  

Page 49



 

Page 30 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

The latest Health Profile for Trafford shows a number of indicators are significantly better than the 

England average and a range of indicators are not significantly different from the England average. 

However, there are some indicators that are significantly worse than the England average: 

 Emergency admissions in under 5s (Trafford 163 per 1000; England 150) 

 A&E attendances in under 5s (Trafford 595.8 per 1000; England 509.5) 

 All cancer rates (Trafford 102.8 SIR7; England 100) 

 Deaths from coronary heart disease (Trafford 106.4 SMR8; England 100) 

 Binge drinking in adults (Trafford 23.5%; England 20.0%) 

 Hospital stays for alcohol related harm (Trafford 108 SAR9; England 100) 

 One measure, however, is significantly worse than the England average: hospital stays due to 

alcohol related harm, although this is better than the regional average. Related to this, the incidence 

of increasing and higher rate drinking, although not significantly different from the England average, 

is shown as being worse than the regional average. 

Changes to the population and to expectations of good health  lead to ever‐increasing demands on 

health and social care services, which  is not sustainable  in the  long term.  It  is essential to prevent 

people from getting to the stage where they need expensive treatments or services, whether in the 

NHS or social care.   Where people do need support,  it  is  important to reduce their dependency on 

services. 

4.6  Population characteristics health needs 

The following patient groups with one or more of the following protected characteristics have been 

identified as living within the HWB’s area: 

 Age;  

 Sex / gender;  

 Pregnancy and maternity;  

 Disability which is defined as a physical or mental impairment that has a substantial and 

long‐term adverse effect on the person’s ability to carry out normal day‐to‐day activities;  

 Gender reassignment;  

 Marriage and civil partnership;  

 Race which includes colour, nationality, ethnic or national origins;  

 Religion (including a lack of religion) or belief (any religious or philosophical belief)  

 Sexual orientation.  

This section also focusses on their particular health issues, setting out how pharmacies can support 

the specific needs of the population as defined by the protected characteristics in equality 

legislation. 

   

                                                            
7 Standardised Incidence Ratio (2007‐2011) 
8 Standardised Mortality Ratio (2008‐2012) 
9 Standardised Admission Ratio (2008/9 to 2012/13) 

Page 50



 

Page 31 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

4.6.1 Age 

Age has an influence on which medicine and method of delivery is prescribed. For example, older 

people have a higher prevalence of illness and take many medicines. The medicines management of 

older people is complicated by multiple disease, complex medication regimes and the ageing process 

affecting the body’s capacity to metabolise and eliminate medicines from it. Younger people, 

similarly, have different abilities to metabolise and eliminate medicines from their bodies. Advice 

can be given to parents on the optimal way to use the medicine or appliance and provide 

explanations on the variety of ways available to deliver medicines. 

Pharmacy staff can provide broader advice when appropriate to patients or carers on medicines, 

self‐care, signposting to relevant services and public health messages. The safe use of medicines for 

children and older people is one where pharmacies play an essential role. Pharmacies also play an 

increasing role in imparting public health messages around healthy living, providing opportunistic 

brief interventions around topics such as alcohol, exercise and healthy eating. 

Children 

Giving every child the best start is crucial to reducing health inequalities across the life course. What 

happens before and during pregnancy, in the early years and during childhood has lifelong effects on 

many  aspects  of  health  and wellbeing  in  adulthood  from  obesity,  heart  disease, mental  health, 

educational achievement and economic status. 

Starting life well through early intervention and prevention is a key priority developing strong 

universal public health with an increased focus on disadvantaged families. By improving maternal 

health, we could give our children a better start in life, reduce infant mortality and reduce the 

numbers of low birth weight babies and by taking better care of children's health and development 

we can improve educational attainment, reduce the risks of mental illness, unhealthy lifestyles, road 

deaths and hospital admissions. 

Key themes for the preschool and school aged children to improve their health and wellbeing are: 

 Nutrition, active play/physical activity and obesity prevention 

 Immunisation 

 Personal, social and emotional development 

 Keeping children safe 

Young  children  are  a  group with  a  particular  need  for medicines  and  pharmacy  services,  so  this 

increase is likely to have an impact on the demand for pharmaceutical services. 

   

Page 51



 

Page 32 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Older people 

The greatest rate of increase in population numbers will be seen in those people aged over 85. In 

Trafford there is predicted to be a 54% increase, from the current 5,777, to 8,900 by 2030. There 

was a 2.67% increase from the mid‐2014 estimate for the over 85’s. 

The main issues which challenge older people in Trafford are:‐ 

 Chronic disease – such as heart disease, stroke 

 Dementia – half of dementias have a vascular component so by improving diet and lifestyle 

in earlier life the impact can be lessened. 

 1 in 4 older people experience depression requiring professional intervention 

 Falls are common in older people with 1 in 3 people over 65 years and 1 in 2 people over 85 

experiencing 1 or more falls. Hip fractures are a common serious injury relating to falls in 

older people. 

 1 in 4 people experience chronic loneliness 

 There are increasing numbers of frail people and many people over 65 years are carers. 

 Keeping warm is crucial in winter especially for older people and avoiding excess winter 

deaths. 

Brooklands, Urmston, Flixton, Bowdon and Hale Barnes have almost twice the number of people 

over 74 years of age than Gorse Hill. 

Pharmacy teams are often one of the few or only teams that people living in  isolation have regular 

contact with. 

Community pharmacies can support people to live independently by supporting optimisation of use 

of medicines, support with ordering, re‐ordering medicines, home delivery to the housebound and 

appropriate  provision  of  multi‐compartment  compliance  aids  and  other  interventions  such  as 

reminder charts to help people to take their medicines.  

Independence is or could be supported by offering: 

 Reablement services following discharge from hospital  

 Falls assessments  

 Supply of daily living aids  

 Identifying emerging problems with people’s health  

 Signposting to additional support and resources  

   

Page 52



 

Page 33 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

4.6.2 Sex / Gender 

In Trafford, the life expectancy of men is 79.4 years and 83.5 years in women. The gap in life 

expectancy between females and males has reduced from 5.7 years in 1994‐96 to 3.8 years in 2012‐

14, with males showing a 5.8 year increase in life expectancy compared to a 3.9 year increase for 

females. However males: 

 are around twice as likely as women to die of coronary heart disease and chronic respiratory 

diseases.  

 have around 50% higher risk of dying of lung or colorectal cancer than females.  

Gender inequality is reported to exist in many aspects of society and refers to lasting and embedded 

patterns of advantage and disadvantage. In relation to health and health and social care, men and 

women can be subject to differences in: 

 Risks relating to the wider determinants of health and wellbeing.  

 Biological risks of particular diseases.  

 Behavioural and lifestyle health risks.  

 Rights and risks of exploitation.  

It is well documented that men are often less likely to access healthcare services. Community 

pharmacies are ideally placed for self‐care by providing advice and support for people to derive 

maximum benefit from caring for themselves or their families. 

The planning and delivery of health and social care services should consider the distinct 

characteristics of men and women in terms of needs, service use, preferences/satisfaction, and 

provision of targeted or segregated services (e.g. single sex hospital or care accommodation). 

When necessary, access to advice, provision of over the counter medications and signposting to 

other services is available as a walk in service without the need for an appointment. Community 

pharmacy is a socially inclusive healthcare service providing a convenient and less formal 

environment for those who do not choose to access other kinds of health services. 

4.6.3 Long term health problems and disability 

Most people suffer periods of ill health at some time, but these are usually temporary problems that 

do not have a sustained effect on day to day activities, such as going to work or socialising with 

friends and family. However, some health problems and disabilities are long‐lasting and reduce a 

person’s ability to carry out day‐to‐day activities. 

People in some parts of Trafford are more likely to report that that their day to day activities are 

limited due to a long‐term health problem or disability than others. The percentage of people 

reporting living with long term illness or disability by ward is listed in Table 3. When looking at these 

figures it is important to remember that this measure is very strongly related to age and that areas 

with older populations are more likely to have higher rates of activity limiting health problems or 

disabilities than areas with younger populations, irrespective of the underlying levels of ill health in 

the area. 

Page 53



 

Page 34 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Table 6 ‐ Living with long term illness or disability 
(Source: Census 2011, ONS, Crown copyright) 

Ward 
Living with long term 
illness or disability % 

Altrincham  14.1 

Ashton upon Mersey  16.0 

Bowdon  15.6 

Broadheath  12.5 

Brookland  14.9 

Bucklow St Martins  22.5 

Clifford  19.0 

Davyhulme East  18.4 

Davyhulme West  19.9 

Flixton  19.7 

Gorse Hill  17.3 

Hale Barnes  15.9 

Hale Central  10.3 

Longford  18.7 

Priory  15.2 

Sale Moor  19.4 

St Mary's  18.0 

Stretford  19.4 

Timperley  13.5 

Urmston  19.3 

Village  18.6 

Trafford  17.0 

 

People with disabilities often have individual complex and specific needs. It is important that health 

and social care services are able to provide effective specialist services to meet such needs. 

When patients are managing their own medication but need some support, pharmacists and 

dispensing doctors must comply with the Equality Act 2010. Where the patient is assessed as having 

a long term physical or mental impairment that affects their ability to carry out every day activities, 

such as managing their medication, the pharmacy contract includes funding for reasonable 

adjustments to the packaging or instructions that will support them in self‐care. The first step should 

be a review to ensure that the number of medications and doses are reduced to a minimum. If 

further support is needed, then compliance aids might include multi‐ compartment compliance aids, 

large print labels, easy to open containers, medication reminder alarms/charts, eye dropper or 

inhaler aids.  

Each pharmacy should have a robust system for assessment and auxiliary aid supplies that adheres 

to clinical governance principles. 

   

Page 54



Version 

4.6.4 

Figure 5

Current 

increase

The larg

origin, m

themsel

Irish’ an

The ove

0‐15, 16

people i

as being

1.14 (Consu

Race, eth

5 – Trafford p

estimates p

e from the 10

gest of Traffo

making up 2.4

ves as White

d around 7,0

rall figure hi

6.5% of peop

dentify as be

g of non‐whit

ltation) 

hnicity a

population b

ut Trafford’s

0.8% estimat

ord’s minority

4% of the tot

e British (82.

000 (3.25%) 

des significa

le identify as

eing of non‐w

te origin.  

nd langu

by ethnic gro

s BME popula

ted in 2006.

y groups is p

tal populatio

6%). There a

people who 

nt, but expe

s being of no

white origin.

uage 

oup (source: 

ation at sligh

people who i

on. The vast 

are around 4

identify as ‘W

cted, differe

on‐white orig

. For older pe

ONS 2011 C

htly under 12

dentify them

majority of T

4,600 (2.1%) 

White Other

ences betwee

gin. For peop

eople, aged o

Census) 

2%, around 2

mselves as be

Trafford’s po

people who 

r’. 

en age group

ple of workin

over 65, 4.2%

Page

26,000 peopl

eing of Pakist

opulation ide

identify as ‘W

ps. For peopl

ng age, 13.1%

% of people 

 

e 35 of 80 

 

le, an 

tani 

entify 

White 

le aged 

% of 

identify 

Page 55



Version 

Figure 6

 

While th

more lik

much w

an impo

Researc

 

 

 

 

 

Evidence

ethnic h

health p

 

1.14 (Consu

6 ‐ Percentag

he health issu

kely to have p

orse than ot

ortant health

h provides th

Recent easte

occupationa

South Asian 

People from

People from

sickle cell an

People from

health probl

e suggests th

ealth inequa

promotion an

ltation) 

ge of BME by

ues facing pa

poorer healt

thers, and pa

 inequality.  

he examples

ern Europea

ally linked he

groups are a

m black ethnic

m a range of B

nd thalassaem

m BME group

lems.  

hat the poor

alities. Langu

nd public hea

y ward 

articular ethn

h than the W

atterns vary f

s of the healt

n migrants e

ealth problem

at higher risk

c groups are

BME groups 

mia  

s, particularl

er socio‐eco

uage can be a

alth interven

 

nic groups va

White British

from one he

th problems 

experience h

ms, and men

k of diabetes

 at higher ris

are at highe

ly newer mig

nomic positi

a barrier to d

ntions. 

ary, overall, 

 population 

alth conditio

experienced

igher rates o

tal health pr

s, cardiovasc

sk of stroke a

r risk of the 

grants, are m

ion of BME g

delivering eff

people from

although som

on to the nex

d by different

of communic

roblems.  

ular disease,

and some ca

inherited blo

more likely to

groups is the 

fective advic

Page

m BME group

me BME gro

xt. This repre

t ethnic grou

cable disease

, and some c

ncers.  

ood conditio

o experience 

 main factor

ce on medici

 

e 36 of 80 

 

s are 

ups fare 

esents 

ups: 

e, 

cancers.  

ns: 

mental 

 driving 

nes, 

Page 56



 

Page 37 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

4.6.5 Religion and belief 

Figures from the Office for National Statistics for the 2011 Census show that 72.5% of the population 

of Trafford identify as having some religious affiliation. The main religions / beliefs in Trafford 

identified through the Census 2011 are Christian (63.4%) and Muslim (5.7%) whilst residents with no 

religion amount to around 21.2%.  

It is important that health and social care services are aware of the need to respect and be sensitive 

to the preferences of people of particular religions and beliefs relevant to the services they deliver, 

including: 

 Practices around births and deaths.  

 Diet & food preparation.  

 Family planning and abortion.  

 Modesty of dress.  

 Same sex clinical staff.  

 Festivals and holidays.  

 Medical ethics considerations in accepting some treatments and end of life care.  

 Pharmaceuticals, vaccines, and other medical supplies.  

Pharmacies can provide advice to specific religious groups on medicines derived from animal sources 

and during periods of fasting. 

4.6.6 Marriage and civil partnership 

Limited evidence is available on the particular health and social care needs of people in terms of 

marriage and civil partnership.  

It is important that health and social care services are aware of and respectful of the legal 

equivalence of marriage and civil partnership when dealing with individuals, their partners and 

families. Some research suggests that married people and their children are less likely to suffer 

problems with their mental wellbeing.  

It seems likely that these benefits will also potentially be enjoyed by people in similarly committed 

and secure relationships, including civil partnership, and other long term couple partnerships. 

However, some research suggests that such benefits are associated specifically with marriage as 

opposed to other forms of couple partnership.  

Consideration should be given to signs of domestic violence especially towards women, pharmacies 

can help to raise awareness of this issue and sign posting to services/organisations who can provide 

advice and support. 

   

Page 57



 

Page 38 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

4.6.7 Pregnancy and maternity 

The numbers of both male and female births have steadily increased with an overall birth rate 

increase of 12% since 2004, that’s 302 more babies born in 2014 than back in 2004. The number of 

deaths has also seen a similar 12% decrease overall with a 16% reduction in the number of female 

deaths. 

The age profile of mothers giving birth in Trafford, in 2014/15 is older than the Greater Manchester 

and England averages – 26.8% of mothers in the borough were aged 35 years or over, compared to 

20% in London and 20.4% in England. 

8.3% (2014/15) of pregnant women In Trafford smoke during pregnancy which is the lowest level in 

Greater Manchester (17.7%) and lower than national average (11.4%). 

The latest available data (2012/13) shows that 51.0% of mothers in Trafford continue to breastfeed 

at 6‐8 weeks after birth, this is better than the 47.2% for England. 

Trafford has a lower rate of teenage pregnancies (under 18 conceptions) than England, 16.0 per 

1000 compared to 22.8. Trafford has gone from a figure of 34.0 per 1000 in 1998 to the present day 

figure in 2014, although there was a small increase from 15.6 to 16.0 for 2013 to 2014. Trafford has 

the lowest level of teenage pregnancy in Greater Manchester. 

Pharmacies can provide advice to pregnant mothers on medicines and self‐care. They have the 

expertise on advising which medicines are safe for use in pregnancy and during breast feeding. 

4.6.8 Sexual orientation 

2001 data indicated that there were 360 people living as same sex couples in Trafford and 2013 data 

that there were 14 same sex civil partnerships in the borough. 

Research suggests that the LGBT population may be exposed to particular patterns of health risks, 

for instance: 

 A higher prevalence of smoking and increased alcohol drinking. 

 They are more likely to experience harassment or attacks, have negative experiences of 

health services related to their sexuality, lesbian and bisexual  women are less likely to have 

had a smear test, and more likely to smoke, to misuse drugs and alcohol and to have 

deliberately harmed themselves.  

 Gay and bisexual men are more likely to attempt suicide, suffer domestic abuse, misuse 

alcohol and drugs, and engage in risky sexual behaviours.  

 Gay and bisexual men are at substantially higher risk of sexually transmitted diseases (STDs) 

including HIV/AIDS.  

 In 2014 the new HIV diagnosis rate per 100, 000 was 8.0 for Trafford compared to 8.4 for the 

North West and 12.4 for England. 

 HIV testing uptake in Trafford for persons offered one when attending GUM has been 

worsening since 2012 with only 44.9% accepting a test in 2015 compared to 60.0% in the 

North West and 76.2% in England. 

Page 58



 

Page 39 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

 Between 2012‐14 61.0% of those diagnosed with HIV have had a late diagnosis, compared to 

46.5% for the North West and 42.7% for England. Late diagnosis of HIV has been worsening 

since the 2009‐11 period.  

Pharmacies can help to raise awareness of the issues discussed above and can provide advice to 

members of the LGBT community in relation to healthy lifestyle choices e.g. safe drinking levels, 

interactions and side effects of recreational drugs 

4.6.9 Gender reassignment 

Transgender people often report feelings of gender discomfort from early childhood. The average 

age of presentation to health services for gender dysphoria is currently 42 years. Studies in the UK 

suggest that the majority (80%) of those presenting to gender services are those who are born as a 

male.  

It is reported the transgender community experience disproportionate levels of discrimination, 

harassment and abuse.  

Acceptance of transgender people in general health and social care settings and gender specific 

health services (e.g. sexual health), and access to appropriate specialist gender identity services are 

often reported as problematic.  

Research and analyses suggest that untreated gender dysphoria can severely affect the person’s 

health and quality of life and can result in: 

 Higher levels of depression, self‐harm, and consideration or attempt of suicide.  

 Higher rates of drug and alcohol abuse. 

Research suggests that each year there are likely to be between NN and NN new people with gender 

dysphoria in Trafford. 

Provision of necessary medicines and advice on adherence and side effects including the long term 

use of hormone therapy. Pharmacies can provide advice to members of this community in relation 

to health and wellbeing and on raising awareness about issues relating to members of these 

communities as discussed above. 

   

Page 59



 

Page 40 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

5. Other key health outcomes for Trafford 
To identify how pharmaceutical service provision can help tackle the need of Trafford’s local 

population we have used Trafford's JSNA10.  

The  JSNA  is  a  compendium  of  evidence  of  the  health  needs  of  Trafford’s  population  ‐  and  the 

opportunities  for addressing  them  ‐  for use by anyone working with adults and older people. The 

JSNA  is  intended  to be a practical and useable  resource  that gives policy makers and providers of 

services  in  the  city  easy  access  to  the  evidence  base  for  strategic  decision  making,  planning, 

designing    and,  commissioning  services  and writing  funding  bids.  The  JSNA  is  also  a  vehicle  for 

developing insight from service users, removing barriers to delivery and reducing duplication across 

partners. 

5.1  Health and Wellbeing Strategy Vision 

The JSNA forms the evidence base for Trafford’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy (HWBS).11 The Joint 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy is the borough’s overarching plan for reducing health inequalities and 

improving health outcomes for Trafford residents.  

Our strategy outlines: 

 Our vision, aims, intended outcomes and priorities 

 Our partnership approach and guiding principles to improving health and wellbeing 

 Our local challenges around health and wellbeing 

 How we will respond to these challenges 

The strategy is a working tool which concentrates on highlighting Trafford’s challenges and provides 

vision  for a coherent approach  for partners  involved  in  improving health and wellbeing across  the 

borough. It sets the strategic direction, but the actual operational details will be developed through 

the service planning of the many partners involved in its implementation. 

The  strategy  emphasises  the  importance  of  partnership working  and  the  joint  commissioning  of 

services to achieve a more focused use of resources and better value for money. It  is based on the 

guiding principles of prevention and early  intervention,  ‘think  family’ and ensuring choice, control 

and empowerment of our residents. 

The strategy sets out to improve the health and wellbeing of children and adults in our borough and 

reduce health  inequalities between the north and south of the borough. This strategy  incorporates 

the health and wellbeing strategies of Trafford’s Children and Young People’s Strategy 2011‐2014. It 

also replaces the ‘Improving Health and Wellbeing in Trafford ‐ Joint Health Inequalities Strategy and 

delivery plan’ 2010‐2013. 

   

                                                            
10 http://www.infotrafford.org.uk/jsna  
11 Trafford’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy – http://www.infotrafford.org.uk/jsna  

Page 60



 

Page 41 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Five priorities were agreed in 2016: 

 Reducing harm from alcohol 

  Increasing physical activity 

  Reducing smoking and improving tobacco control 

  Improving cancer detection and screening 

  Improving the physical health of people with severe mental illness 

Action plans are being developed for each of these priorities. 

Pharmacies are already involved in supporting people to quit smoking, we want this to continue.  We 

are looking to recruit “alcohol champions”, people in the community who can help raise awareness 

of  increasing  alcohol  consumption  and  signpost  support  for  those  who  need  –  a  community 

pharmacist would be an  ideal person  to  take on  this  role.   As part of  their public health  role we 

would  look  to  engaging  pharmacies  in  awareness  raising  campaigns  about  the  cancer  screening 

programmes, particularly the bowel screening programme. 

5.2  Public Health Outcomes 

The  information on this section  is structured around the 4 domains of the Public Health Outcomes 

Framework (PHOF), namely: 

 Improving the wider determinants of health 

 Health improvement 

 Health protection 

 Healthcare public health and preventing premature mortality 

5.2.1 Improving the wider determinants of health 

The following indicators track progress in terms of some of the wider factors that affect health and 

wellbeing. 

 There are an estimated 8,500 households which are struggling families (low income families 

with high levels of unemployment) in Trafford.  

 In February 2016, 4.05% of 16‐18 year olds  in Trafford were not  in education, employment 

or training  (NEET), this compares  favourably with 4.92%  for the North West and 4.26%  for 

England. However,  the  range  across wards  in  Trafford  varies  from  12.37%  in  Bucklow  St 

Martins  and  1.70%  in  Timperley  (data  for  Hale  Barnes,  Hale  Central  and  Bowdon  is 

supressed). 

 Homelessness  is  linked  to poverty, poor mental and physical health. Those sleeping  rough 

have significant health problems, often having difficulty accessing healthcare services, and 

local services need to consider this vulnerable group. In 2015/16, Trafford had a rate of 1.4 

applicant  households  in  temporary  accommodation  per  1,000  where  the  family  were 

unintentionally  homeless  and  in  priority  need  (family  includes  dependent  children  or  a 

pregnant woman).  This  is better  than  the  rate  for  England  (2.5 per 1,000),  and has been 

decreasing from a peak of 2.31 per 1,000 in 2012/13. 

 

Page 61



 

Page 42 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

5.2.2 Reducing health inequalities 

These indicators track progress in helping people to live healthy lifestyles and make healthy choices. 

 In  2014/15,  20.2%  of  reception  children  in  Trafford  carried  excess weight  and  8.2%  are 

classed as obese. In year six this has risen to 29.8% and 16.0% respectively. 

 The  latest  estimates  of  drinking  in  Trafford  suggest  that  there  are  nearly  8,000  people 

drinking at a higher risk level, and nearly 40,000 drinking at an increasing risk level. 

 Trafford  has  both  nationally  and  across  the  NW  the  highest  percentage  rate  of  alcohol 

attributable  admissions  to  Trafford  Acute  Trust  and  the  lowest  number  of  people  in 

treatment. 

 There  is  an  increase  in  the  rate  of  hospital  admissions  in which  alcohol  is  an  underlying 

factor 

 Death rates  from  liver disease  for people under 75 years are highest  in Clifford, Gorse Hill 

and Longford wards. Overall death rates from liver disease are slightly increasing. 

 The  data  suggests  that  the  use  of  drugs  in  Trafford  is  changing.  Fewer  people  are  using 

heroin or opiates than were ten years previous; however there  is a slight rise  in the use of 

cannabis and cocaine, this especially amongst our younger community. 

 Cancer  screening  coverage  (2015)  for  breast  cancer was  73.9%, worse  than  the  national 

average (75.4%) and is showing a downward trend. 

 Cancer  screening  coverage  (2015)  for  cervical  cancer was 75.2%, better  than  the national 

average (73.5%), but is showing a downward trend having dropped from 76.8% in 2011. 

 

5.2.3 Health Protection 

These indicators track progress in protecting the population’s health from major incidents and other 

threats. 

 Immunisations against common childhood diseases can have positive  long‐term effects on 

children’s health and development. Annual COVER (Cover of Vaccination Evaluated Rapidly) 

statistics for 2014/15 reveal the percentage uptake for the ‘5 in 1’ vaccine among 2‐year‐old 

children living in Trafford was 98.6%, which is higher than the 95.7% for England overall. 

 The percentage uptake for the Measles, Mumps and Rubella (MMR) vaccine among 2‐year‐

old children was 96.5% which is higher than the England total of 92.3%, and greater than the 

target  90%.  The percentage uptake  for  the MMR  booster  among  5‐year‐old  children was 

95.3% which is higher than the England total of 88.6% (Annual COVER statistics, 2014/15). 

 The incidence of TB in Trafford (13.9 per 100,000) remains high when compared to England 

(13.5 per 100,000  respectively) and worryingly  isn’t decreasing  in a  similar manner  to  the 

England average. 

 The rate of new sexually transmitted infections (excluding Chlamydia aged <25) for Trafford 

is higher at 867 per 100,000 is higher than that for England, 815 per 100,000. 

   

Page 62



Version 

5.2.4 

These in

people d

 

Figure 7

 

 

 

 

5.2.5 

 

 

1.14 (Consu

Healthca

ndicators tra

dying prema

The percent

has been  co

susceptible t

those aged 8

winter in Tra

see how  thi

warmth initi

7 

Admission f

605 per 100

figure has be

Child (0 – 17

per 100, 000

current figur

People w

Long‐term  c

disease, can

health,  disa

conditions. U

Recorded  p

respectively

ltation) 

are publi

ck progress 

turely. 

tage of peop

onsistent wit

to higher de

85 years and

afford, comp

is  compares 

iatives, parti

or mental an

0,000 popula

een steadily 

7 years) adm

0 to 119.2 p

re of 87.4 pe

with long

conditions  a

ncer, chronic

ability  and  d

Universally, 

prevalence  fo

y compared t

c health 

in reducing 

ple who die 

th  that  for E

ath rates in 

d over, there

pared to 49 

with Englan

cularly amon

nd behaviou

ation, than th

increasing fr

missions for m

per 100, 000 

er 100, 000 fo

g term co

re  a major 

c obstructive

death.  Some

more men d

or  CHD  and

to England’s,

and prev

numbers of 

in winter m

England ove

winter, altho

e were 4 few

(Ratio of 8.3

nd.  Local ph

ngst older an

Figu

ural disorder

he national 

rom 2008/09

mental healt

in 2014/15,

or the same 

onditions

cause  of  pr

e pulmonary

e  groups  are

ie from card

d  for  Stroke

, 3.2% and 1.

venting p

people livin

onths  (exces

r  the  last  fe

ough this ha

wer deaths t

3) in all age g

armacies  ca

nd vulnerable

re 8 

s due to use

average of 3

9. 

th has increa

, whereas En

time period

s 

eventable  d

disease and

e  disproport

diovascular d

e  in  Trafford

.7% respectiv

prematur

g with preve

ss winter de

w years. Old

s decreased 

han anticipa

groups. See 

n  raise awa

e people. 

e of alcohol 

390 per 100,

ased from a 

ngland has re

. 

eath  in  Traf

d diabetes a

tionately  aff

isease than w

d  are  higher

vely. 

Page

re morta

entable ill he

eaths)  in Ma

der people a

 in the latest

ated (Ratio o

Figures 12 a

areness of af

in Trafford  i

,000. Worryi

2011/12 low

emained  lev

fford.  Cardio

ll contribute

fected  by  lo

women. 

r  at  3.5%  a

 

e 43 of 80 

ality 

ealth and 

nchester 

are most 

t data. In 

of ‐1.7) in 

and 13 to 

ffordable 

s higher, 

ingly this 

w of 94.7 

vel at the 

ovascular 

e to poor 

ong‐term 

and  1.8% 

Page 63



Version 

Figure 9

 

Figure 1

 

1.14 (Consu

9 ‐ Prevalenc

The 2014/15

older  in  NH

increased fo

of the popu

with  diabet

nationally  a

they are bet

10 ‐ Diabetes

The prevale

the estimate

individuals w

ltation) 

e rates for a

5 prevalence

HS  Trafford 

orm 2013/14

lation as a w

tes  have  co

nd  although

tter or simila

s treatment t

nce of asthm

ed prevalenc

with asthma.

a range of co

e of diagnose

CCG  was  6

4, which cou

whole to ado

o‐morbidities

h  current  ind

r to England

targets (Pub

ma (all ages) 

ce  is 9.12%, 

. 

onditions (QO

ed diabetes a

6.1%.  The  En

ld be partly 

opt a health

s.  Diabetes 

dicators  for 

d there is roo

blic health En

in Trafford is

which indica

OF 2014/15 

among regist

ngland  prev

due to impr

y  lifestyle  is 

is  a  major 

diabetic  co

om for impro

ngland) 

s 6.9% comp

ates that the

NHS Digital)

tered patien

alence  is  6.

roved detect

also respon

cause  of  p

ntrol within

ovement (Fig

ared to Engl

ere are a num

Page

) 

 

nts aged 17 y

.4%.  Prevale

tion, althoug

nsible. 90% o

premature  m

n  Trafford  sh

ure 15). 

land, 6.0%. H

mber of unid

 

e 44 of 80 

years and 

ence  has 

gh failure 

of people 

mortality 

how  that 

 

However, 

dentified 

Page 64



 

Page 45 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

 Prevalence  of  COPD  (all  ages)  at  1.9%  is  similar  to  that  for  England  at  1.8%,  however, 

estimated prevalence is 3.36%. 

 Nearly  17,300  (9.29%) people  (aged  18+)  are  recorded on  Trafford GP  systems  as having 

depression. Although Trafford has a similar  incidence of new cases of psychosis  (21.0) per 

100,000  aged  16‐64)  to  England  (24.2)  and  the  North West  region  (22.2).  Co‐morbidity 

among psychiatric conditions is high. 

 Trafford’s mortality rate (directly standardised rate) from causes considered preventable (all 

Persons) 195.9 per 100,000 compared to England’s 182.7 per 100,000. However,  it  is  lower 

than  the  North  West  rate  of  223.6  per  100,000  and  one  of  the  lowest  in  Greater 

Manchester. 

 The  number  of  0‐4  year  olds  attending  accident  and  emergency  (A&E)  in  Trafford  is 

significantly above the national average. The majority receive no investigation or significant 

treatment, or are discharged without  follow‐up.  In  this age group,  respiratory disease and 

infections are the main reason for emergency admissions and GP consultations. 

 The number of A&E attendances fluctuates over the course of the year (high in winter), over 

the course of the week (high on Monday, lower attendance on weekends by older people), 

and  over  the  course  of  the  day  (peak mid‐morning,  for  children  a  second  peak  is  seen 

around 7pm). 

 Trafford had a  SAR12 of 163.0  for emergency admissions  in  the under 5s  the period  from 

2010/11 to 2012/13. The ratio for Trafford indicates a higher level of emergency admissions 

than would be expected in this age group.  

 Deaths in a person’s usual place of residence has been increasing since 2004, however, it still 

remains lower than the England figure. This low figure is driven by people over the age of 75 

years and those dying from circulatory and respiratory disease and dementia. 

 In Trafford 1,908 people ages 65+ have a diagnosis of dementia,  this  represents 4.77% of 

that age group. It is estimated that for England only 48% of dementia sufferers are currently 

diagnosed. This indicates that there are possibly the same number of people aged 65+ that 

suffer from dementia but are not known to their GP. Of those with dementia, 70% have one 

or more other  LTC, and  it  is estimated  that  two‐thirds of  those with dementia  live  in  the 

community. 

 Cancer prevalence and incidence are increasing nationally. Compared to England the overall 

incidence of cancer is higher in Manchester, although no specific cancer seems to be driving 

this. 

   

                                                            
12 The Standardised Admission Ratio (SAR) is defined as the ratio of the observed number of admissions in an area to the 
number expected if the area had the same age specific rates as England (ratio set at 100). 

Page 65



 

Page 46 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

6. Provision of pharmaceutical services 
The regulations governing the development of the PNA require the HWB to consider the needs for 

pharmaceutical services in terms of necessary and relevant services: 

 Necessary services i.e. pharmaceutical services which have been assessed as required to 

meet a pharmaceutical need. This should include their current provision (within the HWB 

area and outside of the area) and any current or likely future gaps in provision.  

 Relevant services i.e. services which have secured improvements, or better access, to 

pharmaceutical services. This should include their current provision (within the HWB area 

and outside of the area) and any current or future gaps in provision.  

Necessary services, for the purposes of this PNA, are defined as: 

 those services provided by pharmacies and DACs in line with their terms of service as set out 

in the 2013 regulations, and  

 advanced services  

6.1  Necessary services ‐ current provision within the 

HWB’s area 

There are 65 pharmacies included in the pharmaceutical list for the area of the HWB. This is made up 

of 54 with standard 40‐hour contract, nine with a 100‐hour contract and two listed as distance 

selling. There are no DACs and no LPS pharmacies in Trafford.  

Map 5, which is the statutory map as provided below and shows the location of premises providing 

pharmaceutical services within the HWB’s area. It should be noted that due to the proximity of some 

pharmacies some icons may reflect the location of two con‐tractors. The map index to premises can 

be found in Appendix 6, with neighbourhood indexing showing opening hours spread in Appendix 8.  

While not a statutory requirement, where maps within this PNA include the location of GP premises, 

they do so solely as a point of reference and proximity to pharmacies. Appendix 6 provides an index 

of those GP surgeries. 

Map 5 ‐ Pharmacy and GP Locations (See Appendix 11 for full size map) 

 

Page 66



 

Page 47 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

As can be seen from Table 7 detailed below, the number of pharmacies within the HWB’s area has 

increased  by  8%  since  2013/14.  As  at  March  2016,  Trafford  had  28  pharmacies  per  100,000 

population. This  is higher than both the England average (22) and the Greater Manchester average 

(25).  

There  has  been  a  small  increase  in  the  number  of  items  dispensed  per month which  has  been 

absorbed by  the existing contractors. However, as  indicated  in Table 8 detailed below,  in 2014/15 

Trafford’s  average prescription  items per month per pharmacy was 6,531.  This  is  lower  than  the 

average for England and Greater Manchester. 

In 2014/15, Trafford pharmacies dispensed 1.8  items per head of population the North of England 

figure ranged from 2.1 to 1.6 items and England average was 1.5 items. 

Table 7 ‐ Trafford Pharmacies 2013/14 to 2015/16 

Year 

Number of 

community 

pharmacies 

Prescription 

items dispensed 

per month 

(000)s 

Population 

(000)s Mid‐Year 

Pharmacies per 

100,000 

population 

2013/14  61  392  230  27 

2014/15  64  418  232  28 

2015/16  65  421  233  28 

 
 
Table 8 ‐ Pharmacy Contractors Trafford, Greater Manchester & England 2014/15 
  Number of 

community 

pharmacies 

Prescription 

items 

dispensed 

per month 

(000)s 

Population 

(000)s Mid‐

Year (2013) 

Pharmacies 

per 100,000 

population 

Average 

items per 

pharmacy 

per month 

ENGLAND 
11,674  81,525  53,866  22  6,983 

GREATER 

MANCHESTER  695  4,981  2,748  25  7,167 

TRAFFORD 
64  418  232  28  6,531 

 

As the average  items per month are below the national and regional averages,  it can be concluded 

that  the  current  number  of  pharmacies  across  Trafford  is  sufficient  and  can  cope with  a  future 

increase in items. An increase may occur if there is an increase in population or in the prevalence of 

certain  diseases  or  an  ageing  population  or  possibly  a  combination  of  all  three  factors,  some  of 

which are predicted to happen in the years leading up to 2020. 

Page 67



Version 

6.1.1 

Access c

area live

walking.

The late

deprived

transpor

From th

live mos

Append

Table 9 

No respo

location

Map 6 s

areas ar

industria

The maj

Map 6 ‐ 

               
13 Pharm
(2008) 
 

1.14 (Consu

Access to

can be define

e and length 

. 

est informatio

d areas ‐ can

rt13. 

he public sur

st  often.  Th

ix 3. 

‐ Patient Sur

ondent to th

 and 90% ha

hows the are

re outside th

al or rural in 

ority of Traff

One mile bu

                      
acy in England

ltation) 

o premis

ed by the loc

of time to ac

on shows tha

n reach a pha

rvey, 55% of

e  range  of 

rvey: Why d

he public surv

ad no problem

ea within a o

is one mile b

character or

ford’s popul

uffer around

                      
d: Building on

ses 

cation of the 

ccess the ph

at 99% of the

armacy withi

f people resp

responses  c

o you use th

vey stated th

ms accessing

one mile trav

buffer, but th

r dedicated t

ation live wit

d Trafford ph

 
n Strengths – D

pharmacy in

armacy by d

e English po

n 20 minute

ponded that

can  be  seen 

his pharmacy

hat they had

g a pharmacy

velling distan

hese are area

to retail and 

thin one mil

harmacies (S

 

Delivering the

n relation to 

driving (priva

pulation ‐ ev

es by car and

t they used a

in  Table  9,

y? 

 

 difficulty ac

y due to ope

nce of pharm

as with low p

leisure activ

e of a pharm

See Appendix

e Future, Depa

where resid

te car, using

ven those livi

96% by walk

a pharmacy 

  for  the  ful

ccessing a ph

ening hours. 

macies within

population d

vities. 

macy. 

x 11 for full s

artment of He

Page

dents of the H

g public trans

ing in the mo

king or using

close to wh

l  patient  su

harmacy due

n Trafford. Se

density and a

size map) 

ealth White Pa

 

e 48 of 80 

HWB 

sport or 

ost 

g public 

here they 

rvey  see 

to 

everal 

are 

aper 

Page 68



 

Page 49 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Map 7 ‐ Pharmacies within 1 mile of Trafford border (See Appendix 11 for full size map) 

 

6.1.2 Correlation with GP practices 

As expected, there are significantly more community pharmacies than there are GP practices 

reflecting the higher number of pharmacies per 100,000 population in Greater Manchester and 

England (Tables 6 & 7, see section 6.1).  

In addition, all neighbourhoods have more pharmacies than GP practices. All GP practices have at 

least one pharmacy located nearby, although practice list sizes, number of GPs and opening times 

may differ significantly between practices. 

6.1.3 Access to services 

Whilst the majority of people will visit a pharmacy during the 8.30am to 6pm period, Monday to 

Friday, following a visit to their GP, there will be times when people will need to access a pharmacy 

outside of those times. This may be to have a prescription dispensed after being seen by the out of 

hours GP service, or it may be to access one of the other services provided by a pharmacy outside of 

a person’s normal working day.  

The public survey provided the following insights into how Trafford residents access pharmaceutical 

services: 

 100%  of  respondents  had  not  had  any  problems  accessing  a  pharmacy  service  due  to 

location. 

 90% of respondents had not had any problems accessing a pharmacy service due to opening 

hours in the past year. 

 Approximately 92% of respondents were satisfied or very satisfied with the opening hours of 

the pharmacy they used. 

 When rating the overall experience of using a pharmacy most respondents (96%)  indicated 

they were  satisfied  or  very  satisfied, with  61%  rating  that  they were  very  satisfied  (the 

highest option). 

 The majority of people stated they were satisfied or very satisfied with the opening times of 

pharmacies, however, a small number stated that those local to them were not open outside 

their working day and this created some difficulty and meant they used pharmacies on their 

way to or near work. 

Page 69



 

Page 50 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Maps 8 & 9 detailed below shows the opening times for Trafford pharmacies based on their core and 

supplementary opening hours14. This identifies those that open 7 days a week, all day Saturday 

(open Monday to Friday), only half day Saturday (open Monday to Friday) and closed Saturday (open 

Monday to Friday). The map also identifies those open after 7pm Monday to Friday. 

Full details of  the opening hours  for  community pharmacies  in Manchester  can be  found on NHS 

Choices http://www.nhs.uk/Service‐Search/Pharmacy/LocationSearch/10. 

Map 8 ‐ Weekday opening hours (See Appendix 11 for full size map) 

 

Map 9 ‐ Weekend opening hours (See Appendix 11 for full size map) 

 

   

                                                            
14 Valid May 2016 

Page 70



 

Page 51 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Monday to Saturday opening 

12 pharmacies open at 8.00 a.m. or earlier Monday to Friday and 11 pharmacies open at 8.00 a.m. or 

earlier on Saturday. The earliest opening time Monday to Saturday is 6.30 a.m. with the exception of 

Monday when the pharmacy opens at 8.00 a.m. (See table 9)  

Table 10 ‐ Trafford pharmacies open Monday to Saturday from 8.00 a.m. or earlier 

Map 
index 

Pharmacy  Postcode 
Monday to 
Saturday 

opening time 
Comments 

2  Asda Pharmacy  M41 7ZA  7.00 a.m.  8.00 a.m. opening on Mondays

19  Conran Late Night Pharmacy  M41 5SJ  8.00 a.m. 

21  Elliotts Pharmacy  M16 0LN  7.00 a.m. 

25  Hale Barns Pharmacy  WA15 8NZ  7.00 a.m.  9.00 a.m. opening on Saturdays

35  Malcolm's Pharmacy  M41 5AA  7.00 a.m. 

46  Sainsburys Pharmacy  M41 0NA  7.00 a.m. 

47  Sainsbury's Pharmacy  M33 7SA  8.00 a.m. 

48  Sainsbury's Pharmacy  WA14 2SU  7.00 a.m. 

51  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  M33 7XN  8.00 a.m. 

52  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  WA15 9QT  8.00 a.m. 

53  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  M32 0RW  6.00 a.m.  8.00 a.m. opening on Mondays

54  Timperley Pharmacy  WA15 7UN  7.00 a.m. 

 
20 pharmacies don’t open at all on Saturday (this includes one of the two distance selling 
pharmacies) and a further 18 close by 1.00 p.m. This leaves 27 pharmacies open for most of 
Saturday, with 13 of those pharmacies being open until 7.00 p.m. or later. See table 11 for a list of 
pharmacies.  
 
19 pharmacies provide access to pharmaceutical services until 7.00 p.m. or later for Monday to 
Friday as well (see table 11). Of these, five pharmacies are open until 11.00 p.m. 
 
   

Page 71



 

Page 52 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Table 11‐ Trafford pharmacies open Monday to Saturday until 7.00 p.m. or later 

Map 
index 

Pharmacy  Postcode 
Monday to 
Saturday 

closing time 
Comments 

2  Asda Pharmacy  M41 7ZA  11.00 p.m.  10.00 p.m. closing on Saturdays

6  Boots  M41 7FN  7.00 p.m.  6.00 p.m. closing on Saturdays

7  Boots  M17 8BD  10.00 p.m.  9.00 p.m. closing on Saturdays

11  Boots  WA14 5GR  8.00 p.m.  6.00 p.m. closing on Saturdays

19  Conran Late Night Pharmacy  M41 5SJ  11.00 p.m. 

21  Elliotts Pharmacy   M16 0LN  10.30 p.m. 
11.00 p.m. closing on Fridays and 

Saturdays

23  G Pennant Roberts  M16 9WR  7.00 p.m. 
6.00 p.m. closing on Wednesday 

and 1.00 p.m. closing on 
Saturdays

25  Hale Barns Pharmacy   WA15 8NZ  11.00 p.m.  10.00 p.m. closing on Saturdays

29  Lloyds Pharmacy  M32 0DF  7.00 p.m.  Closed on Saturdays

35  Malcolm’s Pharmacy  M41 5AA  10.00 p.m. 

42  Rowland Pharmacy  M16 0WL  7.00 p.m.  Closed on Saturdays

46  Sainsbury’s Pharmacy  M41 0NA  11.00 p.m.  10.00 p.m. closing on Saturdays

47  Sainsbury’s Pharmacy   M33 7SA  10.00 p.m. 

48  Sainsbury’s Pharmacy  WA14 2SU  11.00 p.m.  10.00 p.m. closing on Saturdays

51  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  M33 7XN  7.00 p.m. 

52  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  WA15 9QT  8.00 p.m. 

53  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  M32 0RW  10.30 p.m.  10.00 p.m. closing on Saturdays

54  Timperley Pharmacy  WA15 7UN  10.30 p.m. 

55  Urmston Pharmacy  M41 9NU  7.00 p.m.  1.00 p.m. closing on Saturdays

 

   

Page 72



 

Page 53 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Sunday opening 

Table 12 ‐ Trafford pharmacies open on Sunday 

Map 
Index 

Pharmacy  Post code  Sunday opening time  Sunday closing time 

2  Asda Pharmacy  M41 7ZA  10.30 a.m.  4.30 p.m. 

5  Boots  M41 0NA  11.00 a.m.  5.00 p.m. 

6  Boots  M41 7FN  11.00 a.m.  5.00 p.m. 

7  Boots  M17 8BD  12.00 p.m.  6.00 p.m. 

9  Boots  M32 9BD  10.00 a.m.  4.00 p.m. 

10  Boots  WA14 1RH  11.00 a.m.  5.00 p.m. 

11  Boots  WA14 5GR  10.30 a.m.  4.30 p.m. 

19  Conran Late Night Pharmacy  M41 5SJ  9.00 a.m.  7.00 p.m. 

21  Elliotts Pharmacy   M16 0LN  11.00 a.m.  6.00 p.m. 

25  Hale Barns Pharmacy   WA15 8NZ  10.00 a.m.  5.00 p.m. 

35  Malcolm’s Pharmacy  M41 5AA  9.00 a.m.  7.00 p.m. 

46  Sainsbury’s Pharmacy  M41 0NA  11.00 a.m.  5.00 p.m. 

47  Sainsbury’s Pharmacy   M33 7SA  10.00 a.m.  4.00 p.m. 

48  Sainsbury’s Pharmacy  WA14 2SU  10.00 a.m.  4.00 p.m. 

51  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  M33 7XN  10.00 a.m.  4.00 p.m. 

52  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  WA15 9QT  10.00 a.m.  4.00 p.m. 

53  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  M32 0RW  11.00 a.m.  5.00 p.m. 

54  Timperley Pharmacy  WA15 7UN  8.00 a.m.  6.00 p.m. 

 

18 pharmacies open on Sunday and all neighbourhoods have at least one pharmacy open for some 

hours. 

Partington  is  the  only  area  that  has  limited  access  to  pharmacy  services  on  Sunday,  and  early 

morning and  late evening Monday to Saturday. Local GP practices offer one  late night opening on 

Monday until 8.30 p.m., but do not open  Saturday or  Sunday.  There  is no  specific  evidence  that 

would  indicate there  is a need for extra hours beyond those currently provided. Commissioning of 

additional pharmaceutical service provision in Partington by the HWB partners is not currently seen 

as a priority for funding. 

Changes to pharmacy contractors 

The stakeholder group has received no notification of any planned changes to pharmacy contractors 

other than those that may occur due to the information provided in 6.4.1. 

   

Page 73



Version 

6.1.4 

Append

This serv

regular m

have to 

 

 

 

 

Each pha

In 2015/

claiming

Figure 1

 

1.14 (Consu

Access to

dix 7 provide

vice is medic

medication. 

be from a sp

Patients taki

Patients rece

Patients pre

Patients diag

increased ris

armacy can 

/16 a total of

g at or near t

11 ‐ Number 
compare

ltation) 

o Medici

es a list of ph

cines adhere

A report is s

pecified grou

ing certain h

ently dischar

scribed certa

gnosed with 

sk of develop

provide a ma

f 19,139 MU

the maximum

of MURs de
e to 2015/16

ines Use 

harmacies p

nce service d

hared with t

up of patient

igh risk med

rged from ho

ain respirato

cardiovascu

ping cardiova

aximum of 4

Rs were pro

m number of

livered by p
) 

Reviews

providing MU

designed to 

the patient a

s: 

dications  

ospital  

ory medicine

ular disease o

ascular disea

400 MURs a y

vided by 62

f MURs.  

harmacies in

s (MUR)

UR advanced

improve pat

and prescribe

s  

or another co

ase.  

year. 

of the pharm

n Trafford by

d services. 

ient outcom

er. 70% of M

ondition whi

macies with 3

y neighbourh

Page

es from taki

MURs underta

ich puts them

33 pharmaci

hood (2014/

 

 

e 54 of 80 

ng 

aken 

m at 

es 

/15 

Page 74



Version 

Figure 1

Up to 40

per annu

that cou

MURs ar

6.1.5 

The serv

medicin

consulta

any prob

relation 

need of 

conditio

In 2015/

Unlike fo

provided

provided

1.14 (Consu

12 ‐ Number 
2015/16)

00 MURs can

um. Howeve

uld have bee

re accessible

Access to

vice provides

e to help im

ation (which 

blems either

to the patie

the patient f

on. 

/16 a total of

or MURs the

d in a year. C

d in certain c

ltation) 

of MURs de
) 

n be provided

er with three

n undertake

e to residents

o New M

s support for

prove medic

can be face‐

r with the tre

nt’s self‐man

for further in

f 4,345 NMS

ere is no nati

Currently the

circumstance

livered by p

d at each ph

 pharmacies

n is 24,800. 

s in all four n

Medicine 

r people, ofte

cines adhere

‐to‐face or te

eatment (inc

nagement of

nformation a

intervention

onally set m

e service is lim

es and this th

harmacies in

armacy, givi

s not providin

neighbourho

Service (

en with long

nce and pati

elephone‐ba

luding any a

f their long‐t

and support 

ns were prov

aximum num

mited to a sp

herefore lim

n Trafford by

ng an overal

ng the servic

oods.  

(NMS) 

g‐term condit

ient outcome

sed) is the p

dverse drug 

term conditio

in relation to

vided by 54 p

mber of NMS

pecific range

its the total 

y ward (2014

l maximum n

ce the actual 

tions, newly 

es. The prim

atient‐centr

reactions) o

on, and ident

o the treatm

pharmacies. 

S interventio

e of drugs and

numbers of e

Page

4/15 compa

number of 2

 number of M

prescribed a

ary aim of th

red identifica

or otherwise 

tification of 

ment or the lo

ons that may 

d can only b

eligible patie

 

e 55 of 80 

re to 

6,000 

MURs 

a 

he 

ation of 

in 

any 

ong‐term 

be 

e 

ents. 

 

Page 75



 

Page 56 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

NMS are accessible to residents in all four neighbourhoods  

6.1.6 Access to stoma appliance customisation 

In 2015/16 a total of 144 stoma customisations were provided by 10 pharmacies across all four 

neighbourhoods. This low level of provision reflects the specialist nature of the provision of 

appliances and it would be expected that this service is provided by DACs specialising in the 

provision of stoma appliances. 

6.1.7 Access to Appliance Use Review (AUR) 

No pharmacies provided AURs during 2014/15 and 2015/16; this  low  level of provision reflects the 

specialist nature of the provision of appliances and it would be expected that this service is provided 

by DACs. 

DACs in Greater Manchester delivered 1,017 AURs in 2014/15 and 971 in 2015/16 according to data 

from NHS England Area Team. The majority of these were delivered in the patient’s own home. 

6.1.8 Access to Community Pharmacy Seasonal Influenza Vaccination 

programme 

According to data provided by NHS England Area Team 43 pharmacies are delivering this service for 

2016/17, providing 3,798 vaccinations so far during September and October 2016.This  is compared 

to 3, 500 vaccinations for all of 2015/16 Nationally, the number of  influenza vaccinations delivered 

so far during 2016/17 has increased, only limited local data is available at this time. 

6.1.9 NHS Urgent Medicine Supply Advanced Service (NUMSAS) 

When this PNA was written no pharmacies in Trafford were able to provide the NUMSAS as it wasn’t 

due to be rolled out until January 2017. Information, if available, will be added post consultation. 

6.1.10  Access to enhanced services 

The inhaler technique service was commissioned from 14 pharmacies in 2015/16, however, only 5 

pharmacies showed any activity. It is this low number of deliveries that is resulting in review of the 

service, with a potential relaunch. This is likely to take place during 2017/18 and the commissioned 

pharmacies may well change. 

6.1.11  Access to pharmaceutical services on public and bank 

holidays and Easter Sunday 

NHS England has a duty to ensure that residents of the HWB’s area are able to access 

pharmaceutical services every day. Pharmacies and DACs are not required to open on public and 

bank holidays, or Easter Sunday, although some choose to do so. NHS England asks each contractor 

to confirm their intentions regarding these days and where necessary will direct a contractor or 

contractors to open on one or more of these days to ensure adequate access. 

Page 76



 

Page 57 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

6.2  Necessary services: current provision outside the 

HWB’s area 

In making its assessment the HWB needs to take account of any services provided to its population, 

which may affect the need for pharmaceutical services in its area. This could include services 

provided across a border to the population of Trafford by pharmacy contractors outside their area, 

or by GP practices, or other health services providers including those that may be provided by NHS 

trust staff. 

Patients have a choice of where they access pharmaceutical services; this may be close to their GP 

practice, their home, their place of work or where they go shopping, recreational or other reasons. 

Consequently not all the prescriptions written for residents of Trafford were dispensed by the 

pharmacies within Trafford, although the majority were. Trafford Council has borders with two 

Greater Manchester boroughs (Manchester & Salford) and with Warrington & Cheshire East. 

Information on the type of advanced services provided by pharmacies and DACs outside the HWB’s 

area to Trafford residents is not available. When claiming for advanced services contractors merely 

claim for the total number provided for each service. The exception to this is the stoma appliance 

customisation service where payment is made based on the information contained on the 

prescription. 

However, even with this service just the total number of relevant appliance items is noted for 

payment purposes. It can be assumed however that Trafford residents will be able to access 

advanced services from contractors outside of Trafford. 

It is not possible to identify the number of Trafford residents who access enhanced services from 

pharmacies outside the HWB’s area. This is due to the way that pharmacies are paid. However 

residents of the HWB’s area may access enhanced services from outside Trafford. 

The same applies to locally‐commissioned services. 

6.3  Other relevant services ‐ current provision 

Other relevant services are pharmaceutical services that are not necessary (see section 3.6.1 and 

section 8.2 to 8.5) but have secured improvement or better access to pharmaceutical services. 

Other relevant services, for the purposes of this PNA, are defined as: 

 Essential services provided at times by pharmacies beyond the standard 40 core hours 

(known as supplementary hours) in line with their terms of service as set out in the 2013 

regulations, 

 Enhanced services 

   

Page 77



 

Page 58 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

6.3.1 Other relevant services within the HWB’s area 

52 pharmacies provide essential and advanced services through supplementary hours. The totality of 

these hours covers evenings, Saturday and Sunday. The data on the spread of opening hours 

provided by NHS England is shown in Appendix 8 and Map 7 & 8 (see section 6.1.3). 

6.3.2 Other relevant services provided outside the HWB’s area 

Whilst there are pharmacies outside of the HWB’s area providing pharmaceutical services during 

hours that may be regarded as providing improvement or better access, it is a choice of individuals 

whether to access these as part of their normal lives. None are specifically commissioned to provide 

services to the population of Trafford HWB area. 

6.3.3 Other relevant services 

Whilst the HWB consider enhanced services as providing an improvement or better access to 

pharmaceutical services, only one is currently commissioned by NHS England15 and this is currently 

under review and does not have guaranteed ongoing funding. The HWB is mindful of local 

commissioned services as described in section 3.6.6 and 6.5.4). 

6.3.4 Choice with regard to obtaining pharmaceutical services 

As can be seen from sections 6.1 and 6.2, the residents of the HWB’s area currently exercise their 

choice of where to access pharmaceutical services. 

Within the HWB’s area they have a choice of 65 pharmacies which have been utilised to dispense 

over 5 million prescription items in Trafford. Residents can choose to access pharmacies in 

neighbouring areas, although due to geography most are dispensed within Trafford. A proportion of 

these items were dispensed in Manchester HWB areas but not in significant numbers. 

There is no DAC in the HWB area however data shows residents choose to use DACs further afield 

and those pharmacies that provide appliances. 

   

                                                            
15 By MM/YYYY 

Page 78



 

Page 59 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

6.4  Future provision – necessary and other relevant 

services 

6.4.1 Housing and development 

There is currently a shortfall between the existing housing land supply and the Greater Manchester 

Spatial Framework (GMSF) target of some 5,500. However, this is not unique to Trafford and options 

to address this are being considered as part of the preparation of the first complete version of the 

GMSF, which is due to be published in the autumn. 

Current planned major residential schemes in Trafford include: 

Future Carrington – The plan is eventually for additional 5,000 – 7,000 residential units. Enabling 

works for phase one, comprising 900 new homes, are due to start in summer 2017 with delivery of 

residential units planned for summer 2018; all subject to planning approval. There will be no impact 

on pharmaceutical needs during phase one, unless occupied homes exceed 500. 

Trafford Waters –Planning permission has been approved for up to 3,000 new homes, creating a 

new urban village adjacent to the Trafford Centre and Trafford Leisure Village. This development will 

not impact pharmaceutical needs during the lifetime of this PNA. 

Altair – Planned to provide 150 new apartments in Altrincham adjacent to the Interchange. Phase 

one of the development for 59 new apartments has now received planning permission. This will not 

impact pharmaceutical needs. 

Pomona Island/Cornbrook Hub (Manchester Waters) – There is potential for approximately 2,500 

residential units alongside the Manchester Ship Canal. Phase one comprising 164 apartments started 

on site in April 2016. 

Partington Canalside – Planning consent has been given for 550 new homes, including a mix of 

family type housing. 

For all residential developments, except Future Carrington, existing pharmaceutical service provision 

will be adequate or insufficient progress will have been made to affect this PNA during its lifetime. 

6.4.2 Primary Care developments 

The face of primary care is undergoing major change with the formation of the Greater Manchester 

Health and Social Care Partnership, which aims to lead to improvements in delivery of health and 

social care services for the people of Greater Manchester as part of the devolution process. 

Within Trafford there intentions for additional GP provision as mentioned in the planning 

applications / information with regard to Trafford Waters and Future Carrington but this is not 

detailed as yet. 

Page 79



 

Page 60 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

The Altrincham Health and Wellbeing Centre and the Shrewsbury Street Limelight developments are 

new buildings which are intended to house existing healthcare provision, It is intended that existing 

contractors will move into the new premises, subject to approval. 

The following NHS services are deemed, by the HWB, to affect the need for pharmaceutical services 

within its area: 

 Hospital pharmacies – reduce the demand for the dispensing essential service as 

prescriptions written in the hospital are dispensed by the hospital pharmacy service. 

 Personal administration of items by GPs – as above this also reduces the demand for the 

dispensing essential service. Items are sourced and personally administered by GPs and/or 

practice nurses thus saving patients having to take a prescription to a pharmacy, for example 

for a vaccination, in order to then return with the vaccine to the practice so that it may be 

administered. 

 GP out of hours service, provided by Mastercall. 

 Services commissioned by Trafford council or CCG 

6.4.3 Hospital pharmacies 

Patients attending these, on either an inpatient or outpatient basis, may require prescriptions to be 

dispensed. There are two hospitals in the HWB’s area Trafford General Hospital and Altrincham 

Hospital & Minor Injuries Unit. Both sites are managed by Central Manchester University Hospitals 

NHS Foundation Trust. 

Should services be moved out of the hospitals and into the primary care setting then it is likely that 

this would lead to more prescriptions needing to be dispensed by pharmacies in primary care. 

However, it is likely that pharmacies will be able to absorb additional dispensing arising from this, 

should it happen. 

6.4.4 Personal administration of items by GPs 

Under their medical contract with NHS England there will be occasion where a GP practice 

personally administers an item to a patient. 

Generally when a patient requires a medicine or appliance their GP will give them a prescription 

which they take to their preferred pharmacy. In some instances however the GP will supply the item 

against a prescription and this is referred to as personal administration as the item that is supplied 

will then be administered to the patient by the GP or a nurse. This is different to the dispensing of 

prescriptions and only applies to certain specified items for example vaccines, anaesthetics, 

injections, intra‐uterine contraceptive devices and sutures. 

For these items the practice will produce a prescription however the patient is not required to take it 

to a pharmacy, have it dispensed and then return to the practice for it to be administered. 

   

Page 80



 

Page 61 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

6.4.5 GP out of hours service 

Beyond the normal working hours practices open, there is an out of hours service operated as an 

initial telephone consultation where the doctor may attend the patients home or request the patient 

access one of the clinics. The clinics and travelling doctors have a stock of medicines and depending 

on the patient and their requirement they may be given medicines from stock or a prescription 

issued for dispensing at a pharmacy. GPs offer an OOH service from Mastercall. 

Prescriptions from the out of hours service can be dispensed by pharmacies with longer opening 

hours. These are Pharmacies opened seven days a week or for longer hours six days per week are 

listed in section 6.1.3 (Tables 10, 11 & 12). These pharmacies are geographically spread across the 

borough and four neighbourhoods. 

6.4.6 Locally commissioned services – Trafford Council and NHS 

Trafford CCG 

Since 1st April 2013 Trafford council has been responsible for the commissioning of some public 

health services. In addition the CCG commissions a number of services that have an impact. 

Appendix 5 sets out the services currently commissioned and the number of pharmacies providing 

these services. 

The patient survey indicated that more can be done to increase awareness and encourage uptake of 

these commissioned services. Consideration should be given as to how we can utilise this part of 

NHS to help meet the increasing needs for healthcare provision. 

7. Neighbourhoods for the purpose of the 

PNA 

7.1 Overview 

This assessment has taken a ward level approach in order to support the integration of public health 

data with other sources of information. The 21 wards were then aggregated into four 

neighbourhoods, as described in section 3.3. As each neighbourhood has slightly differing health 

needs they are considered separately for the purposes of the PNA, however, they all share the same 

priority outcomes: 

 Reduce child obesity 

 Improve the emotional health and wellbeing of children and young people. 

 Reduce alcohol and substance misuse and alcohol related harm 

 Support people with long term health and disability needs to live healthier lives. 

 Increase physical activity 

 Reduce the number of early deaths from cardiovascular disease and cancer. 

 Support people with enduring mental health needs, including dementia to live healthier lives 

Page 81



 

Page 62 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

 Reduce the occurrence of common mental health problems among adults. 

Individual health profiles for each ward are available at http://www.infotrafford.org.uk/lab and all 

data contained in this PNA has been obtained from this site. 

7.2 Sale Neighbourhood 

7.2.1 Sale Neighbourhood profile 

Sale Neighbourhood is made up of six wards: 

 Ashton upon Mersey 

 Brooklands 

 Bucklow St Martins (Sale) 

 Priory 

 Sale Moor 

 St Marys 

There is considerable variation in deprivation levels across the Sale neighbourhood, with 8% of 

children living in poverty in Ashton on Mersey, compared to 26% in St Mary’s ward. St Mary’s and 

Sale Moor have higher rates of alcohol admissions to hospitals than the national average. Sale Moor 

and Priory have two of the lowest overall cancer rates in Trafford. 

Cardiovascular disease in Sale neighbourhood is lower than the national average, both for heart 

attacks and coronary heart disease. However, COPD rates (as recorded by primary care) are higher 

than the average. Central Trafford residents engage well in cancer screening, with high rates of 

bowel, breast and cervical screening. However, their uptake of NHS health checks is less good. 

To address the high rates of COPD, physical activity, stopping smoking and self‐care are 

recommended. 

It is important that the population is encouraged to maintain their healthy lifestyles, and there may 

need to be some particular attention paid to alcohol consumption. 

7.2.2 Access to a pharmacy in Sale Neighbourhood 

Map 9 shows  that during Monday  to Friday  there  is satisfactory access  to pharmaceutical services 

across this Neighbourhood. Two pharmacies offer extended hours and are  located centrally within 

the Neighbourhood. 

INSERT MAP SHOWING PHARMACIES AND OPENING TIMES IN NEIGHBOURHOOD. 

Map 9 shows that there are nine pharmacies open on Saturday (four for the morning only) and two 

open on Sunday.  

Access to pharmaceutical services is considered to be satisfactory in this neighbourhood. 

 

Page 82



 

Page 63 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

7.3 Old Trafford & Stretford Neighbourhood 

7.3.1 Old Trafford & Stretford Neighbourhood profile 

Old Trafford & Stretford Neighbourhood is made up of five wards: 

 Clifford 

 Davyhulme East (Old Trafford) 

 Gorse Hill 

 Longford 

 Stretford 

Four of the five Trafford Borough wards with the lowest male life expectancy are in this 

neighbourhood. Women in Gorse Hill ward live almost 7 years longer than men living in Gorse Hill, 

however, life expectancy for women in Gorse Hill is not high, and is 5 years less than in Hale Central. 

Old Trafford and Stretford Neighbourhood has higher levels of deprivation than the Trafford 

average; this is also associated with higher rates of disease (including mental health issues). All 

wards in this neighbourhood have high levels of child poverty, with 43% of children living in Clifford 

ward living in poverty, after housing costs have been taken into account. 

The majority of Trafford’s black and minority ethnic (BME) population live in this neighbourhood. 

People of Black or Asian ethnicity have a higher risk of developing long‐term health conditions, such 

as diabetes or heart disease. Using information from primary care, Old Trafford & Stretford 

Neighbourhood practices have the highest proportion of patients with diabetes. 

Gorse Hill, Stretford and Longford wards all have high rates of emergency hospital admissions for 

heart attacks. Clifford, Longford, Gorse Hill and Stretford wards have high rates of emergency 

hospital admissions for coronary heart disease. Furthermore Longford, Gorse Hill and Clifford wards 

have high rates of elective or planned hospital admissions for coronary heart disease. 

Stretford ward has the highest rate of emergency hospital admissions for injurious falls in people 

aged 65 years and over in Trafford. 

Five of the seven Trafford wards with the highest alcohol‐related hospital admissions are in this 

neighbourhood. Four of the six wards with the highest rate of lung cancer cases are in also in this 

neighbourhood. These measures are associated with high rates of alcohol use and smoking. 

Early diagnosis and disease prevention can significantly improve the health of a population. Primary 

care practices in this neighbourhood have the lowest rates of cervical screening and bowel cancer 

screening uptake in the borough and have low levels of flu vaccine uptake. 

To tackle the increased levels of poor health in this neighbourhood, we need to focus on heart and 

circulatory disease and cancer prevention. Actions could include encouraging residents to complete 

their NHS Health Checks and cancer screening; help people stop smoking; reduce alcohol use; and to 

increase the proportion of residents eating healthily and doing the recommended levels of physical 

activity. Many people in this population may be experiencing poverty and deprivation and may 

therefore need additional support to achieve a healthy lifestyle. 

Page 83



 

Page 64 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

7.3.2 Access to a pharmacy in Old Trafford & Stretford 

Neighbourhood 

Map 10 shows that during Monday to Friday there is satisfactory access to pharmaceutical services 

across  this  Neighbourhood.  Six  pharmacies  offer  extended  hours  and  are  spread  across  the 

Neighbourhood. 

INSERT MAP SHOWING PHARMACIES AND OPENING TIMES IN NEIGHBOURHOOD. 

Map 10 shows  that  there are nine pharmacies open Saturday  (four  for  the morning only) and  five 

open on Sunday.  

Access to pharmaceutical services is considered to be satisfactory in this neighbourhood. 

7.4 South Trafford Neighbourhood 

7.4.1 South Trafford Neighbourhood profile 
South Trafford Neighbourhood is made up of seven wards: 

 Altrincham 

 Bowdon 

 Broadheath 

 Hale Barns 

 Hale Central 

 Timperley 

 Village 

Life expectancy for males and females is generally higher in the South than elsewhere in Trafford. 

However, female life expectancy in Village ward is the 4th lowest in Trafford. Hale Barns has the 

largest gap between male and female life expectancy, at 7.4 years. This is mainly due to very high 

female life expectancy (88.8 years). 

Almost a third (32%) of Trafford’s population live in the South, and the South also has the largest 

proportion of older people, with 35% of our over 65s and 37% of our over 85s living in this area. 

The five lowest wards for hospital admissions related to alcohol are in South Trafford 

neighbourhood. Village, however, is the 5th worst ward, and Broadheath is also above the national 

average. 

Breast cancer incidence is generally higher in wards in South Trafford, especially Hale Central, 

Bowdon and Hale Barns, while lung cancer is low in these wards. 

South Trafford is lower than the national average for heart attacks and heart disease and generally 

has the lowest rates in Trafford, with exception of Village ward. 

Village is the ward in South Trafford with the highest childhood obesity rates. 

Page 84



 

Page 65 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

While the population of South Trafford is generally healthy, the higher numbers of older people 

mean that it is important that steps are in place to ensure that people are supported to continue to 

live independently and to have a healthy older age. 

The higher rates of breast cancer in the South reinforce the importance of continuing to promote 

attendance for screening. 

7.4.2 Access to a pharmacy in South Trafford Neighbourhood 

Map 11 shows that during Monday to Friday there is satisfactory access to pharmaceutical services 

across  this  Neighbourhood.  Five  pharmacies  offer  extended  hours  and  are  spread  across  the 

Neighbourhood. 

INSERT MAP SHOWING PHARMACIES AND OPENING TIMES IN NEIGHBOURHOOD. 

Map 11 shows that there are 13 pharmacies open on Saturday (four for the morning only) and five 

open on Sunday.  

Access to pharmaceutical services is considered to be satisfactory in this neighbourhood. 

7.5 Urmston & Partington Neighbourhood 

7.5.1 Urmston & Partington Neighbourhood profile 
Urmston & Partington Neighbourhood is made up of five wards: 

 Bucklow St Martins (Partington) 

 Davyhulme East (Urmston) 

 Davyhulme West 

 Flixton 

 Urmston 

Urmston & Partington Neighbourhood has the ward (Bucklow St Martins) with the lowest male life 

expectancy in Trafford Borough. Furthermore the three wards with the lowest female life 

expectancy in Trafford are also in this neighbourhood. Out of the five wards in this neighbourhood, 

only Davyhulme West is in the top half of wards in Trafford for life expectancy for both males and 

females. 

Although this neighbourhood does not have the highest proportion of elderly residents in Trafford, it 

does have the highest numbers of nursing and residential home residents of all the four 

neighbourhoods. 

There is a high prevalence of dementia in Urmston & Partington Neighbourhood. The high rates of 

dementia may be because of better diagnosis rather than increased prevalence, and so could be 

seen as a positive. 

Urmston & Partington Neighbourhood experiences higher levels of heart and circulatory disease and 

stroke than other neighbourhoods. The prevalence of heart attacks in this neighbourhood is 

generally higher than the national average and all wards in this neighbourhood are in the top half of 

Page 85



 

Page 66 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

areas in Trafford for heart attacks, coronary heart disease and emergency and elective admissions. 

The three wards in Trafford with the highest rates of emergency hospital admissions are in this 

neighbourhood, with Urmston having particularly high rates. 

Urmston also has particularly high rates of admissions for falls but this is not sufficient to explain 

their high emergency admission rates. Emergency admission rates may be linked to a number of 

causes including heart disease and Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) i.e. chronic 

bronchitis and emphysema. This neighbourhood also experiences high levels of asthma and obesity. 

Uptake of bowel and breast cancer screening in this neighbourhood is low although cervical 

screening rates have increased recently. Bucklow St Martins has the highest incidence of all cancer in 

Trafford. The rate of lung cancer is especially high in this ward, which is suggestive of high smoking 

levels. This is also linked to higher rates of deprivation. There are pockets of deprivation in this 

neighbourhood, for example 34% of children living in Bucklow St Martins ward live in poverty, after 

housing costs have been taken into account. 

Flu vaccination rates are low, which is a concern given the number of care homes and the number of 

people with asthma. Bucklow St Martins has highest rate of hospital admissions for alcohol in 

Trafford and all wards in this neighbourhood are higher than the national average. 

To tackle the increased levels of poor health in this neighbourhood, there is a need to focus on heart 

and circulatory disease and cancer prevention. Actions could include encouraging residents to 

complete their NHS Health Checks and cancer screening; help people stop smoking; reduce alcohol 

use; and to increase the proportion of residents eating healthily and doing the recommended levels 

of physical activity. Many people in this population may be experiencing poverty and deprivation 

and may therefore need additional support to achieve a healthy lifestyle. This is particularly relevant 

to Partington residents. 

7.5.2 Access to a pharmacy in Urmston & Partington Neighbourhood 

Map 12 shows that during Monday to Friday there is satisfactory access to pharmaceutical services 

across this Neighbourhood. Four pharmacies offer extended hours, but are located in northern part 

of the Neighbourhood. 

INSERT MAP SHOWING PHARMACIES AND OPENING TIMES IN NEIGHBOURHOOD. 

Map 12 shows that there are 10 pharmacies open on Saturday (five for the morning only) and three 

open  on  Sunday.  All  day  Saturday  opening  and  Sunday  opening  pharmacies  are  based  in  the 

Northern part of the Neighbourhood and the South, namely Partington has no pharmacy provision 

Saturday afternoon and all day Sunday. . There is no specific evidence that would indicate there is a 

need for extra hours beyond those currently provided. Commissioning of additional pharmaceutical 

service provision in Partington by the HWB partners is not currently seen as a priority for funding. 

Access to pharmaceutical services is considered to be satisfactory in this neighbourhood. 

Page 86



 

Page 67 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

8. How pharmaceutical services can help 

support a healthier population 

8.1 Essential Services (ES) 

There are seven essential services listed below (Appendix 11). These services must be offered by all 

pharmacy contractors during all opening hours of the pharmacy as part of the NHS Community 

Pharmacy Contractual Framework. 

 ES1 Dispensing Medicines & Dispensing Appliances 

 ES2 Repeat Dispensing 

 ES3 Disposal of Unwanted Medicines 

 ES4 Public Health (Promotion of a healthy lifestyle) 

 ES5 Signposting 

 ES6 Support for Self‐care 

 ES8 Clinical Governance 

Medicines management is vital in the successful control of many LTCs (e.g. circulatory diseases, 

mental health, diabetes) thus having a positive impact on morbidity and mortality. Disease specific 

guidance (such as that) provided by the National Institute for Clinical & Healthcare Excellence (NICE) 

regularly emphasises the importance of medicines optimisation and adherence in control of 

conditions such as hypertension, asthma and stroke. 

ES1 and ES2 support patients living with LTCs by providing timely supply of medicines and advice to 

patients. ES2 may be of particular benefit to patients on lifelong medicines as part of their treatment 

such as those requiring statins or insulin. 

Using ES3, pharmacies can direct patients in the safe disposal of medicines and reduce the risk of 

hoarding medicines at home which may increase the risk of errors in taking medicines or in taking 

out of date medicines. 

ES4 can support local and national campaigns informing people of managing risk factors associated 

with many long term conditions such as smoking, healthy diet, physical activity and alcohol 

consumption. 

ES4 provides the ability to: 

 Improve awareness of the signs and symptoms of conditions such as stroke e.g. FAST 

campaign. 

 Promote validated information resources for patients and carers. 

 Collect data from the local population on their awareness and understanding of different 

types of disease and their associated risk factors. 

 Target “at risk” groups within the local population to promote understanding and access to 

screening programmes e.g. men in their 40s for NHS health checks. 

Page 87



 

Page 68 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Community pharmacy also plays a vital role in the management of minor ailments and self‐care. 

Evidence shows that community pharmacists are potentially the most accessed healthcare 

professionals in any health economy (Pharmacy White Paper, 2008) and are an important resource 

in supporting people in managing their own self‐care and in directing people to the most 

appropriate points of care for their symptoms (Pharmacy White Paper, 2008). 

Although the evidence base for measuring the effectiveness and cost effectiveness of community 

pharmacies contribution to urgent care, emergency care and un‐planned care is currently very small 

there is a growing recognition of the importance of this role and for further research. 

Using ES5, pharmacies can signpost patients and carers to local and national sources of information 

and reinforce those sources already promoted. They can also direct patients to the appropriate care 

pathways for their condition. 

Through ES6 pharmacy staff can advise patients and carers on the most appropriate choices for self‐

care and also direct queries to the pharmacist for further advice when purchasing over the counter 

medicines or general sales lists products. Some over‐the‐counter medicines are contraindicated (e.g. 

decongestant use in circulatory disease), and inappropriate use could increase the risk of an 

unplanned hospital admission. Equally some symptoms can be much more significant in certain long 

term conditions (e.g. foot conditions in diabetes) and the attempted purchase of over‐the‐counter 

medicines by a patient or carer could alert the pharmacist leading to an appropriate referral. 

ES8 provides the governance structure for the delivery of pharmacy services. This structure is set out 

within the 2013 regulations and includes: 

 A patient and public involvement programme 

 A clinical audit programme 

 A risk management programme 

 A clinical effectiveness programme 

 A staffing and staff programme 

 An information governance programme. 

It provides an opportunity to audit pharmacy services and influence to the evidence base for the 

best practice and contribution of pharmacy services. 

Further support to improving quality in pharmacies has been provided through a new Quality 

Payments (QP) scheme, introduced for the 2017/2018 Community Pharmacy Contractual 

Framework. In order to access the additional funding available through the QP, pharmacies need to 

achieve the following: 

1) the contractor must be offering at the pharmacy Medicines Use Reviews (MUR) or the New 

Medicine Service (NMS) or must be registered to provide the NHS Urgent Medicine Supply 

Advanced Service (NUMSAS); 

2) the NHS Choices entry for the pharmacy must be up to date; 

3) pharmacy staff at the pharmacy must be able to send and receive NHS mail; and 

4) the contractor must be able to demonstrate ongoing utilisation of the Electronic Prescription 

Service (EPS) at the pharmacy premises. 

Page 88



 

Page 69 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

8.2 Advanced Services 

There are six advanced services (Appendix 7) within the NHS community pharmacy contractual 

framework. Community pharmacies can choose to provide any of these services as long as they meet 

the requirements set out in the Secretary of State Directions: 

 Medicines Use Reviews (MUR) 

 New Medicines Service (NMS) 

 Appliance Use Review (AUR) 

 Stoma Appliance Customisation (SAC) 

 Flu vaccination 

 NHS Urgent Medicine Supply Advanced Service (NUMSAS) (Due to start January 2017 and 

run until 31st March 2018.) 

Evidence shows that up to half of medicines may not be taken as prescribed or simply not be taken 

at all (source NICE). Advanced services have a role in highlighting issues with medicines or appliance 

adherence issues and in reducing waste through inappropriate or unnecessary use of medicines or 

appliances. Polypharmacy is highly prevalent in LTC management. Advanced services provide an 

opportunity to identify issues with side effects, changes in dosage, confirmation that the patient 

understands the role of the medicine or appliance in their care and opportunities for medicine 

optimisation. 

Appropriate referrals can be made to GPs or other care settings resulting in patients receiving a 

better outcome from their medicines and in some cases cost saving for the CCG. Advanced services 

may also identify other issues such as general mental health and wellbeing providing an opportunity 

to signpost to other local services or service within the pharmacy such as seasonal flu immunisation 

or repeat dispensing. 

Promotion of self‐care is an important aspect to the management of many LTCs and advanced 

services provide an important opportunity for the pharmacist to do so for example, the importance 

of dry weight monitoring in heart failure management. 

8.3 Enhanced services 

Pharmacies may choose to provide enhanced services these services are commissioned to meet an 

identified need in the local population. Depending on the service agreement used these service may 

or may not be accessible for all of the pharmacies opening hours. 

Only those services that are listed within the Directions may be referred to as enhanced services. If 

NHS England wishes to commission a service not listed within the Directions then it cannot be called 

an enhanced service and it also falls outside the definition of pharmaceutical services. 

   

Page 89



 

Page 70 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

8.3.1 Inhaler technique service 

The inhaler technique enhanced service is intended to target individuals that use inhalers to treat 

asthma and chronic obstructive pulmonary disease and increase the benefit of treatment by 

ensuring that patients’ technique in the use these devices is correct and that they maintain this. It 

has been shown that many patients fail to use their inhaler correctly and this can lead to poor 

control of their disease. This service is intended to improve patient care. This service is currently 

being reviewed due to the lack of service delivery. Once it has been re‐established an updated list of 

commissioned pharmacies will be issued as part of a supplementary statement. 

8.4 NHS Trafford CCG locally commissioned services 

8.4.1 Access to palliative care medicines 

The aims of the end of life care/palliative care pharmacy service are to improve ac‐cess to the supply 

of specialist palliative care drugs within the community in a timely manner for patients, carers and 

health professionals. National guidance recommends that palliative care formularies should be 

agreed as part of end of life care pathways and there should be adequate provision to these drugs 

for both in hours and out of hours’ settings thus supporting home death scenarios. 

As the service is commissioned by NHS Trafford CCG, it is not envisaged that within the lifetime of 

this PNA there is, or will be, a need for it to be commissioned as part of pharmaceutical services. 

8.4.2 Minor ailment scheme 

NHS  Trafford  CCG  commission  a  minor  ailment  service  which  is  designed  to  allow  registered 

residents of Trafford to access treatment for minor ailments as part of NHS provision without having 

to  visit  their  GP.  The  scheme  is  intended  to  reduce  demand  for  GP  consultations  to  deal  with 

conditions  that  can be dealt with  safely  in  the pharmacy  setting. The  scheme  is also  intended  to 

reduce the demand for urgent care, especially out of hours. 

There is an option for NHS Trafford CCG to have NHS England commission this service on their behalf 

as an enhanced service. This would require them adopting the standardised service specification 

that NHS England provides. 

8.4.3 Do not prescribe scheme 

NHS Trafford CCG commission a Do Not Prescribe scheme that aims to reduce waste by incentivising 

pharmacies  to question patients as  to  their  repeat medication needs and ensure only  those  items 

that will be required in the next one to two months are dispensed. It is also intended to identify any 

potential  issues with  the  patient  taking  their medication  and,  if  consent  is  provided,  inform  the 

patient’s GP. 

This is currently being run as a pilot to assess whether it delivers value for money before considering 

continuation and further role out. 

Page 90



 

Page 71 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

8.5 Trafford Council locally commissioned services 

(LCS) 

8.5.1 Stop smoking 

This service is commissioned by Trafford council as a LCS, however pharmacies are just one of 

several providers of this service. As stop smoking is commissioned by the council, it is not envisaged 

that within the lifetime of this PNA there is or will be a need for it to be commissioned as part of 

pharmaceutical services. 

There are elements of essential service provision which will help address this health need: 

 Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six public health campaigns each calendar 

year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns are 

selected by NHS England. 

 Where the pharmacy does not provide the LCS of stop smoking service provision, 

signposting people using the pharmacy to other providers of the service. 

8.5.2 Alcohol and substance misuse 

As needle exchange and the supervised consumption of methadone/buprenorphine are 

commissioned by the council, it is not envisaged that within the lifetime of this PNA there is or will 

be a need for either service to be commissioned as part of pharmaceutical services.  

Needle and syringe exchange services (NEX) are an integral part of the harm reduction strategy for 

drug users. 

It aims to: 

 Reduce the spread of blood borne pathogens e.g. Hepatitis B, Hepatitis C, HIV 

 Be a referral point for service users to other health and social care services 

There is evidence to support the effectiveness of needle exchange services with long term health 

benefits to drug users and the whole population. 

Supervised administration involves the client consuming methadone or buprenorphine under the 

direct supervision of a pharmacist in a community pharmacy. 

It is a medicines adherence service which aims to: 

 Reduce the risk of harm to the client by over or under usage of drug treatment. 

 Reduce the risk of harm to the local community by the inappropriate use of prescribed 

medicines via the illicit drug market. 

 Reduce the risk of harm to the community by accidental exposure to prescribed medicines. 

There is compelling evidence to support the effectiveness of supervised administration with long 

term health benefits to drug users and the whole population. 

Page 91



 

Page 72 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

However there are elements of essential service provision which will help address this health need: 

 Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six public health campaigns each calendar 

year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns are 

selected by NHS England. 

 Where the pharmacy does not provide the LCS for needle exchange or supervised 

consumption of methadone/buprenorphine or alcohol screening, signposting people using 

the pharmacy to other providers of the services. 

8.5.3 Sexual health ‐ Teenage pregnancy 

There is a very strong evidence base for the use of emergency hormonal contraception (EHC) in 

reducing unplanned or unwanted pregnancies, especially within teenage years. Its use forms part of 

an overall national strategy to reduce the rate of teenage pregnancy with England. The drug 

levonorgestrel is used for EHC under the Trafford Council scheme commissioned from pharmacies. 

Through this scheme levonorgestrel is supplied under a PGD to women who meet the criteria for 

inclusion of the PGD and service specification. The drug can also be prescribed using an FP10 

prescription. It may also be bought as an over the counter medication from pharmacies, however 

the user must be 16 years or over, hence the need for a PGD service within pharmacies which 

provides access from 13 to 25 years of age. 

As EHC provision is commissioned by the council, it is not envisaged that within the lifetime of this 

PNA there is, or will be, a need for it to be commissioned as part of pharmaceutical services. 

However there are elements of essential service provision which will help address this health need: 

 Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six public health campaigns each calendar 

year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns are 

selected by NHS England. 

 Where the pharmacy does not provide the LCS of EHC provision, signposting people using 

the pharmacy to other providers of the service. 

8.5.4 Other sexual health services 

Some key issues for both current and future sexual health services are: 

 Reducing the transmission of and rate of undiagnosed (HIV) and sexually transmitted 

infections (STI). The growing incidence of HIV and STIs can only be arrested through the 

systematic introduction of health promotion, screening, STI testing, and prompt follow‐up 

for both patients and their partners throughout the borough. 

 Improving Access to Sexual and Reproductive Health Services. Attaining prompt diagnosis 

and treatment and therefore reducing the spread of infection whilst improving the patient 

experience of sexual health services is critical. 

 Establishing service standards, definitive care pathways and targeted and appropriate 

services. Introduction into non‐traditional settings responding to local need bringing sexual 

health services closer to the community 

Page 92



 

Page 73 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

Pharmacy based screening and treatment services for STI can help achieve all of the above three 

points. 

Pharmacies are currently providing access to chlamydia screening and treatment, although there is 

potential for increasing  the range of diseases screened for. 

Currently chlamydia screening and treatment using PGDs are commissioned by the council, it is not 

envisaged that within the lifetime of this PNA there is or will be a need for it to be commissioned as 

part of pharmaceutical services. 

However there are elements of essential service provision which will help address this health need: 

 Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six public health campaigns each calendar 

year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns are 

selected by NHS England. 

 Where the pharmacy does not provide sexual health services, signposting people using the 

pharmacy to other providers of the service. 

8.5.5 NHS Health Checks 

This screening programme was introduced in Trafford to help prevent heart disease, stroke, 

diabetes, kidney disease and certain types of dementia. Everyone between the ages of 40 and 74 

years, who has not already been diagnosed with one of these conditions or have certain risk factors, 

is eligible to have a check (once every five years) to assess their risk of cardiovascular disease. All 

people identified with a medium or high risk are given support and advice to help them manage 

their risk. 

The programme is provided in all but one GP practice. There has been a pilot project running to 

serve the patients of the non‐participating general practice; two community pharmacies have been 

delivering Health Checks to the patients of this practice (only). The pilot will be evaluated soon and 

any revisions needed to future delivery will be arranged. From 2013 to the present time, the 

percentage of people that received an NHS Health Check of those offered one in Trafford is 49%16. 

As NHS health checks are commissioned by the council, it is not envisaged that within the lifetime of 

this PNA there is, or will be, a need for it to be commissioned as part of pharmaceutical services. 

There are elements of essential service provision which will help address this health need: 

 Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six public health campaigns each calendar 

year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns are 

selected by NHS England. 

 Where the pharmacy does not provide NHS Health Checks, signposting people using the 

pharmacy to other providers of the service. 

   

                                                            
16 http://www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/interactive_map/compare_local_authorities_or_centres/  

Page 93



 

Page 74 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

8.5.6 Mental health and well being 

In addition to ensuring that people with mental health problems have access to drugs and 

medicines, pharmacies can support in other ways by 

 Providing accessible and comprehensive information and advice to carers about what help 

and support is available to them. 

Provision of essential services, e.g. signposting. Ensuring that pharmacies have information on the 

help and support that is available will enable them to signpost carers accordingly. 

8.5.7 Health prevention 

In addition to dispensing prescriptions, pharmacies through the provision of essential services can 

help to address many of the public health concerns contained within Trafford JSNA, for example: 

 Where a person presents a prescription, and they appear to have diabetes, be at risk of 

coronary heart disease (especially those with high blood pressure), smoke or are 

overweight, the pharmacy is required to give appropriate advice with the aim of increasing 

their knowledge and understanding of the health issues which are relevant to that person’s 

circumstances. 

 Encourage people in the target age range to participate in the Bowel Screening Programme, 

by for instance placing information leaflets near products for bowel related disorders, e.g.  

diarrhoea and constipation 

 Pharmacies are required to participate in up to six public health campaigns each calendar 

year by promoting public health messages to users. The topics for these campaigns are 

selected by NHS England and have previously included topics on healthy eating and physical 

activity. 

 Signposting people using the pharmacy to other providers of services or support. 

Provision of the four advanced services will also assist people to manage their long term conditions 

in order to maximise the quality of life by improving medicine and appliance adherence. 

   

Page 94



 

Page 75 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

9. Necessary services ‐ gaps in provision of 

pharmaceutical services 
Necessary services, for the purposes of this PNA, are defined as: 

 Essential services provided by pharmacies during standard 40 core hours in line with their 

terms of service as set out in the 2013 regulations, and 

 Advanced services 

The HWB consider it is those services provided within the standard pharmacy providing 40 and 100 

core hours that should be regarded as necessary. There are 65 such pharmacies. The core hours are 

provided in Appendix 6 and this is supported by Map 2, 3, 4, 6 and 7. 

The HWB are mindful of the national picture as expressed in the 2008 White Paper Pharmacy in 

England, Building on strengths – delivering the future, which states that it is strength of the current 

system that community pharmacies are easily accessible. The HWB consider that the population of 

Trafford across all four PNA neighbourhoods currently enjoy a similar position. 

In particular, the HWB had regard to the following, drawn from the mapped provision of and access 

to pharmacies: 

 Map 2 showing the location of pharmacies within each of the four PNA neighbourhoods and 

across the whole HWB area. 

 Map 3 showing the population density per square km by Census 2011 Output Area and the 

relative location of pharmacy premises. 

 Map 4 showing the Index of Multiple Deprivation and deprivation ranges compared to the 

relative location of pharmacy premises. 

 Maps 6 illustrate that the majority of the residents of the HWB within a walking distance of 1 

mile. Map 7 shows those pharmacies within 1 mile of the Trafford border. 

 The number, distribution of pharmacies within each of the four PNA neighbourhoods and 

across the whole HWB area (Map 10 ‐13). 

 The choice of pharmacies covering each of the four PNA neighbourhoods and the whole 

HWB area (Appendix 8). 

 All patients surveyed thought location of a pharmacy was an important factor with regards 

to accessing pharmacy (Appendix 3). 

 All patients surveyed had not had any problems accessing a pharmacy service in the past 

year due to location and approximately 90% were satisfied with the opening hours of the 

pharmacy they used (Appendix 3). 

 Overall results of the patient survey (Appendix 3). 

Taking into account the totality of information available, the HWB consider the location, number, 

distribution and choice of pharmacies covering the each of the four neighbourhoods and the whole 

Trafford HWB area providing essential and advanced services during the standard core hours to 

meet the needs of the population. 

Page 95



 

Page 76 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

The HWB has not received any significant information to conclude otherwise currently or of any 

future specified circumstance that would alter that conclusion. 

10. Improvements and better access: gaps in 

provision of pharmaceutical services 
The HWB consider it is those services and times provided in addition to those considered necessary 

for the purpose of this PNA that should reasonably be regarded as providing either an improvement 

or better access to pharmaceutical provision. 

The HWB recognises that any addition of pharmaceutical services by location, provider, hours or 

services may be regarded by some as pertinent to this consideration. However, the HWB consider 

the duty to be one of proportionate consideration overall. 

The location of premises and choice of provider is not as extensive beyond the standard 40 core 

hours as described under the previous consideration of what is necessary. However in each 

neighbourhood, there are pharmacies open beyond what may be regarded as normal hours, in that 

they provide pharmaceutical services during supplementary hours in the evening, on Saturday and 

Sunday. 

Taking into account the totality of information available, the HWB consider the location, number, 

distribution and choice of pharmacies covering the each of the four neighbourhoods and the 

Trafford HWB area providing essential and advanced services during the evening, on Saturday and 

Sunday, to provide an improvement and better access that meet the requirements of the 

population. 

The patient survey did not record any specific themes relating to pharmacy opening times. The HWB 

therefore concludes there no significant information to indicate there is a gap in the current 

provision of pharmacy opening times. 

At present, the same conclusion was reached in considering whether there is any future specified 

circumstance that would give rise to the conclusion that there is a gap in pharmaceutical provision at 

certain times. Nonetheless, the HWB will be considering the response by pharmacy contractors to 

the changing expectations of the public to reflect the times at which pharmaceutical services are 

provided more closely with such changes during the life of this PNA. 

With regard to enhanced services, in this case the inhaler technique service, the HWB is mindful that 

only those commissioned by NHS England are regarded as pharmaceutical services. However, since 

1st April 2013, there has been a shift in commissioning arrangements for some services that would 

otherwise be defined as enhanced services. Therefore, the absence of a particular service being 

commissioned by NHS England is mitigated by commissioning through the NHS Trafford CCG and 

Trafford council. This PNA identifies those locally commissioned services. 

Whether commissioned as enhanced or LCS, the HWB consider these to provide both an 

improvement and better access to such services for the residents of Trafford HWB area where such a 

Page 96



 

Page 77 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

requirement has been identified and verified at a local level. At the time of writing this PNA, the 

HWB has not identified either itself or through consultation any requirement to provide either 

further those services already commissioned or to commence the provision of enhanced 

pharmaceutical services not currently commissioned. 

Taking into account the totality of information available, the HWB consider the location, number, 

distribution and choice of pharmacies covering each of the four neighbourhoods and the Trafford 

HWB area providing enhanced services, including the mitigation by the provision of LCSs, to provide 

an improvement and better access for population. The HWB has not received any significant 

information to conclude otherwise currently or of any local future specified circumstance that would 

alter that conclusion. 

11. Conclusions (for the purpose of Schedule 

1 to the 2013 Regulations) 
THE CONCLUSIONS REACHED ARE BASED ON THE INFORMATION CURRENTLY CONTAINED WITHIN 

THE PNA. SHOULD ANYTHING OF RELEVANCE BE  IDENTIFIED DURING THE CONSULTATION THAT 

MAKES  IT  NECESSARY  TO  REVIEW  AND  ALTER  THE  CONCLUSION  THEN  THIS WILL  TAKE  PLACE 

ONCE THE CONSULTATION RESPONSES HAVE BEEN CONSIDERED. 

11.1 Current provision – necessary and other relevant 

services 

As described in particular in sections 6.1, 6.2 and 6.3 and required by paragraphs one and three of 

schedule 1 to the Regulations, Trafford HWB has had regard to the pharmaceutical services referred 

to in this PNA in seeking to identify those that are necessary, have secured improvements or better 

access, or have contributed towards meeting the need for pharmaceutical services in the area of the 

HWB. 

Trafford HWB has determined that while not all provision was necessary to meet the need for 

pharmaceutical services, the majority of the current provision was likely to be necessary as 

described in section 9 with that identified in section 10 as providing improvement or better access 

without the need to differentiate in any further detail. 

11.2 Necessary services – gaps in provision 

As described in particular in section 9 and required by paragraph two of schedule 1 to the 

Regulations, Trafford HWB has had regard to the following in seeking to identify whether there are 

any gaps in necessary services in the area of the HWB. 

   

Page 97



 

Page 78 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

11.2.1 Access to essential services 

In order to assess the provision of essential services against the needs of our population we consider 

access (travelling times and opening hours) as the most important factor in determining the extent 

to which the current provision of essential services meets the needs of the population. 

11.2.2 Access to essential services during normal working hours 

Trafford HWB has determined that the travel times as identified in section 6.1.1 to access essential 

services are reasonable in all the circumstances. 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no current gaps in the 

need for provision of essential services during normal working hours have been identified. 

11.2.3 Access to essential services outside normal working hours 

In Trafford there is good access to essential services outside normal working hours in all four 

neighbourhoods and across the HWB area. This is due to the supplementary opening hours offered 

by most pharmacies. It is not expected that any of the current pharmacies will reduce the number of 

core opening hours and NHS England foresees no reason to agree a reduction of core opening hours 

for any service provider except on an ad hoc basis to cover extenuating circumstances. 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no current gaps in the 

provision of essential services outside normal working hours have been identified. 

11.2.4 Access to advanced and enhanced services 

Insofar as only NHS England may commission these services, sections 6.1 and 6.2 of this PNA identify 

access to enhanced and advanced services. 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no current gaps in the 

provision of advanced and enhanced services have been identified. 

11.3 Future provision of necessary services 

Trafford HWB has not identified any pharmaceutical services that are not currently provided but that 

would, in specified future circumstances, need to be provided in order to meet a need for 

pharmaceutical services. 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no gaps in the need for 

pharmaceutical services in specified future circumstances have been identified. 

   

Page 98



 

Page 79 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

11.4 Improvements and better access – gaps in 

provision 

As described in particular in section 10 and required by paragraph 4 of schedule 1 to the 2013 

Regulations, Trafford HWB has had regard to the following in seeking to identify whether there are 

any gaps in other relevant services within the four neighbourhoods and the area of the HWB. 

11.4.1 Access to essential services – present and future 

circumstances 

Trafford HWB considered the conclusion in respect of current provision as set out at 11.1 above and 

the information in respect of essential services as it had done at 11.2. While it was not possible to 

determine which current provision of essential service by location or standard hours provided 

improvement or better access, the HWB was satisfied that some current provision did so. 

Trafford HWB has not identified services that would, if provided either now or in future specified 

circumstances, secure improvements to or better access to essential services. 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no gaps have been 

identified in essential services that if provided either now or in the future would secure 

improvements, or better access, to essential services. 

11.4.2 Current and future access to advanced services 

Not all pharmacies are currently offering MURs or NMS. However, these services are not 

commissioned by NHS England and provided by the pharmacy that have opted to do so. 

In 2015‐16 only three pharmacies did not provide MURs. NHS England will encourage these 

pharmacies and pharmacists to become eligible to deliver MURs and to encourage all pharmacies to 

complete the maximum number of MURs allowed to ensure more eligible patients are able to access 

and benefit from this service. 

In 2015‐16, 11 pharmacies did not provide the NMS. NHS England will encourage pharmacies and 

pharmacists to become eligible to deliver the service so that more eligible patients are able to access 

and benefit from this service. 

Demand for the appliance advanced services (SAC and AUR) is lower than for the other two 

advanced services due to the much smaller proportion of the population that may require these 

services. Pharmacies and DACs may choose which appliances they provide and may also choose 

whether or not to provide the two related advanced services. 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no gaps have been 

identified in the need for advanced services that if provided either now or in the future would 

secure improvements, or better access, to advanced services. 

   

Page 99



 

Page 80 of 80 

Version 1.14 (Consultation) 

11.4.3 Current and future access to enhanced services 

NHS England commissioned just two enhanced service (minor ailments and inhaler technique) from 

pharmacies. It also commissions these services from other non‐pharmacy providers, principally GP 

practices. 

Many of the enhanced services listed in the 2013 directions (Appendix 13) enhanced service 

descriptions) are now commissioned by Trafford Council (public health services) or NHS Trafford CCG 

and so fall outside of the definition of both enhanced services and pharmaceutical services. 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no gaps in respect of 

securing improvements, or better access, to enhanced services either now or in specified future 

circumstances have been identified. 

11.5 Other NHS Services 

As required by paragraph five of schedule 1 to the 2013 Regulations, Trafford HWB has had regard in 

particular to section nine considering any other NHS services that may affect the determination in 

respect of pharmaceutical services in the area of the HWB. 

Based on the information available at the time of developing this PNA, no gaps in respect of 

securing improvements, or better access, to other NHS services either now or in specified future 

circumstances have been identified. 

11.6 How the assessment was carried out 

As required by paragraph 6 of schedule 1 to the 2013 Regulations: 

In respect of how the HWB considered whether to determine neighbourhoods in its area for the 

purpose of this PNA, see section 3 and section 6 and maps 10 – 13. 

In respect of how the HWB took into account the different needs in its area, including those who 

share a protected characteristic, see sections 6. 

In respect of the consultation undertaken by the HWB, see Appendix 13 (TO BE ADDED POST 

CONSULTATION). 

11.7 Map of provision 

As required by paragraph seven of schedule 1 to the 2013 Regulations, the HWB has published a 

map of premises providing pharmaceutical in Map 5 (Section 6.1). Additional maps are also provided 

throughout and as listed in Appendix 11. 

Page 100



Appendix One – Glossary  
 
A&E  Accident and Emergency   LCS  Locally Commissioned Services 
AIDS  Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome  LGBT  Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender 
ASD  Autistic Spectrum Disorder   LMC  Local Medical Committee  
AUR  Appliance Use Review   LPC  Local Pharmaceutical Committee  
BME  Black and Minority Ethnic   LPS  Local Pharmaceutical Service 
CCG  Clinical Commissioning Group  LSOA  Lower Super Output Areas 
CHD  Coronary Heart Disease  LTC  Long Term Condition  
COPD  Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease  MI  Myocardial Infarction 
COVER  Cover of Vaccination Evaluated Rapidly  MMR  Measles, Mumps and Rubella 
CVD  Coronary Vascular Disease  MUR  Medicines Use Review 
DAC  Dispensing Appliance Contractor   NEX  Needle and Syringe Exchange Services 
EHC  Emergency Hormonal Contraception   NHS  National Health Service 
EPS  Electronic Prescription Service  NHS CB NHS Commissioning Board 
ES  Essential Services  NICE  National Institute for Clinical & Healthcare Excellence 
EU  European Union  NMS  New Medicine Service 
FHSAU  Family Health Services Appeal Unit   NW  North West 
GCSE  General Certificate of Secondary Education   ONS  Office for National Statistic  
GFR  General Fertility Rate   OOH  Out of Hours 
GM  Greater Manchester  PCT  Primary Care Trust 
GP  General Practitioner   PGD  Patient Group Direction  
GUM  Genito‐Urinary Medicine  PHE  Public Health England 
HIV  Human Immunodeficiency Virus   PNA  Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 
HSCIC  Health & Social Care Information Centre  SAC  Stoma Appliance Customisation 
HWB  Health and Wellbeing Board  SAR  Standardised Admission Ratio  
IMD  Index of Multiple Deprivation   SMR  Standardised Mortality Rate  
JHWS  Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy  STDs  Sexually Transmitted Diseases 
JSA  Jobseeker Allowance   STIs  Sexually Transmitted Infections 
JSNA  Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  TB  Tuberculosis 
KM  Kilometre   UK  United Kingdom 
LA  Local Authority    
 

P
age 101



  

Appendix Two – Terms of Reference 

 
  

Name of Committee Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) Steering Group 

  
Connectivity   
Reports to Updates to the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) via the 

HWB Lead/HWB PNA Champion 
  
Bodies reporting to this Group None 
  
Chair Senior Medicines Optimisation Pharmacist 
  
Membership Representatives from the Greater Manchester Shared 

Services (GMSS) including: 
 Senior Medicines Optimisation Pharmacist 
 Project Support Officer 

 
Representatives from Trafford Council  
 
Representatives from Trafford CCG 
 
NHS Area Team Representative  
 
LPC Representative  
 

  
Function of Committee   

 To develop a PNA for Trafford HWB that fulfills the 
statutory requirements specified in ‘The National 
Health Service (Pharmaceutical Services and Local 
Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013. 
 

 To identify and report any risk to the HWB that might 
jeopardise the successful completion of the above.  

  
Responsibilities/Actions  GMSS will lead the development of the PNA and may ask 

for support from all stakeholders during the process with 
regards to reviewing specific areas. 

  
Outputs of the Group  To produce a Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment for 

Trafford HWB.  
  
Frequency of Meetings It is envisaged that the group will ‘meet’ both electronically 

and in person as often as required to ensure successful 
completion of the PNA.  

 
 

Page 102



Powered by

Appendix Three - Trafford
Public Survey Results

P
age 103



Q2: Do you use a pharmacy? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 53    Skipped: 0

P
age 104



Q3: If you do use a pharmacy, how often would you say you used one? Please tick one box 
only.

Answered: 53    Skipped: 0

P
age 105



Q4: Do you have problems accessing a pharmacy due to location? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 53    Skipped: 0

P
age 106



Q5: Do you have problems accessing a pharmacy due to opening hours? Please tick one box 
only.

Answered: 52    Skipped: 1

P
age 107



Q6: Did you know that there are pharmacies in Trafford that are open extended hours (e.g. early 
morning, late night, weekends and bank holidays)? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 53    Skipped: 0

P
age 108



Q7: Do you know where these pharmacies are located? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 40    Skipped: 13

P
age 109



Q8: Have you used these pharmacies early in the morning (before 9am), later at night (after 
7pm), at weekends or on bank holidays? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 39    Skipped: 14

P
age 110



Q9: At what time would you, or do you, find pharmacies with extended hours most useful? 
Please tick all that apply.

Answered: 52    Skipped: 1

P
age 111



Q10: How far from your home or place of work would you be willing to travel to a pharmacy?
Please tick one box only.

Answered: 51    Skipped: 2

P
age 112



Q11: Do you have any difficulties accessing a pharmacy of your choice? Please tick one box 
only.

Answered: 53    Skipped: 0

P
age 113



Q12: Do you have a regular pharmacy? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 53    Skipped: 0

P
age 114



Q13: In terms of location, why do you use this pharmacy regularly? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 47    Skipped: 6

P
age 115



Q14: How do you usually travel to your regular pharmacy? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 47    Skipped: 6

P
age 116



Q15: Do you have any difficulties when travelling to your regular pharmacy? Please tick all that 
apply.

Answered: 47    Skipped: 6

P
age 117



Q16: In terms of staff and services, why do you use this pharmacy regularly? Please tick as 
many answers as appropriate.

Answered: 46    Skipped: 7

P
age 118



Q17: Do you feel that you are provided with sufficient information about your medication e.g. 
dosage, possible side effects? (Please tick one box only)

Answered: 49    Skipped: 4

P
age 119



Q18: If your regular pharmacy was not open, or didn't have the things you need would you… 
Please tick one box only.

Answered: 51    Skipped: 2

P
age 120



Q19: How important are the following aspects of pharmacy services? Please tick one box per 
row only.

Answered: 51    Skipped: 2

P
age 121



Q20: Have you have ever paid for or used any of the following services from your pharmacy? 
(Please tick one box per row only)

Answered: 51    Skipped: 2

P
age 122



Q20: Have you have ever paid for or used any of the following services from your pharmacy? 
(Please tick one box per row only)

Answered: 51    Skipped: 2

P
age 123



Q21: Are there any other services you would like your pharmacy to offer? Please tick one box 
only.

Answered: 50    Skipped: 3

P
age 124



Q22: How satisfied were you with the following aspects of service at your pharmacy? Please 
tick one box per row only.

Answered: 51    Skipped: 2

P
age 125



Q22: How satisfied were you with the following aspects of service at your pharmacy? Please 
tick one box per row only.

Answered: 51    Skipped: 2

P
age 126



Q23: Did you know pharmacy staff could provide advice of treating minor ailments such as 
viral infections, mild skin conditions, minor cuts, aches and pains, and allergies etc Please tick 
one box only.

Answered: 49    Skipped: 4

P
age 127



Q24: Do you use a dispensing appliance contractor (which isn't a pharmacy) for items such as 
continence products or wound dressings? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 49    Skipped: 4

P
age 128



Q25: Do you use a distance selling pharmacy where you have ordered medicines/appliances 
over the internet, by mail order or by telephone? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 48    Skipped: 5

P
age 129



Q26: My gender is: Please tick one box only.

Answered: 49    Skipped: 4

P
age 130



Q27: Do you identify with the gender you were assigned at birth? (e.g. Male or Female) Please 
tick one box only.

Answered: 49    Skipped: 4

P
age 131



Q28: My age is: Please tick one box only.

Answered: 49    Skipped: 4

P
age 132



Q29: I would describe my ethnic origin as: Please tick one box only.

Answered: 49    Skipped: 4

P
age 133



Q29: I would describe my ethnic origin as: Please tick one box only.

Answered: 49    Skipped: 4

P
age 134



Q30: Do you consider yourself to be disabled? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 49    Skipped: 4

P
age 135



Q31: I would describe my sexuality as: Please tick one box only.

Answered: 49    Skipped: 4

P
age 136



Q32: Please tell us your faith or religion. Please tick one box only.

Answered: 48    Skipped: 5

P
age 137



Q33: What is your marital status? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 48    Skipped: 5

P
age 138



Q34: Which of the following best describes your working situation? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 49    Skipped: 4

P
age 139



Powered by

Appendix Four – Trafford 
Contractor Survey Results

P
age 140



Q2: Which of these advanced services do you CURRENTLY provide?

Answered: 20    Skipped: 0

P
age 141



Q3: Does the pharmacy dispense appliances? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 20    Skipped: 0

P
age 142



Q4: Which of these locally commissioned services do you CURRENTLY provide?

Answered: 20    Skipped: 0

P
age 143



Q5: Which services would you want to provide if commissioned to do so?

Answered: 20    Skipped: 0

P
age 144



Q5: Which services would you want to provide if commissioned to do so?

Answered: 20    Skipped: 0

P
age 145



Q6: Can customers legally park within 50 metres of the Pharmacy? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 20    Skipped: 0

P
age 146



Q7: Can customers with a disability park within 10 metres of your Pharmacy? (with a ‘blue 
badge’)Please tick one box only.

Answered: 20    Skipped: 0

P
age 147



Q8: Is there a bus stop within walking distance of the Pharmacy?Please tick one box only.

Answered: 20    Skipped: 0

P
age 148



Q9: If yes, how long does the walk take?(Please tick one box only)

Answered: 19    Skipped: 1

P
age 149



Q10: Is the entrance to the pharmacy suitable for wheelchair access unaided? Please tick one 
box only.

Answered: 20    Skipped: 0

P
age 150



Q11: Are all areas of the pharmacy floor accessible by wheelchair? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 20    Skipped: 0

P
age 151



Q12: Do you have other facilities in the pharmacy aimed at helping people with disabilities 
access your services? Please tick as many answers as appropriate.

Answered: 19    Skipped: 1

P
age 152



Q13: Consultation Areas

Answered: 19    Skipped: 1

P
age 153



Q13: Consultation Areas

Answered: 19    Skipped: 1

P
age 154



Q14: Information Technology

Answered: 19    Skipped: 1

P
age 155



Q14: Information Technology

Answered: 19    Skipped: 1

P
age 156



Q15: Does the pharmacy normally have two pharmacists on duty at any time during the week?
Please tick one box only.

Answered: 19    Skipped: 1

P
age 157



Q16: If yes, then for how many hours per week are two pharmacists working? Please tick one 
box only.

Answered: 2    Skipped: 18

P
age 158



Q17: If you have a second pharmacist, is the pharmacist there for a specific reason? Please 
tick as many answers as appropriate.

Answered: 3    Skipped: 17

P
age 159



Q18: Do any of your regular pharmacists speak a foreign language? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 19    Skipped: 1

P
age 160



Q19: If yes, which languages are spoken? Please tick as many answers as appropriate.

Answered: 6    Skipped: 14

P
age 161



Q19: If yes, which languages are spoken? Please tick as many answers as appropriate.

Answered: 6    Skipped: 14

P
age 162



Q20: Do any of your regular pharmacy staff speak a foreign language? Please tick one box only.

Answered: 19    Skipped: 1

P
age 163



Q21: If yes, which languages are spoken? Please tick as many answers as appropriate.

Answered: 3    Skipped: 17

P
age 164



Q21: If yes, which languages are spoken? Please tick as many answers as appropriate.

Answered: 3    Skipped: 17

P
age 165



Appendix Five – Commissioned Services 2015/16  
 

 

 
        LA  LA  LA  LA  LA  LA  LA  LA  CCG  CCG  NHS 

E 
Neighbourhood  Ward  Ref  Trading Name  SC  NE  CS  CT  EHC  SA  NRT  HC  MA  PC  IT 

Old Trafford and 
Stretford 

 

Clifford 
 

14  Brooks Bar Pharmacy      Y    Y  Y  Y    Y     
57  Well  Y                Y     
23  G Pennant Roberts  Y  Y  Y    Y  Y  Y    Y     

Davyhulme East 
 

7  Boots  Y    Y    Y  Y  Y    Y    Y+ 
2  Asda Pharmacy  Y    Y    Y  Y  Y    Y  Y   

Gorse Hill 
 

24  Gorse Hill Pharmacy  Y          Y  Y    Y     
53  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy                Y       
37  Peak Pharmacy  Y  Y  Y    Y  Y  Y    Y  Y  Y+ 

Longford 
 

22  Empire Pharmacy*            Y  Y         
21  Elliott’s Pharmacy                  Y     
42  Rowland Pharmacy  Y  Y  Y    Y        Y    Y 
16  C&T Associates  Y    Y    Y        Y    Y 

Stretford 
 

29  Lloyds Pharmacy  Y  Y      Y  Y  Y    Y  Y  Y 
58  Well  Y  Y              Y     
9  Boots  Y  Y  Y  Y  Y  Y  Y    Y     
1  Alphabet Pharmacy*                       

Sale 
 

Ashton Upon Mersey  56  Village Pharmacy      Y    Y    Y    Y     
Brooklands 

 
34  Mai's Pharmacy Ltd            Y  Y    Y     
59  Well                  Y     

Bucklow‐St Martins  44  Rowland Pharmacy                  Y     

Priory 
 

47  Sainsbury's Pharmacy  Y        Y             
27  Hollowood Chemist    Y      Y  Y      Y  Y   
51  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  Y              Y       
8  Boots  Y    Y    Y  Y  Y    Y     

Sale Moor 
43  Rowland Pharmacy  Y  Y  Y    Y  Y  Y    Y     
28  John Hugall      Y  Y  Y  Y  Y    Y    Y 

SC  Supervised Consumption   EHC  Emergency Hormonal Contraception  MA  Minor Ailments 
NE  Needle Exchange  SA  Smoking Advice  PC  Palliative Care 
CS  Chlamydia Screening  NRT  Smoking Cessation NRT  IT  Inhaler Technique 
CT  Chlamydia Treatment  HC  Health Check Pilot     

P
age 166



        LA  LA  LA  LA  LA  LA  LA  LA  CCG  CCG  NHS 
E 

Neighbourhood  Ward  Ref  Trading Name  SC  NE  CS  CT  EHC  SA  NRT  HC  MA  PC  IT 

St Mary's 
18  Cohens Chemist  Y  Y  Y    Y  Y  Y    Y     
41  Rowland Pharmacy  Y  Y      Y  Y      Y     

South Trafford 

Altrincham 
 

10  Boots  Y    Y  Y  Y        Y     
45  Rowlands Pharmacy          Y        Y    Y+ 
36  Oldfield Pharmacy  Y                Y     
13  Broadheath Pharmacy  Y    Y      Y  Y    Y     

Bowdon 
 

26  Helgason Pharmacy  Y  Y              Y     
48  Sainsbury's Pharmacy          Y             
12  Bowdon Pharmacy  Y        Y        Y     

Broadheath 
 

50  Terry's Chemist      Y    Y  Y  Y    Y     
11  Boots  Y  Y  Y    Y  Y  Y    Y     
38  Pelican Pharmacy                  Y     

Hale Barns 
25  Hale Barns Pharmacy  Y                Y     
31  Lloyds Pharmacy  Y    Y    Y        Y    Y 
30  Lloyds Pharmacy            Y  Y    Y    Y 

Hale Central 
52  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy            Y  Y  Y       
17  Cohens Chemist                  Y     
3  Barry Bladon      Y  Y  Y        Y     

Timperley 
40  Riddings Pharmacy                  Y    Y 
49  Station Pharmacy  Y    Y    Y  Y  Y    Y     

Village 
15  Broomwood Pharmacy  Y  Y  Y    Y  Y  Y    Y  Y  Y+ 
54  Timperley Pharmacy  Y        Y  Y  Y    Y     
65  Well  Y        Y        Y     

Urmston and 
Partington 

Bucklow‐St Martins 
62  Well          Y        Y  Y   
20  Davey Chemists  Y  Y  Y    Y  Y  Y    Y     

Davyhulme East 
4  Boots  Y    Y    Y  Y  Y    Y     
33  Lloyds Pharmacy  Y    Y    Y  Y  Y    Y  Y  Y 

Davyhulme West 
6  Boots      Y    Y  Y  Y    Y  Y   
60  Well          Y  Y  Y    Y     

Flixton 
 

19  Conran Late Night Pharmacy                  Y     
61  Well  Y  Y  Y    Y  Y  Y    Y    Y 
39  Reeds Chemist      Y    Y  Y  Y  Y  Y    Y+ 

Urmston 
5  Boots      Y    Y  Y  Y    Y     
46  Sainsbury’s Pharmacy                       

P
age 167



        LA  LA  LA  LA  LA  LA  LA  LA  CCG  CCG  NHS 
E 

Neighbourhood  Ward  Ref  Trading Name  SC  NE  CS  CT  EHC  SA  NRT  HC  MA  PC  IT 

32  Lloyds Pharmacy      Y    Y  Y  Y    Y     
35  Malcolm's Pharmacy  Y  Y  Y  Y  Y  Y  Y  Y  Y     
55  Urmston Pharmacy          Y  Y  Y    Y     
64  Well  Y  Y      Y        Y  Y   

Whalley Range  63  Well  Y    Y            Y     
 
 
*Distance selling pharmacy  
+Activity with these providers in 2015/16 

P
age 168



Appendix Six – Trafford Pharmacies and Trafford GP Practices 
 
Pharmacies 
 
Neighbourhood  Ward  Ref  Pharmacy Name Address Postcode  Type of Contract
Old Trafford and 
Stretford 
 

Clifford 
 

14  Brooks Bar Pharmacy 162 ‐ 164 Chorlton Rd M16 7WW  Community ‐ 40hrs
23  G Pennant Roberts 137 Ayres Road M16 9WR  Community ‐ 40hrs
57  Well  65 Ayres Road M16 9NH  Community ‐ 40hrs

Davyhulme 
East 

2  Asda Pharmacy Asda Superstore M41 7ZA  Community ‐ 100hrs
7  Boots  10 Peel Avenue M17 8BD  Community ‐ 40hrs

Gorse Hill 
 

24  Gorse Hill Pharmacy 874 Chester Road M32 0PA  Community ‐ 40hrs
37  Peak Pharmacy 431 Barton Road M32 9PA  Community ‐ 40hrs
53  Tesco In‐Store 

Pharmacy 
Chester Road M32 0RW  Community ‐ 100hrs

Longford 
 

16  C&T Associates 77 Great Stone Road M32 8GR  Community ‐ 40hrs
21  Elliotts Pharmacy 60 Seymour Grove M16 0LN  Community ‐ 100hrs
22  Empire Pharmacy 122 Seymour Grove M16 0FF  Distance Selling
42  Rowland Pharmacy 6 Lime Grove M16 0WL  Community ‐ 40hrs

Stretford 
 

1  Alphabet Pharmacy 222 Derbyshire Lane 
West 

M32 9LD  Distance Selling

9  Boots  69 ‐ 72 The Mall M32 9BD  Community ‐ 40hrs
29  Lloyds Pharmacy The Delamere Centre M32 0DF  Community ‐ 40hrs
58  Well  92 Mitford Street M32 8AQ  Community ‐ 40hrs

Sale 
 

Ashton 
Upon 
Mersey 

56  Village Pharmacy 23 Green Lane M33 5PN  Community ‐ 40hrs

Brooklands  34  Mai's Pharmacy Ltd 10 North Parade M33 3JS  Community ‐ 40hrs
59  Well  2 Eastway M33 4DX  Community ‐ 40hrs

Bucklow‐St 
Martins 

44  Rowland Pharmacy 16 Plymouth Road M33 5JD  Community ‐ 40hrs

Priory  
  

8  Boots  2 The Mall M33 7XZ  Community ‐ 40hrs
27  Hollowood Chemist 69 Washway Road M33 7SS  Community ‐ 40hrs
47  Sainsbury's 

Pharmacy 
Curzon Road M33 7SA  Community ‐ 40hrs

51  Tesco In‐Store 
Pharmacy 

Hereford Street M33 7XN  Community ‐ 40hrs

Sale Moor 
 

28  John Hugall 143 Northenden Road M33 3HF  Community ‐ 40hrs
43  Rowland Pharmacy 331 Norris Road M33 2UP  Community ‐ 40hrs

St Mary's 
 

18  Cohens Chemist Firsway Health Centre M33 4BR  Community ‐ 40hrs
41  Rowland Pharmacy 54 Coppice Avenue M33 4WB  Community ‐ 40hrs

South Trafford 
 

Altrincham 
 

10  Boots  1 Stamford Quarter WA14 1RH  Community ‐ 40hrs
13  Broadheath 

Pharmacy 
70 Manchester Road WA14 4PJ  Community ‐ 40hrs

36  Oldfield Pharmacy 128 Seamons Road WA14 4LJ  Community ‐ 40hrs
45  Rowlands Pharmacy Lloyd House, 7 Lloyd St WA14 2DD  Community ‐ 40hrs

Bowdon 
 

12  Bowdon Pharmacy 6 Vale View WA14 3BD  Community ‐ 40hrs
26  Helgason Pharmacy 8 Ashley Road WA14 2DW  Community ‐ 40hrs
48  Sainsbury's 

Pharmacy 
Lloyd Street WA14 2SU  Community ‐ 100hrs

Broadheath 
 

11  Boots  Unit 8B, Altrincham 
Retail Park 

WA14 5GR  Community ‐ 40hrs

38  Pelican Pharmacy 344 Manchester Road WA14 5NH  Community ‐ 40hrs
50  Terry's Chemist 28 Sinderland Road WA14 5ET  Community ‐ 40hrs

Hale Barns  25  Hale Barns Pharmacy Shay Lane Medical 
Centre, Shay Lane 

WA15 8NZ  Community ‐ 100hrs

30  Lloyds Pharmacy 321 Hale Road WA15 8SS  Community ‐ 40hrs
31  Lloyds Pharmacy 186 Grove Lane WA15 8PU  Community ‐ 40hrs

Hale Central  3  Barry Bladon 219 Ashley Road WA15 9SZ  Community ‐ 40hrs
17  Cohens Chemist 177 Ashley Road WA15 9SD  Community ‐ 40hrsPage 169



Neighbourhood  Ward  Ref  Pharmacy Name Address Postcode  Type of Contract
52  Tesco In‐Store 

Pharmacy 
Manor Road WA15 9QT  Community ‐ 40hrs

Timperley 
 

40  Riddings Pharmacy 38 Riddings Road WA15 6BP  Community ‐ 40hrs
49  Station Pharmacy 102 Park Road WA15 6TE  Community ‐ 40hrs

Village 
 

15  Broomwood 
Pharmacy 

63 Briarfield Road WA15 7DD  Community ‐ 40hrs

54  Timperley Pharmacy 250 Stockport Road WA15 7UN  Community ‐ 100hrs
65  Well  238 Stockport Road WA15 7UN  Community ‐ 40hrs

Urmston and 
Partington 
 

Bucklow‐St 
Martins 
 

20  Davey Chemists 14a Warburton Lane M31 4WJ  Community ‐ 40hrs
62  Well  Partington Health 

Centre 
M31 4FY  Community ‐ 40hrs

Davyhulme 
East 

4  Boots  179 Canterbury Road M41 0SE  Community ‐ 40hrs
33  Lloyds Pharmacy Davyhulme Medical 

Centre 
M41 7WJ  Community ‐ 40hrs

Davyhulme 
West 

6  Boots  Unit 8A, Trafford Retail 
Park 

M41 7FN  Community ‐ 40hrs

60  Well  Unit 2, Woodsend 
Circle 

M41 8GY  Community ‐ 40hrs

Flixton   19  Conran Late Night 
Pharmacy 

175 Moorside Road M41 5SJ  Community ‐ 100hrs

39  Reeds Chemist 182 Church Road M41 9FD  Community ‐ 40hrs
61  Well  475 Moorside Road M41 8TW  Community ‐ 40hrs

Urmston  5  Boots  Unit 4, Eden Square 
Shopping Centre 

M41 0NA  Community ‐ 40hrs

32  Lloyds Pharmacy 3 Crofts Bank Road M41 0TZ  Community ‐ 40hrs
35  Malcolm's Pharmacy 28 Flixton Road M41 5AA  Community ‐ 100hrs
46  Sainsbury’s

Pharmacy 
Eden Square Shopping 
Centre 

M41 0NA  Community ‐ 100hrs

55  Urmston Pharmacy 287b Stretford Road M41 9NU  Community ‐ 40hrs
64  Well  2 Station Bridge M41 9SB  Community ‐ 40hrs

   Whalley 
Range 

63  Well  201 Upper Chorlton 
Road 

M16 0BH  Community ‐ 40hrs

 
GP Practices 
 
Neighbourhood  Ward  Ref  Practice Name Address   Postcode
Old Trafford and 
Stretford 
 

Clifford  G11  Brooks Bar Medical Centre  162‐164 Chorlton Road   M16 7WW 
Gorse Hill  G14  North Trafford Group Practice  864‐866 Chester Road  M32 0PA 

G15  Gorse Hill Medical Centre  879 Chester Road  M32 0RN 

G16 
Lostock Medical Centre & 
Pharmacy  Barton Road  M32 9PA 

Longford 
G19 

The Old Trafford Medical 
Practice   70 Seymour Grove  M16 0LW 

Stretford 
G23 

The Delamere Medical 
Practice 

Delamere Centre, Delamere 
Avenue   M32 0DF 

Sale 
 

Brooklands  G6  Conway Road Health Centre  80a Conway Road   M33 2TB 
G7  The Surgery  12 Derbyshire Road South   M33 3JP 

Bucklow St 
Martin  G10  Bodmin Road Health Centre  Bodmin Road, Ashton‐on‐Mersey   M33 5JH 
Priory  

G20 
Washway Road Medical 
Centre  67 Washway Road  M33 7SS 

Sale Moor 
G21 

Boundary House Medical 
Centre  462 Northenden Road  M33 2RH 

St Mary's  G22  Firsway Health Centre  121 Firsway  M33 4BR 
South Trafford 
 

Altrincham 
 

G1  Barrington Medical Centre  68 Barrington Road  WA14 1JB 
G2  The Family Surgery  94 Navigation Road  WA14 1LL 

Page 170



Neighbourhood  Ward  Ref  Practice Name Address   Postcode
G3  Altrincham Medical Practice  Lloyd House, 7 Lloyd Street,   WA14 2DD 

Bowdon  G4  St Johns Medical Centre  St Johns Road   WA14 2NW 
Broadheath  G5  West Timperley Health Centre  21 Dawson Road  WA14 5PF 
Hale Barns 
 

G17  Shay Lane Medical Centre  Shay Lane   WA15 8NZ 
G18  Shay Lane Medical Centre  Shay Lane   WA15 8NZ 

Timperley 
 

G24  Riddings Family Health Centre  34 Riddings Road   WA15 6BP 
G25  Timperley Health Centre  169 Grove Lane   WA15 6PH 
G26  The Village Surgery  169 Grove Lane  WA15 6PH 
G27  Grove Medical Practice  169 Grove Lane   WA15 6PH 
G28  Park Medical Practice  119 Park Road   WA15 6QQ 

Urmston and 
Partington 
 

Bucklow St 
Martin  G8  Partington Central Surgery 

Partington Health Centre, Central 
Road   M31 4FY 

G9  Partington Family Practice 
Partington Health Centre Central 
Road  M31 4FY 

Davyhulme 
East  G12  Davyhulme Medical Centre  130 Broadway  M41 7WJ 
Davyhulme 
West  G13  Trafford Health Centre 

Trafford General Hospital, 
Moorside road  M41 5SL 

Urmston 
 

G29  Primrose Ave Surgery  Primrose Avenue   M41 0TY 
G30  Flixton Road Medical Centre  131‐133 Flixton Road   M41 5ZZ 
G31  The Urmston Group Practice  154‐156 Church Road Urmston   M41 9DL 

G32 
Gloucester House Medical 
Centre  17 Station Road Urmston   M41 9JG 

 

Page 171



Appendix Seven – MURs, NMS and Stoma providers 2015/16  
 

 
Locality  Ward  Ref  Trading Name  MURs  NMS  Stoma  FLU 

Old Trafford and Stretford
 

Clifford 
 

14  Brooks Bar Pharmacy  Y  Y    Y 
57  Well  Y  Y    Y 
23  G Pennant Roberts  Y       

Davyhulme East 
 

7  Boots  Y  Y    Y 
2  Asda Pharmacy  Y      Y 

Gorse Hill 
 

24  Gorse Hill Pharmacy  Y  Y     
53  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  Y  Y    Y 
37  Peak Pharmacy  Y  Y    Y 

Longford 
 

22  Empire Pharmacy*  Y  Y     
21  Elliott’s Pharmacy         
42  Rowland Pharmacy  Y  Y    Y 
16  C&T Associates  Y  Y    Y 

Stretford 
 

29  Lloyds Pharmacy  Y  Y  Y  Y 
58  Well  Y  Y    Y 
9  Boots  Y  Y    Y 
1  Alphabet Pharmacy*         

Sale 
 

Ashton Upon Mersey  56  Village Pharmacy  Y  Y    Y 
Brooklands 
 

34  Mai's Pharmacy Ltd  Y       
59  Well  Y  Y     

Bucklow‐St Martins  44  Rowland Pharmacy  Y  Y  Y   

Priory 
 

47  Sainsbury's Pharmacy  Y  Y    Y 
27  Hollowood Chemist  Y  Y    Y 
51  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  Y  Y    Y 
8  Boots  Y  Y    Y 

Sale Moor 
43  Rowland Pharmacy  Y  Y  Y   
28  John Hugall  Y       

St Mary's 
18  Cohens Chemist  Y  Y     
41  Rowland Pharmacy  Y  Y  Y  Y 

South Trafford  Altrincham 
 

10  Boots  Y  Y    Y 
45  Rowlands Pharmacy  Y  Y  Y  Y 
36  Oldfield Pharmacy  Y  Y     
13  Broadheath Pharmacy  Y  Y     

P
age 172



Locality  Ward  Ref  Trading Name  MURs  NMS  Stoma  FLU 

Bowdon 
 

26  Helgason Pharmacy  Y  Y    Y 
48  Sainsbury's Pharmacy  Y  Y    Y 
12  Bowdon Pharmacy  Y       

Broadheath 
 

50  Terry's Chemist  Y  Y    Y 
11  Boots  Y  Y    Y 
38  Pelican Pharmacy  Y       

Hale Barns 
25  Hale Barns Pharmacy  Y       
31  Lloyds Pharmacy  Y  Y  Y  Y 
30  Lloyds Pharmacy  Y  Y  Y  Y 

Hale Central 
52  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  Y  Y    Y 
17  Cohens Chemist  Y  Y     
3  Barry Bladon         

Timperley 
40  Ridding’s Pharmacy  Y  Y     
49  Station Pharmacy  Y  Y     

Village 
15  Broomwood Pharmacy  Y  Y    Y 
54  Timperley Pharmacy  Y  Y     
65  Well  Y  Y     

Urmston and Partington 

Bucklow‐St Martins 
62  Well  Y  Y    Y 
20  Davey Chemists  Y  Y    Y 

Davyhulme East 
4  Boots  Y  Y    Y 
33  Lloyds Pharmacy  Y  Y  Y  Y 

Davyhulme West 
6  Boots  Y  Y    Y 
60  Well  Y  Y    Y 

Flixton 
 

19  Conran Late Night Pharmacy  Y       
61  Well  Y  Y    Y 
39  Reeds Chemist  Y  Y  Y  Y 

Urmston 

5  Boots  Y  Y    Y 
46  Sainsbury’s Pharmacy  Y  Y    Y 
32  Lloyds Pharmacy  Y  Y  Y  Y 
35  Malcolm's Pharmacy  Y  Y    Y 
55  Urmston Pharmacy  Y  Y    Y 
64  Well  Y  Y    Y 

Whalley Range  63  Well  Y  Y    Y 
 
 
*Distance selling pharmacy    

P
age 173



Appendix Eight – Community Pharmacy Opening Hours 
 

Neighbourhood  Ward 

Weekdays  Saturdays 

Sundays 

8am 
or 

earlier  AM  PM 

7pm 
or 

later 

Closed 
for 

lunch 

8am 
or 

earlier  AM  PM 

7pm 
or 

later 

Closed 
for 

lunch 
Sale 
 

Ashton upon Mersey  0  1  1  0  0  0  1  1  0  0  0 
Brooklands  0  2  2  0  1  0  1  0  0  0  0 

Bucklow St Martins (Sale)  0  1  1  0  1  0  1  0  0  0  0 
Priory  2  4  4  2  0  2  3  3  2  0  2 

Sale Moor  0  2  2  0  1  0  2  1  0  0  0 
St Marys  0  2  2  0  1  0  1  0  0  0  0 

Old Trafford and Stretford 
 

Clifford  0  3  3  1  2  0  2  0  0  0  0 
Davyhulme East (Old Trafford)  1  2  2  2  0  1  2  2  2  0  2 

Gorse Hill  1  3  3  1  0  1  1  1  1  0  1 
Longford  1  3  3  2  1  1  2  1  1  0  1 
Stretford  0  3  3  1  0  0  1  1  0  0  1 

South Trafford  
 

Altrincham  0  4  4  0  1  0  3  1  0  0  1 
Bowden  1  3  3  1  0  1  2  1  1  0  1 

Broadheath  0  3  3  1  0  0  1  1  0  0  1 
Hale Barns  1  3  3  1  0  0  3  3  1  0  1 
Hale Central  1  3  3  1  0  1  2  2  1  0  1 
Timperley  0  2  2  0  0  0  1  0  0  0  0 
Village  1  3  3  1  1  1  2  2  1  0  1 

Urmston and Partington  
 

Bucklow St Martins (Partington)  0  2  2  0  0  0  2  0  0  0  0 
Davyhulme Easy (Urmston)  0  2  2  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Davyhulme West  0  2  2  1  0  0  1  1  0  0  1 
Flixton  1  3  3  1  0  1  3  1  1  0  1 
Urmston  2  6  6  3  0  2  6  5  2  0  2 

*Please note there may be some variation in opening and closing times on certain days.  
 This table does not include distance selling pharmacies or DACs.  

NHS Choices. For full details of pharmacy opening hours please see 

P
age 174



Appendix Nine – One mile boundary pharmacies  
 

Ref  Pharmacy   Address   Town  Postcode 
M14  Moorcroft Pharmacy  164 Moorcroft Road, Northern Moor  Manchester  M23 0AH 
M15  Lloyds pharmacy  37 Petersfield Drive, Baguley  Manchester  M23 9PS 
M16  Well  491 Palatine Road, Northenden  Manchester  M22 4DH 
M17  Well  352 ‐ 354 Palatine Road, Northenden  Manchester  M22 4HD 
M26  Well  420 Wilbraham Road, Chorlton‐cum‐Hardy  Manchester  M21 0AS 
M27  Boots the Chemist  20‐22 Chorlton Place, Wilbraham Road, Chorlton‐cum‐Hardy  Manchester  M21 9AQ 
M28  Beech Road Pharmacy  107 Beech Road, Chorlton‐cum‐Hardy  Manchester  M21 9EQ 
M32  Manley Pharmacy  207 Clarendon  Road, Whalley Range  Manchester  M16 0EH 
M33  Range Pharmacy  121 Withington Road, Whalley Range  Manchester  M16 8EB 
M34  Wilbraham Pharmacy  521 Wilbraham Road, Chorlton‐cum‐Hardy  Manchester  M21 0UF 
M38  Well  280 Barlow Moor Road, Chorlton‐cum‐Hardy  Manchester  M21 8HA 
M65  Manor Pharmacy  172 Stretford Road, Hulme  Manchester  M15 5TL 
M66  Faith Pharmacy  59 Booth Street West, Hulme  Manchester  M15 6PQ 
M67  Lloyds pharmacy  2 Whitswood Close, Moss Side  Manchester  M16 7AW 
M75  Boots the Chemist  3A The Circus, Portland Street  Manchester  M1 4RL 
M81  Well  23 Bowland Road, Baguley  Manchester  M23 1JP 
M82  Lloyds pharmacy  52 Bowland Road, Baguley  Manchester  M23 1JX 
M83  Well  Maples Medical Centre, 2 Scout Drive, Newall Green  Manchester  M23 2SY 
M84  Thackers Pharmacy  436 Altrincham Road, Baguley  Manchester  M23 9AB 
M89  Boots the Chemist  25 Hale Top, Wythenshawe  Manchester  M22 5RN 
M90  Lloyds pharmacy  10 Hale Top Civic Centre, Wythenshawe  Manchester  M22 5RN 
M91  Boots the Chemist  Airside Terminal 1, The Concourse, Manchester Airport  Manchester  M90 3HG 
M99  Carter David Disp Chemist  1A Maple Road, Brooklands  Manchester  M23 9RL 
M100  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  Altrincham Road, Baguley  Manchester  M23 9TJ 
M101  Click Chemist  100B Sale Road, Sale  Manchester  M23 0BX 
M102  Rowlands Pharmacy  104 Sale Road, Northern Moor  Manchester  M23 0BX 
M107  Everest Chorlton Pharmacy  496 Wilbraham Road, Chorlton‐cum‐Hardy  Manchester  M21 9AS 
M108  Everest Pharmacy  117b Withington Road, Whalley Range  Manchester  M16 8EE 

P
age 175



Ref  Pharmacy   Address   Town  Postcode 
M109  Elliotts Pharmacy Whalley Range  171 Upper Chorlton Road, Whalley Range  Manchester  M16 9RT 
M112  Mersey Bank Pharmacy  30 Mersey Bank Avenue, Chorlton‐cum‐Hardy  Manchester  M21 7NN 
M128  Newmass Pharmacy  Moss Side Health Centre, Monton Street, Moss Side  Manchester  M14 4GP 
M129  St Lawrence Pharmacy  Shawheath Close, Hulme  Manchester  M15 4BQ 
M130  Asda Pharmacy  100 Princess Road, Hulme  Manchester  M15 5AS 
M131  iPharma‐C  123 Moss Lane East, Hulme  Manchester  M15 5DD 
M132  Medichem Pharmacy  304 Claremont Road, Moss Side  Manchester  M14 4EP 
M133  Cohens Chemist  167 Princess Road, Moss Side  Manchester  M14 4RL 
M135  Cameolord Pharmacy  16 Oxford Street, City Centre  Manchester  M1 5AE 
M140  Asda Pharmacy  1 Swan Walk, Wythenshawe  Manchester  M22 5HZ 
M141  Lloyds pharmacy  Wythenshawe Forum Centre, Wythenshawe  Manchester  M22 5RX 
S3  Boots the Chemist  Regent Retail Park, 46 Ordsall Lane, Regent Road  Salford   M5 3TP 
S4  Boots the Chemist  18 The Mall  Salford   M30 0EA 
S8  Church Street Chemist  99 ‐ 101 Church Street  Salford  M30 0EJ 
S9  Clarendon Pharmacy  7 Kemsing Walk  Salford  M5 4BS 
S10  Cohens Chemist  132 ‐ 134 Church Street, Eccles  Salford  M30 0LS 
S14  Well  203 Eccles Old Road   Salford   M6 8HA 
S16  Well  512 Liverpool Road  Salford   M44 6AJ 
S17  Well  32 Russell Street  Salford  M30 0NU 
S18  Gatley Pharmacy  220 Liverpool Road, Patricroft  Salford  M30 0PF 
S22  K's Chemist Ltd  120 Phoebe Street  Salford  M5 3PH 
S23  Lloyds pharmacy  Irlam Health Centre, MacDonald Road   Salford    M44 5AA 
S24  Lloyds pharmacy  90 Liverpool Road  Salford   M44 6FN 
S25  Lloyds pharmacy  178 Liverpool Road  Salford   M44 5DD 
S28  Lloyds pharmacy  109 Langworthy Road  Salford  M6 5PH 
S29  Lloyds pharmacy  115 New Lane,  Peel Green  Salford   M30 7JW 
S30  Manor Pharmacy  202 Chapel Street  Salford   M3 6BY 
S31  Peel Green Pharmacy  625 Liverpool Road  Salford  M30 7BY 
S36  Sainsbury's Supermarkets Ltd  100 Regent Road  Salford  M5 4QU 
S39  Springfield Pharmacy  Springfield Medical Centre, 384 Liverpool Road  Salford  M30 8QD 
S41  Tesco In‐Store Pharmacy  Fairhills Road, Irlam  Salford  M44 6BL 

P
age 176



Ref  Pharmacy   Address   Town  Postcode 
S59  your local Boots pharmacy'  193 Langworthy Road  Salford  M6 5PW 
W1  Boots the Chemist  33 The Cross, Lymm  Warrington  WA13 0HR 
W2  Lloyds Chemists  12 The Cross, Lymm  Warrington  WA13 0HP 

 

P
age 177



 

   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PNA 60 Day Consultation Plan 
 
Version: 0.1 
 
1st April 2016 
 

Page 178



 

   

 
 

Contents 
1. Background and current context ............................................................................................................................................................................ 2 

2. Communications context and scope ...................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

3. Key outcomes ........................................................................................................................................................................................................ 2 

4.  Key Audiences ....................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

5.  Consultation engagement ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

6.  Budget ................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

7.  Evaluation .............................................................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

 
  P

age 179



 

 
 

 1. Background and current context 
 
The Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) is a legal document which details services which would be desirable and necessary in a locality based 
on the local health needs and population demographics. 
 
The Health and Social Care Act 2012 transferred the responsibility for developing and updating the PNAs to the LA Health and Wellbeing Boards 
(HWBs). 
 
The NHS (Pharmaceutical Services and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013 set out the legislative basis for developing and updating 
PNAs and can be found at: http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made. 
 
2. Communications context and scope 
 
This document details the scope of formal consultation and the proposed methods that will be used to engage different stakeholders and ensure 
patient and public involvement within this PNA.  
 
There is a need for the local authority to understand; 
 

 Local people and their representatives affected by the new service; 
 Existing Pharmacy Services/Community based providers; 
 Patients affected by possible new services in the area; 
 Patient Services and Formal Complaints; and 
 Other key stakeholders 

 
Details of these issues can be gathered by public and pharmacy service provider surveys. The information from these can then be used to inform the 
final PNA document. 
 
Prior to publication of the final document a draft version should be available for interested stakeholders to be able to comment on its content. This is 
called the formal consultation. 
 
The formal consultation programme will commence on XXX and will run for a period of 60 days. Therefore, the consultation will formally close on XXX. 
 
3. Key outcomes 
 

 To encourage constructive feedback from a variety of stakeholders between XXX and XXX. 
 To ensure a wide range of primary care health professionals provide opinions and views on what is contained within the PNA 

P
age 180



 

 
 

 
4.  Key audiences 
 
The regulations state that: 
 
When making an assessment for the purposes of publishing a pharmaceutical needs assessment, each HWB must consult the following about the 
contents of the assessment it is making— 
 

a) any Local Pharmaceutical Committee for its area (including any Local Pharmaceutical Committee for part of its area or for its area and that of 
all or part of the area of one or more other HWBs); . 

b) any Local Medical Committee for its area (including any Local Medical Committee for part of its area or for its area and that of all or part of the 
area of one or more other HWBs); . 

c) any persons on the pharmaceutical lists and any dispensing doctors list for its area; . 
d) any LPS chemist in its area with whom the NHSCB has made arrangements for the provision of any local pharmaceutical services; . 
e) any Local Healthwatch organisation for its area, and any other patient, consumer or community group in its area which in the opinion of HWB1 

has an interest in the provision of pharmaceutical services in its area; and . 
f) any NHS trust or NHS foundation trust in its area; . 
g) the NHSCB (now known as NHS England); and . 
h) any neighbouring HWB. 

 
The consultation must be for a minimum of 60 days. 
 
The following groups of people could be formally consulted on the draft PNA asked to comment on the assessment and the assumptions that it 
makes. A local decision needs to be made whether these groups are going to be contacted. 
 
 General public 
 Patient Participation Groups in primary care 
 Community Pharmacy Contractor Superintendent Offices 
 Local Authority area CCGs 
 Local Authorities employees 
 Neighbouring CCGs 
 Local Voluntary Groups 
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 Social services  
 
 

P
age 181



 

 
 

 
5.  Consultation engagement  
Although the timescale for the consultation to begin (XXX) and end (XXX) is a standard date, the period of consultation between can be locally agreed 
based on work load. However you do need to ensure that everyone who participates in the consultation has enough time to complete the response 
forms by XXX. 
 
Any paper copies of the response forms can be sent back to Greater Manchester Shared Services (GMSS) who will electronically input the responses 
into the survey – they need to be returned to GMSS by Monday XXX to be included in the analysis. 
 
The advert on homepage of council’s website and the link on other relevant pages need to be done on XXX to ensure the consultation begins on time. 
Everything that follows this should be done within the first month to allow time for responses and targeted work where returns have been low.  
 
All the stakeholders listed below who are preceded by a C are in the compulsory list of people who must be consulted on the draft PNA. 
 
You may feel that you do not need to undertake engagement with all the other stakeholders listed below, or that you will do more, which is a decision 
for your local teams to decide on. 
 
When each section has/has not been attempted we need the two last columns completing to say how many people you engaged with for each 
element before this is sent back at the end of the consultation period. 
 
 
 Stakeholder  Channel Detail Cost Responsibility Complete Reach 
 General population Advert on homepage of 

council’s website 
Large advert on the carousel with a 
link to the consultation document and 
survey monkey for responses. 

No cost  Comms team at 
LA 

e.g. yes or 
no 

e.g. 2,100 
people  

 General population Links to survey on relevant 
webpages on council’s 
website 

Identify relevant webpages and add a 
couple of sentences about the 
consultation document/survey along 
with a link 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

C H&WB Board Health and Wellbeing 
Board secretary 

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

No cost LA   

C Neighbouring 
H&WB boards 

Health and Wellbeing 
Board  

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 

No cost LA   

P
age 182



 

 
 

 Stakeholder  Channel Detail Cost Responsibility Complete Reach 
response form. 

C NHS 
Commissioning 
Board 
(NHS England) 

Email consultation 
document to GM local area 
team 

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

No cost LA   

 General population Face to face surveys at 
local events – could be 
where the LA is already in 
attendance  

Attendance at local events in 
targeted communities and complete 
paper surveys face to face with 
members of the public. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

 General population Advert in local newspapers Quarter page, black and white advert 
in local newspaper to direct people to 
the online survey would be advised  

Various 
cost  

Comms team at 
LA 

  

 General population Press release  Short news piece with link to the 
survey. 

No cost council’s press 
office 

  

 General population Electronic Flyers Produce and distribute A5 flyers to 
pharmacies to promote the survey 
and give the online address. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

 Local HOSC Email consultation 
document 

Send out an electronic link to the 
consultation document with a link to 
the online response form. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

 Local PH 
Committees 

Email consultation 
document  

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

C Pharmacy 
contractors 
(including appliance 
and distance selling 
pharmacies) 

Email consultation 
document to pharmacy 
superintendent 

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

Printing 
and 
postage 
costs 

Comms team at 
LA 

  

C LPS pharmacy 
contractors 

Email consultation 
document  

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

Printing 
and 
postage 
costs 

Comms team at 
LA 

  

C Local 
Pharmaceutical 

Email consultation 
document to LPC secretary 

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

P
age 183



 

 
 

 Stakeholder  Channel Detail Cost Responsibility Complete Reach 
Committee document with a link to the online 

response form. 
C  Local Medical 

Committee 
Email consultation 
document to LMC secretary 

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA  

  

 Local Authority 
Staff 

Council internal 
communications campaign  

Desktop wallpaper and Intranet 
homepage story to encourage staff to 
complete the online survey. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

 General population Council social media 
Twitter  
Facebook  

Post regular tweets with a link to the 
survey and submit content for 
Facebook   

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

C Healthwatch Email Healthwatch Contact Health Watch to ask for 
support to encourage Link users to 
complete the survey 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

C NHS Acute Trusts Send link to head of 
pharmacy 

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

C NHS Mental Health 
Trusts 

Send link to head of 
pharmacy 

Send out an electronic link to the 
electronic copy of the consultation 
document with a link to the online 
response form. 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

 Local 
Commissioners 

Patient groups at the local 
CCG 

M&C to contact to ask for support for 
PPI group to complete the survey  

No cost Comms team at 
CCG/LA 

  

 MPs and Local 
councillor’s 

Email MP and Councillor’s Email sent to all MPs and councillors 
to make them aware of the survey 
and give more information about it.  

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

 Local Voluntary, 
Health and 
community Faith 
Groups 

Email to other relevant 
groups and organisations to 
give information about the 
survey and ask for 
participation 

Below is an example of some groups 
this could be sent to:  

 Prison Pharmacy’s 
 Care UK 
 Asylum seekers 
 Schools  
 Colleges  
 Older People’s Forum 

No cost Comms team at 
LA 

  

P
age 184



 

 
 

 Stakeholder  Channel Detail Cost Responsibility Complete Reach 
 Adult Safeguarding 

Board 
 Men’s Action Group 
 Women’s Centre 
 BME Forum 
 Interfaith Network 
 Community Committees 
 Carers Centre 
 MIND 
 Breathe Easy 

 
 

6.  Budget  
It is advised that a budget is agreed with Public Health at a local level to be used to promote the consultation and to cover costs for printing out 
response forms, consultation documents and postage of forms back to GMSS if needed. 
 

7.  Evaluation  
A consultation report and an evaluation report will be provided by GMSS. The Consultation report will analyse the feedback received and will also be 
used to update the final PNA. The evaluation report will be used to analyse the level of participants and the number of people engaged with. 

 

P
age 185



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix Eleven – Maps 

   

P
age 186



Map 1 – Trafford Neighbourhoods and Wards 

 

P
age 187



Map 2 – Pharmacy Contractor Type 

 

P
age 188



Map 3 – Population Density (Source 2011 Census) 

 

P
age 189



Map 4 – IMD 2016 by LSOA 

 

P
age 190



Map 5 – Pharmacy and GP Locations 

 

P
age 191



Map 6 –  One mile buffer around Trafford pharmacies 

 

P
age 192



Map 7 – Pharmacies within 1 mile of Trafford border 

 

P
age 193



Map 8 – Weekday opening hours 

 

P
age 194



Map 9 – Weekend opening hours 

 

P
age 195



Map 10 to 13 – Neighbourhood maps – to follow 

P
age 196



APPENDIX 12 - ANALYSIS OF PNA CONSULTATION 

The formal consultation period of this Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) ran from DD/MM/YYYY until DD/MM/YYYY. The draft 
PNA and consultation response form were issued to all of the stakeholders listed in Appendix 12. The documents were posted on the 
intranet and internet. 

 The number of responses received totalled NN. 

 Of these NN thought that the explanation of the PNA was sufficient. 

 NN thought that the PNA provided an adequate assessment of pharmaceutical services in the Trafford area. 

 NN thought that the PNA provided a satisfactory overview of the current and future pharmaceutical needs of the Trafford 
population. 

 NN thought that current pharmacy provision and services in Trafford is adequate. 

 NN agreed with the conclusion of the PNA. 

There was only one responder from the seven that made comments that needed addressing and these are detailed in the table below. 

Responder 
Number 

Category of 
response 

Section of 
PNA 

Actual response  Comment from PNA stakeholder 
group 

Decision of 
group of 
amend 

Date 
amendment 
made 

             

             

             
 

P
age 197



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

  
 

Minutes of the Trafford Health Protection Forum Tri-Monthly Meeting 

Held in Meeting Room 10, Ground Floor, Trafford Town Hall  

On 28.09.16 

 

 

Chair: Eleanor Roaf, Interim Director of Public Health             

Attendees: Sarah Gray, Infection Control Team, Trafford 
 Dr Matthieu Pegorie, Consultant in Communicable Disease Control, PHE 
 Ms Julie Walker, GMP EPRR Lead 

    
Apologies:   Vivienne Simenoff, Henrietta Bottomley, Phil Broad, Gina Lawrence,  
Eve Donelon, Barzo Faris, Graham Munslow, Helen Gollins 
  

Note Taker: Vimi Jhatakia  

Date and Place of next Meeting: Tuesday 17
th
 January 2017 Meeting Room 06 Ground Floor 

Trafford Town Hall. 1-2:30pm 

Items discussed 

1. Welcome, Introduction & Apologies:   All thanked all for coming and introductions took 

place.  Apologies were noted as above.   

2. Minutes:  Minutes from last meeting were not available at the time 

3 Healthcare Associated Infections (HCAI) update – Sarah Gray:  The summary report 

circulated with the agenda was taken as read but the Chair briefly talked through with the 

attendees.  Below is the appended summary. 

 

IP&C_summary_for_
the_Health_protection_forum_meeting_28.09.2016.doc

                   

3a)  MRSA:  Zero tolerance for 2016-17.  

3b) CDiff: The 2016/17 objective for Trafford CCG was 64 cases. 22 cases reported this 

year to date. Most cases from secondary care. No indications of lack of care in 

Community. 

 3c) MSSA:  31 cases reported to year-end. (Within target) 

 3d) E.coli: 84 cases reported to year-end. (Within target) 

 

 

Page 199

Agenda Item 9



2 

 

 

4. Education; Audit; Training – Sarah Gray: 

 4a)  Face-to-face training – the team continues to support GPs; dental practices when 

asked; nursing homes; social agencies and Pennine Care FT. This is being carried 

out on a reactive basis while the team is under capacity. 

 4b)   Premier care – advice has been provided, resources sent, planning to visit when Phil 

returns 

          4c)   Pennine care – meeting objectives, E-learning now available 

 4d) Dover House – Same concerns. CQC have been in since Sept 2016. No urgent 

concern, revisit planned next. Action plan in place.  

 4e) EAM House – Dual registered with Ofsted & CQC, action plan provided. Training to 

be given at a later date. 

 4f)  Registered nursing homes – same standards as last year. ER queried Flixton Manor 

& St Mark’s score; Sarah will review the lack of improvement at St Marks. 

 4g) GP Practices – no further inspections due. GP audits due in October. This has been 

put on hold till Phil Broad returns. 

 4h) Following a query relating to an incident reported by the police ER queried what 

resources GMP has regarding blood borne diseases. ER requested MP look into this 

further. 

 4i) Hepatitis A family cluster. 3 cases most likely to be linked to pre-school setting. A 

generic letter has been issued to parents to advise if any concern to contact their GP 

and the GP’s have also been alerted. SG will be visiting pre-school setting on 30
th

 

October. 

 4j) Hep A lookback to remind microbiologist to do full battery of tests. No further cases 

since beginning of September. 

 4k) Nice guidelines recommended all healthcare staff have training in Sepsis including 

Community Care and Care home staff, awareness training is already in place in 

Trafford. 

 

5. PHE update: Dr Matthieu Pegorie presented report embedded below.  

 

PHE update.doc

  

Dr Pegorie briefly talked through the report herewith appended.  He reported that the 

number of countries affected by the Zika virus continues to rise, 60 at present. 170 cases 

at present identified in UK. Zika infection in pregnancy, association with ZCS: evidence 

continues to increase supporting a causal association.  

 

Page 200



3 

 

 ‘Yellow Fever – massive outbreaks in Angola/Congo, world stocks of vaccine depleted.’ 

Please change to Yellow Fever: large outbreak in Angola, and another outbreak in DRC. 

Low risk to UK as vector not present, but PH issue is that the mass vaccination required for 

response is threatening to deplete world stocks of YF vaccine. 

 

 

 

6 Immunisation and Screening programmes update: Graham Munslow was not present 
- see reports embedded below. 

 

     

Copy of July  2016 
GM Screening  Imms Performance Report (2).xls

 
 

Quarterly COVER Immunisation report. This is the report which specifically covers the routine 0- 5 
yrs immunisation programme and is produced for each locality with supporting text/analysis. 
 
 

 

Cover data report 
Q4 2015-16 Trafford.doc

     
  

7 EPRR update: No one was present to provide an update. 

8 Matt Perogie: MP advised he will not be attending future meetings. Will Welfare will attend 

in his place. ER thanked him for his contribution to the group. 

9 Food/water environment agency: laboratory is closing in Preston, relocating to 

Yorkshire. No issues anticipated. 

10 Listeria: 3-4 cases have been identified with a link to W Midlands. 

11 Botulism: 2 cases reported in GM, likely to be from contaminated heroin. Dry services and 

users alerted. 

12 Outbreak mgmt.: Issue about what will happen if we have an outbreak in a care home. ER 

contacted Mastercall. There is an issue over clinical governance.  

JW looking at an Outbreak mgmt template. Trafford will be the test site. 

13 Any other business: ER advised meetings to move to a quarterly basis. 

14 Date and time of next meeting:  January Tuesday 17
th
 Meeting Room 06 Ground Floor 

2017 Trafford Town Hall 1-2:30pm 

 

Page 201



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	4 ARMED FORCES NETWORK
	6 PUBLIC HEALTH WORKING GROUP
	7 HEALTH AND WELLBEING PRIORITIES
	8 PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT
	Appendices_Trafford_PNA_Draft_For_Consultation
	Appendix One - Glossary.pdf
	Appendix Two - Trafford PNA Steering Group ToR
	Appendix Three - Patient Survey Results
	Appendix Four - Contractor Survey Results
	Appendix Five - Commissioned Services
	Appendix Six - Trafford Pharmacies and GP Practices
	Appendix Seven - MURs, NMS, AURs, Stoma and Flu
	Appendix Eight - Community Pharmacy Opening Hours
	Appendix Nine - One mile boundary pharmacies
	Appendix Ten- PNA 60 Day Consultation Plan
	Appendix Eleven - Maps
	Appendix Twelve - Analysis of PNA Consultation


	9 INFECTION CONTROL / MINUTES FROM THE HEALTH PROTECTION FORUM

